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VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED 

___________________________________ 

CIN No: L80301MH1984PLC033922 

Registered Office: Witty International School, Pawan Baug Road, Malad West,  

Mumbai – 400 064. 

Tel.: 022-61056800 / 01 / 02 Fax: 022-61056803 Email: vjtfho@vjtf.com 

Website: www.vjtf.com / www.wittykidsindia.com 
 

 

NOTICE 
 

Notice is hereby given that the 36th Annual General Meeting of VJTF Eduservices Limited 

will be held at Witty World, Romell Aether Layout, Off. Vishveshwar Nagar Rd, Near 

Umiyamata Temple, Goregaon East, Mumbai – 400 063 on Thursday, 30th September, 2021 

at 03:00 P.M., to transact the following businesses: 
 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

 

To receive, consider, and adopt: 
 

1. Audited Financial Statement of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 

2021, the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors  thereon; and 

 

2. Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year 

ended 31st March, 2021.  

 

3. Ratification of the Statutory Auditor of M/s J. Kala & Associates (Firm Registration 

No. 118769W) for the Financial Year 2021-2022.   
 

 

SPECIAL BUSINESS:  

 

4.   Re-Appointment of Dr. Vishal Punjabi (DIN: 07417917) as an Independent  

Director:  

 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following 

resolution as a Special Resolution:-  

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of sections 149, 152 and other 

applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) and the Rules framed 

thereunder, read with Schedule IV to the Act, as amended from time to time, Dr. 

Vishal Punjabi (DIN : 07417917), a non-executive, Independent Director of the 

Company, who has submitted a declaration that he meets the criteria for independence 

as provided in section 149(6) of the Act and he is not liable to retire by rotation, be and 

is hereby re- appointed as an Independent Director of the Company with effect from 

30th September, 2021 to 29th September, 2026.”  
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“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution, 

the Board of Directors of the Company, be and is hereby authorised for making such to 

execute such documents, deeds, writings, papers as may be required and do all such 

acts, deeds, matters and things, as it may in its absolute discretion, deem fit, necessary 

or appropriately rotation at the AGM of the Company, to hold office for a term of 5 

(Five) consecutive years up to the conclusion of the 41st AGM of the Company. 

 
       By Order of the Board  

       For VJTF Eduservices Limited 

 

 

 

 

      Place: Mumbai                               Sd/-    Sd/-  

      Dated: 4th September, 2021    Dr.  Vinay Jain  Dr. Raina Vinay Jain 

       Managing Director Whole Time Director 

       (DIN: 00235276)  (DIN: 01142103) 
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NOTES: 

 

• The Register of Members will be closed from 24th September, 2021 to 30th September, 2021 (both 

days inclusive), for the purpose of the Annual General Meeting. 

 

1. A Member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a Proxy to attend and vote on 

his behalf and such proxy / proxies need not be a member of the Company. Person can act as proxy on 

behalf of members not exceeding fifty (50) and holding in the aggregate not more than ten percent of 

the total share capital of the Company. 

 

2. Proxy forms in order to be effective must be received at Registered Office of the Company situated at 

Witty International School, Pawan Baug Road, Malad West, Mumbai-400064, 48 hours before the 

Annual General Meeting. 

 

3. During the period beginning 24 hours before the time fixed for the commencement of the meeting and 

ending with the conclusion of the meeting, a member would be entitled to inspect the proxies lodged at 

any time during the business hours of the Company, provided that not less than three days of notice in 

writing is given to the Company. 

 

4. Members are requested to bring their copies of the Report and Accounts to the Meeting. 

 

5. Members who hold shares in the Dematerialized form are requested to bring their Client ID and DP ID 

numbers for easy identification of attendance at the 36th Annual General Meeting. Also they are 

required to intimate all changes pertaining to their bank details such as bank account number, name of 

the bank and branch details, MICR code and IFSC code, mandates, nominations, power of attorney, 

change of address, change of name, e-mail address, contact numbers, etc., to their depository 

participant (DP). Changes intimated to the DP will then be automatically reflected in the Company’s 

records which will help the Company and the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agents, Skyline 

Financial Services Pvt Ltd to provide efficient and better services. Members holding shares in physical 

form are requested to intimate such changes to the RTA. 

 

6. In case of joint holders attending the AGM, the Member whose name appears as the first holder in the 

order of names as per the Register of Members of the Company will be entitled to vote. 

 

7. The route map showing directions to reach the venue of the 36th AGM is annexed to the Annual Report. 

 

8. A copy of all the documents referred to in the accompanying explanatory statement are open to 

inspection at the Registered Office of the Company on all working days except public holidays 

between 11.00 a.m. to 1.00 p.m. up to the date of AGM. 

 

9. Members are requested to affix their signatures at the space provided on the Attendance Slip annexed 

to the Proxy Form and hand over the Slip at the entrance to the place of the Meeting. 

 

10. Corporate members intending to send their authorized representatives are requested to send a duly 

certified copy of the Board Resolution authorizing their representatives to attend and vote at the AGM. 

 

11. The Company has made necessary arrangements for the Members to hold their shares in dematerialized 

form. Those members who are holding shares in physical form are requested to dematerialize the same 

by approaching any of the Depository Participants (DPs). In case any member wishes to dematerialize 

his/her shares and needs any assistance, he/she may write to the Director at the registered office of the 

Company. 

12. Copies of Annual Report 2021 are being sent to the members in the permitted mode. 

13. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of the Permanent 

Account Number (PAN) by every participant in the securities market. Members holding shares in 

electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit their PAN to their Depository Participants(s). 

Members holding shares in physical form shall submit their PAN details to the Company / RTA. 
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14. Mr. Rajvirendra Singh Rajpurohit, Practicing Company Secretary (Membership No. FCS 11346) an 

Independent Professional has been appointed as the Scrutinizer to Scrutinize the E-voting process in a 

fair and transparent manner (including the Ballot Form received from the members who do not have 

access to the e-voting process) in a fair and transparent manner. 

 

15. The Results of E-voting shall be declared at the AGM of the Company and the results along with 

Scrutinizer’s report shall be placed on the website of the Company thereafter and shall also be 

communicated to the Stock Exchanges. The Resolutions shall be deemed to be passed, if approved, on 

or before the date of 30th September, 2021. 

 

16. Important Communiqué to Members-Green Initiative in Corporate Governance: 

 

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has taken a Green Initiative in Corporate Governance by 

allowing paperless compliances by the companies and has issued a Circular stating that service of all 

documents can be sent by e-mail to its Members. Our Company believes that this is a remarkable and 

environment friendly initiative by MCA and requests all members to support in this noble cause. 

 

The Company has already embarked on this initiative and proposes to send documents in electronic 

form to the Members on the email address provided by them to the RTA/Depositories. 

 

The Members who hold shares in physical from are requested to intimate/update their email address to 

the Company / RTA while Members holding shares in demat form can intimate / update their email 

address to their respective Depository Participants. 

Members are requested to further note that they will be entitled to be furnished, free of cost, the 

physical copy of the documents sent by e-mail, upon receipt of a requisition from them, any time, as a 

Member of the Company. 

 

17.  PROCEDURE FOR E-VOTING: 

  

CDSL e-Voting System – For Remote e-voting  

 

THE INTRUCTIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING  

 

Step 1 : Access through Depositories CDSL e-Voting system in case of individual shareholders 

holding shares in demat mode. 

 

Step 2 : Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares in physical 

mode and non-individual shareholders in demat mode.  

 

(i) The voting period begins on Monday, 27th September, 2021 at 09:00 AM and ends on Wednesday, 

29th September, 2021 at 05:00 PM. During this period shareholders’ of the Company, holding shares 

either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date (record date) of 23rd 

September, 2021 may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL 

for voting thereafter. 

 

(ii) Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the 

meeting venue. 

 

(iii) Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, under 

Regulation 44 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, listed entities are required to provide remote e-voting facility to its 

shareholders, in respect of all shareholders’ resolutions. However, it has been observed that the 

participation by the public non-institutional shareholders/retail shareholders is at a negligible level.  

 

Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to listed 

entities in India. This necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance of multiple user IDs 

and passwords by the shareholders.  

 

In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation, it has been 

decided to enable e-voting to all the demat account holders, by way of a single login credential, 

through their demat accounts/ websites of Depositories/ Depository Participants. Demat account 
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holders would be able to cast their vote without having to register again with the ESPs, thereby, not 

only facilitating seamless authentication but also enhancing ease and convenience of participating in e-

voting process. 

 

Step 1 : Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-Voting system in case of individual 

shareholders holding shares in demat mode. 

 

(iv) In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 on e-

Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat 

mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository 

Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat 

accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 

 

Pursuant to above said SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting for Individual shareholders 

holding securities in Demat mode CDSL/NSDL is given below: 

 

Type of 

shareholders 

 Login Method 

 

Individual 

Shareholders 

holding 

securities in 

Demat mode 

with CDSL 

1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their 

existing user id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting 

page without any further authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi / 

Easiest are https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or visit 

www.cdslindia.com and click on Login icon and select New System Myeasi. 

2) After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting 

option for eligible companieswhere the e-voting is in progress as per the 

information provided by company. On clicking the e-voting option, the user will 

be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for casting your 

vote during the remote e-Voting period. Additionally, there is also links provided 

to access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers i.e. 

CDSL/NSDL/KARVY/LINKINTIME, so that the user can visit the e-Voting 

service providers’ website directly. 

3) If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at 

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration 

4) Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat 

Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on 

 www.cdslindia.com home page or click on 

https://evoting.cdslindia.com/Evoting/EvotingLogin The system will authenticate 

the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat 

Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to see the e-Voting 

optionwhere the e-voting is in progress and also able to directly access the system 

of all e-Voting Service Providers. 

 

Individual 

Shareholders 

holding 

securities in 

demat mode 

with NSDL 

1) If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-

Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 

https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once 

the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon 

under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section. A new screen will 

open. You will have to enter your User ID and Password. After successful 

authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services. Click on “Access to e-

Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click 

on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be re-directed 

to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-

Voting period. 

2) If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available 

at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for IDeAS “Portal or click   

at https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp 

 

3) Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following 

URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a 

mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon 

“Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen 

will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat 

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login
http://www.cdslindia.com/
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration
http://www.cdslindia.com/
https://evoting.cdslindia.com/Evoting/EvotingLogin
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
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account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as 

shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to 

NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company 

name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting 

service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period. 

Individual 

Shareholders 

(holding 

securities in 

demat mode) 

login through 

their 

Depository 

Participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your 

Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility.  After 

Successful login, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click on e-Voting 

option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful 

authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-

Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider 

website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period. 

  

 

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget 

User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 

 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues 

related to login through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL 

 

Login type Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders holding securities 

in Demat mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can 

contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.comor contact at 022- 

23058738 and 22-23058542-43.  
Individual Shareholders holding securities 

in Demat mode with NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can 

contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at 

evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 

990 and 1800 22 44 30   

 

Step 2 : Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares in physical 

mode and non-individual shareholders in demat mode. 

 

(v) Login method for Remote e-Voting for Physical shareholders and shareholders other than 

individual holding in Demat form. 

 

1) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com. 

 

2) Click on “Shareholders” module. 

 

3) Now enter your User ID  

 

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,  

b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,  

c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the Company. 

 

4) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login. 

 

5) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an 

earlier e-voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.  

 

6) If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below: 

 

 For Physical shareholders and other than individual shareholders holding shares 

in Demat. 

PAN Enter your 10digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable 

for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders) 

 

• Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository 

mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
http://www.evotingindia.com/
http://www.evotingindia.com/
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Participant are requested to use the sequence number sent by Company/RTA or 

contact Company/RTA. 

Dividend 

Bank 

Details 

OR Date 

of Birth 

(DOB) 

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded 

in your demat account or in the company records in order to login. 

• If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company, please 

enter the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details field. 

 

(vi) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab. 

 

(vii) Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection 

screen. However, shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ 

menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password 

field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for 

resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts 

for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with 

any other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential. 

 

(viii) For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the 

resolutions contained in this Notice. 

 

(ix) Click on the EVSN for the relevant <VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED> on which you choose 

to vote. 
 

(x) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the 

option “YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies 

that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution. 

 

(xi) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details. 

 

(xii) After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation 

box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, 

click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote. 

 

(xiii) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 

 

(xiv) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the 

Voting page. 

 

(xv) If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the image 

verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system. 
 

(xvi) Additional Facility for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians –For Remote Voting 

only. 

• Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are 

required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the “Corporates” module. 

• A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be 

emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. 

• After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and 

password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote 

on. 

• The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and 

on approval of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote.  

• A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in 

favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer 

to verify the same. 

• Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board Resolution/ 

Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory 

who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the Company at the email address viz; 

manoj@wittykidsindia.com, if they have voted from individual tab & not uploaded same in the 

CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the same. 

http://www.evotingindia.com/
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
manoj@wittykidsindia.com
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PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT 

REGISTERED WITH THE COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES. 

 

1. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned 

copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR 

(self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to Company/RTA email id. 

 

2. For De-mat shareholders - please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository 

Participant (DP) 

 

3. For Individual Demat shareholders – Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective 

Depository Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting & joining virtual meetings through 

Depository. 

 

If you have any queries or issues regarding e-Voting from the CDSL e-Voting System, you can write an 

email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022-23058738 and 022-23058542/43. 

 

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to Mr. Rakesh 

Dalvi, Sr. Manager, (CDSL, ) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25 th Floor, Marathon 

Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 400013 or send an 

email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call  on 022-23058542/43. 

 

        

 

By Order of the Board  

       For VJTF Eduservices Limited 

 

 

 

Place: Mumbai      Sd/-   Sd/-  

Dated: 4th September, 2021    Dr. Vinay Jain  Dr. Raina Vinay Jain 

       Managing Director Whole Time Director 

        (DIN: 00235276)  (DIN: 01142103) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com


11 of 142

NOTES: 

 

ANNEXURE-1 TO THE NOTICE: EXPLANATORY STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 

102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACTS, 2013. 

 

The following Explanatory Statement sets out the material facts relating to the business under item 4 

of the accompanying Notice: 

 

Item No. 4: 

 

The following Explanatory Statement sets out the material facts relating to the special business 

under item 4 of the accompanying Notice: 

 

 The Company had, pursuant to the provisions of clause 49 of the Listing Agreements entered with the 

Stock Exchanges, re-appointed Dr. Vishal Punjabi, as an Independent Directors, in compliance with 

the requirements of the clause. Pursuant to the provisions of section 149 of the Act, which came in to 

effect from 1st October, 2021, every listed public company is required to have at least one-third of the 

total number of directors as independent directors, who are not liable to retire by rotation. The 

Nominations Committee has recommended the re-appointment of Dr. Vishal Punjabi as an 

Independent Directors from 1st October, 2021 to 30th September, 2026. Dr. Vishal Punjabi, non-

executive directors of the Company, have given a declaration to the Board that they meet the criteria 

of independence as provided under section 149(6) of the Act.  

 

 

In the opinion of the Board, each of these directors fulfill the conditions specified in the Act and the 

Rules framed there under for appointment as an Independent Director and he is independent of the 

management. The terms and conditions of re-appointment of the above directors shall be open for 

inspection by the members at the registered office of the Company during normal business hours on 

any working day, excluding Saturday.  

 

 

Except the above mentioned directors none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the 

Company and their relatives is concerned or interested, financial or otherwise, in the above resolution. 

 

By Order of the Board of Directors 

      For VJTF Eduservices Limited 

 

Place:  Mumbai    Sd/-   Sd/- 

Date: 4th September, 2021   Dr. Vinay Jain  Dr. Raina Vinay Jain 

      Managing Director Whole Time Director 

      DIN- 00235276  DIN-01142103 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

 

To the Members of the Company, 

 

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 36th Annual Report on the Business and 

Operations of your Company with Audited Accounts for the financial year ended on 31st 

March 2021. The Financial Results of the Company are summarized below: 

 

FINANCIAL RESULTS: (Rs. In Lakhs) 

PARTICULARS 

  

Standalone 

for the year 

ended 31st 

March, 2021 

 

Standalone 

for the Year 

ended 31st 

March, 2020 

 

Consolidated  

for the year 

ended 31st 

March, 2021 

 

Consolidated 

for the Year 

ended 31st 

March, 2020 

 

GROSS REVENUE 908.68 1863.66 908.68 1964.71 

PROFIT /(LOSS) BEFORE 

DEPRECIATION/ 

AMORTIZATION EXPENSES 

AND TAXATION 

(243.31) (19.31) (245.39) 81.10 

Less: Depreciation & 

Amortization Expenses 

288.37 392.31 288.37 392.31 

PROFIT /(LOSS)  FOR THE 

YEAR BEFORE TAXATION 

(531.68) (411.62) (533.75) (311.21) 

Less: Provision for Taxation     

Current Tax -- -- -- 27.00 

Deferred Tax (34.81) 1.31 (34.81) 1.31 

MAT 

Entitlement 

-- 38.89 -- 38.89 

Prior Period Taxation 

Adjustment 

-- 6.10 -- 56.03 

PROFIT/(LOSS) AFTER TAX (496.87) (457.92) (498.94) (434.44) 

Other Comprehensive 

Income 

3.05 4.60 3.05 4.60 

Adjustment On Account Of 

Disposal of Stake in 

Subsidiary 

- - - - 

Less: Minority Interest  - (0.36) 4.13 

Add: Brought forward 

balance from previous year 

58.16 511.49 2472.35 2901.72 

Balance Carried to Balance 

Sheet 

(435.66) 58.16 1979.87 2472.35 
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COMPANY AFFIRMATION OF READINESS TOWARDS COVID-19  

 

India is going through a tough phase of a global pandemic–Novel Corona virus disease 

(COVID-19). The Indian government is taking all possible measures to keep a check on the 

spread of this disease within the country.  

 

Accordingly, as a responsible private establishment, your Company also took part in the 

mission of social distancing by:  

 

- Putting in place Work from Home Policy (WFH) for the employees of the Company;  

- Conduct of meetings through VC, telephone, computerized & other electronic 

means; 

- Strictly adhering to the “Do’s and Don’ts” advised by the Public Health Authorities;  

- Only essential staff are being called on duty with staggered timings to be followed in 

order   to minimize physical interaction in all the Offices, Schools at various locations; 

and  

- To follow other preventive measures prescribed by the local authorities from time to 

time. 

 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS AND PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY 

 

On Standalone Basis, the Gross Revenue of the Company for the Financial Year 2020-21 is 

Rs. 908.68 Lakhs as compared to Rs. 1863.66 Lakhs for the previous Financial Year 2019-20. 

Earnings before Tax, Depreciation and Amortization is Rs. (243.31) Lakhs in the Current 

Financial Year as compared to Rs. (19.31) Lakhs for the previous Financial Year ended 31st 

March 2020. Profit after Tax for the Current Financial Year is Rs. (496.87) Lakhs. 

 

On Consolidated Basis, the Gross Revenue for the Financial Year 2020 -21 is Rs. 908.68 Lakhs 

as compared to Rs. 1964.71 Lakhs for the previous financial year ended 31st March 2020. 

Profit before Tax, Depreciation and Amortization is Rs. (245.39) Lakhs as compared to Profit 

before Tax, Depreciation and Amortization of Rs. 81.10 Lakhs for the previous Financial Year 

ended 31st March 2020. Loss after Tax for the Current Financial Year is Rs. (498.95) Lakhs 

 

BUSINESS OVERVIEW: 

 

The Company has established itself as an emerging player in the Education Services 

Segment. The Company provides services to Operational Education Projects at - 

(1) Pawan Baug, Malad (West), Mumbai,  

(2) Udaipur, Rajasthan  

(3) Bhilwara, Rajasthan   

(4) Goregaon East, Mumbai 

DIVIDEND 

 

The directors do not recommend any dividend for the financial year under review. 
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DEPOSITS 
 

During the year under review, the Company has not accepted any deposits within the 

meaning of Section 73 and 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Acceptance 

of Deposits) Rules, 2014. 

 

RESERVES  

 

The Directors propose to carry Rs. (435.66) Lakhs being the profit for the current year to the 

Balance Sheet during the financial year ended 31stMarch, 2021. 

 

CAPITAL STRUCTURE 

 

There was no change in the Authorized and Paid-up Share Capital of the Company during 

the year. 

 

The Authorized Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 2000 Lakh divided into 2,00,00,000 (Two 

Crore) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each. 

 
 

The Paid-up & Subscribed Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 1760 Lakhs divided into 

17,600,000 (One Crore Seventy Six Lakhs) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each. From No. MGT-9 

(Extract of Annual Return) as Annexure No. 1 

 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 
 

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report are enclosed as a part of this report. 

 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION: 

 

Your Company has taken adequate steps to adhere to all the stipulations laid down in 

Regulation 17 to 27 read with Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015. A report on Corporate Governance is included as a part of 

this Director Report as Annexure No.4. Certificate from the Secretarial Auditors of the 

Company confirming the compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance as 

stipulated under Regulations17 to 27 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

 

LISTING 

 

The Company’s shares are listed on BSE Limited. The Company has paid listing fees of Rs. 

3,54,000/- for the Financial Year 2020-21 to BSE Limited. 

 

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

1. CHANGES IN DIRECTORS 
 

There are only one changes in Directorship of the Company in the financial year 2020-21. 

Mr. Sourabh Jain (DIN – 08881097) was appointed as Non-Executive, Independent  
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Director on 15th September, 2020 & he has been regularized in the AGM held on 29th 

December, 2020. 

2. DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

 

All of the Independent Directors have given a declaration that they meet the criteria of 

independence as laid down under section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 

25 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and 

there has been no change in the circumstances which may affect their status as 

Independent Directors during the year. 

 

3. CHANGES IN KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

During the Year there were no changes in Key Managerial Personnel. 

 

CURRENT STRUCTURE OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

 

Sr. 

No. 

DIN Name of Director/Key 

Managerial Personnel 

Designation 

1 00235276 Dr. (Mr.) Vinay Jain Managing Director 

2 01142103 Dr. (Mrs.) Raina Vinay Jain Whole Time Director 

3 06547346 Shivratan Santosh Agarwal Non- Executive Independent Director 

4 06547354 Hitesh Gunwantlal Vakharia Non- Executive Independent Director 

5 07417917 Vishal Punjabi Non- Executive Independent Director 

6 08881097 Sourabh Jain Non- Executive Independent Director 

7 AHPPJ3402M Manoj Kumar Jain Chief Financial Officer 

8 FLPPS1085G Shruti Sharma Company Secretary & Compliance Officer    

 

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 

The Board of Directors of the Company have met Four times during the year on 31/07/2020, 

15/09/2020, 11/11/2020 & 12/02/2021 in respect of which proper notices were given and 

proceedings were properly recorded, signed and maintained in the Minutes Book kept by 

the Company for the purpose. The intervening gap between the Meetings was within the 

period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. The Attendance of Directors at Board 

Meeting in given in corporate governance report. 

 

Sr. 

No. 

Name of Directors Designation No. of Meeting 

attended 

1 Dr. (Mr.) Vinay Jain Managing Director 4 

2 Dr. (Mrs.) Raina Vinay Jain Whole Time Director 4 

3 Shivratan Santosh Agarwal Non- Executive Independent Director 4 

4 Hitesh Gunwantlal Vakharia Non- Executive Independent Director 4 

5 Vishal Punjabi Non- Executive Independent Director 4 

6 Sourabh Jain Non- Executive Independent Director 2 

 

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD 

 

The Company has constituted an Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee, Stakeholders Relationship Committee as per the provisions of the Companies 
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Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. A 

detailed note on the Board and its Committees are provided under the corporate 

governance Report Section in this Annual Report. The composition of the Committees, as 

per the applicable provisions of the Act and Rules, are as follows: 

 

 

BOARD EVALUATION 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, a separate exercise was carried out to evaluate 

the performance of Individual Directors including the Chairman of the Board who were 

evaluated on parameters such as level of engagement and contribution and independence 

of judgment thereby safeguarding the interest of the Company. The performance evaluation 

of the Independent Directors was carried out by the entire Board. The performance 

evaluation of the Chairman and Non-Independent Directors were carried out by the 

Independent Directors. The Board also carried out annual performance evaluation of the 

working of its Audit, Nomination and Remuneration, Stakeholder Relationship Committees. 

The Board of Directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process. 

 

POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION AND OTHER DETAILS 

 

The Company’s policy on Directors’ Appointment and Remuneration and other matters 

provided in Section 178(3) of the Act has been disclosed in the Corporate Governance 

Report. 

 

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY 

 

The details in respect of internal financial control and their adequacy are included in 

Management Discussion and Analysis, which forms part of this Report. 

 

DISCLOSURE OF REMUNERATION OF EMPLOYEES COVERED UNDER RULE 5 OF THE 

COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 

2014:-  

 

i. The percentage increase in Remuneration of each Director, Chief Executive Officer, 

Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary in the financial year: 

 

Name of the Committee Composition of the Committee 

Audit Committee 

 

CA Shivratan Santosh Agarwal (Chairman) 

Mr. Hitesh Gunwantlal Vakharia 

Dr. Vinay Jain 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee CA Shivratan Santosh Agarwal (Chairman) 

Mr. Hitesh Gunwantlal Vakharia 

Mr. Vishal Punjabi 

Stakeholder Relationship Committee CA Shivratan Santosh Agarwal  

Mr. Hitesh Gunwantlal Vakharia (Chairman) 

Dr. Raina Vinay Jain 
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Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and 

Company Secretary 

% increase in 

remuneration in the 

financial year 

Dr. Vinay Jain, Managing Director Nil 

Dr. Raina Vinay Jain, Whole Time Director Nil 

CA Manoj Jain, Chief Financial Officer  Nil 

CS  Shruti Sharma, Company Secretary Nil 

 

ii.  The percentage increase in the median Remuneration of employees in the financial 

year: 5% 

 

iii.  The number of Permanent Employees on rolls of the Company: 146 as on 31/03/2021. 

 

iv.  Variations in the Market Capitalization of the Company, Price Earnings Ratio as at the 

Closing Date of the Current Financial Year and Previous Financial Year: 

 

Particulars 31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020 

Market Capitalization 

(Rs. In Lakhs) 9697.60 10120.00 

 

Price Earnings Ratio (19.54) (22.12) 

 

v.     Percentage Increase or Decrease in the Market Quotations of the Equity Shares of the 

Company in comparison to the rate at which the Company came out with last Public 

Offer: 

 

The market price of the equity shares was Rs. 55.10 on 31st March, 2021 in comparison 

to the market price of Rs. 57.50 as on 31st March 2020. 

 

vi.  Average percentage increase already made in the salaries of employees other than 

the managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the 

percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and 

point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial 

remuneration: 

  

The average annual increase for the employees of the company was around 5%. 

However there was no increase in the Managerial Remuneration. 

 

vii.  Comparison of each remuneration of the Key Managerial personnel against the 

performance of the Company: 
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Key Managerial Personnel % of Revenue 

 

Dr. Vinay Jain, Managing Director 6.6% 

Dr. Raina Vinay Jain, Whole Time Director 6.6% 

CA Manoj Jain, Chief Financial Officer  1.28% 

 CS  Shruti Sharma, Company Secretary 0.42% 

 

viii.  The key parameters for any variable component of remuneration availed by the 

directors: 

Minimum remuneration paid as per schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

 ix.  The ratio of the remuneration of the highest paid director to that of the employees 

who are not directors but receive remuneration in excess of the highest paid director 

during the year: None. 

 

x.  Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company: 

 The Company affirms that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the 

Company. No employee of the company is falling under Rule 5(2) of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. 

 

DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS 

 

As per SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, Corporate 

Governance Report along with Auditor’s Certificate, CEO/CFO Certificate and Management 

Discussion and Analysis are attached herewith, which forms part of this report. 

 

Policy for determining material subsidiaries of the Company is available on the website of 

the Company 

(URL:http://www.vjtf.com/investor-relations/policy-for-determining-material-subsidiaries) 

 

Policy on dealing with related party transactions is available on the website of the Company 

(URL: http://www.vjtf.com/investor-relations/related-parties-transaction-policy). 

 

The Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy and has established the necessary vigil 

mechanism as defined under Regulation 22 of SEBI Listing Regulations for directors and 

employees to report concerns about unethical behavior. No person has been denied access 

to the Chairman of the audit committee. The said policy has been also put up on the website 

of the Company at the following link: 

(URL: http://www.vjtf.com/investor-relations/whistle-blower-policy). 
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The Company has adopted a Policy on Determination of ‘Materiality for Disclosures’ as per 

Regulation 30 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

(URL: http://www.vjtf.com/investor-relations) and a ‘Policy for Preservation of Documents’ 

as per Regulation 9 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015. (URL: http://www.vjtf.com/investor-relations) 

 

SUBSIDIARIES 

 

The Company has only one Subsidiary i.e. M/s. VJTF Buildcon Private Limited. There has 

been no material change in the nature of the business of the subsidiary.  
 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 136 of the Act, Financial Statements of the Company, 

Consolidated Financial Statements along with relevant documents and separate Audited 

Accounts in respect of subsidiary forms part of the Annual Report of the Company. The 

Company has the following one subsidiary as on 31st March 2021. 

 

VJTF Buildcon Private Limited (CIN: U45400MH2009PTC197093) 

Pursuant to provisions of section 129(3) of the Act, a statement containing salient features 

of the financial statements of the Company’s subsidiaries in Form AOC-1 is attached to the 

financial statements of the Company. 
 

PERFORMANCE AND FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

 

VJTF BUILDCON PRIVATE LIMITED 

 

The Net Loss for the year under review amounted to Rs. 2.07 Lakhs as compared to profit of 

Rs. 23.48 Lakhs in the previous year. 

 

CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS 

 

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company are prepared in accordance with the 

relevant Accounting Standard viz. Accounting Standard 21 & Indian Accounting Standards 

(IND-AS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and forms part of this 

Annual Report. 

 

STATUTORY AUDITORS 
 

The Company in its 33rd Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on 29th September, 2018 

appointed M/s J Kala & Associates (Firm Registration No. 118769W), Chartered Accountants, 

as its Statutory Auditors to hold office for the period of five consecutive years from the 

conclusion of the 33rd AGM until the conclusion of the 37th AGM. However, their terms of 

Appointment and Remuneration shall be ratified by the Members of the Company in the 

ensuing AGM. 

 

AUDITOR’S REPORT 

i) Statutory Auditors:    

 

Statutory Auditors’ Report is Self-Explanatory in itself. 
 



20 of 142

 

 

  

ii) Secretarial Auditor: 

 

According to the provision of section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 9 of 

the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the 

Secretarial Audit Report submitted by Secretarial Auditor - Mr. Rajvirendra Singh Rajpurohit, 

Practicing Company Secretary is enclosed as a part of this report in Annexure-3. The 

qualification, reservation, adverse remarks or disclaimer made by the Secretarial Auditor in 

its report are self-explanatory. However, Management of the Company ensures to be more 

careful and dedicated in all of the compliances henceforth. 

 

iii) Internal Auditor: 

 

M/s. Anil B Jain & Associates, Chartered Accountants, Mumbai performed the duties of 

Internal Auditors of the company for the Financial Year 2020-21 and their report is reviewed 

by Audit Committee from time to time. 

 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

 

As per the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with rules framed 

there under, every Company including its holding or subsidiary and a foreign company, 

which fulfills the criteria specified in sub-section (1) of section 135 of the Act, shall comply 

with the provisions of Section 135 of the Act and its rules. 

 

Since the Company is not falling under any criteria specified in sub-section (1) of section 135 

of the Act, your Company is not required to constitute a Corporate Social Responsibility 

Committee. 

 

VIGIL MECHANISM 

 

The Company has adopted a “Whistle Blower” Policy and has established the necessary vigil 

mechanism for employees and directors to report concerns about unethical behavior as per 

the provisions regarding vigil mechanism as provided in Section 177(9) of the Companies 

Act, 2013 read with rules framed there under. The “Whistle Blower” Policy is available on 

the website of the Company on http://www.vjtf.com/investor-relations/whistle-blower-

policy. 

 

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY 

 

The company has been addressing various risks impacting the company, reviewing the risk 

management plan and ensuring its effectiveness. The Audit Committee has additional 

oversight in the area of financial risks and controls. Major risks identified by the businesses 

and functions are systematically addressed through mitigating actions on a continuing basis. 

The development and implementation of risk management policy has been covered in the 

Management Discussion and Analysis report. 
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PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS MADE UNDER SECTION 186 OF 

THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

 

The details of loans, guarantees and investments as covered under the provisions of Section 

186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are given in the notes to Financial Statements.  

 

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH THE RELATED PARTIES 

 

Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to in Section 188(1) of 

the Companies Act, 2013, in the prescribed Form AOC-2, is appended as Annexure 2 to the 

Director’s report. 
 

HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT 

 

To ensure good human resources management, your company focuses on all aspects of the 

employee lifecycle. This provides a holistic experience for the employees as well. During 

their tenure at the Company, employees are motivated through various skill-development, 

engagement and volunteering programs. All the while, we create effective dialogs through 

our communication channels to ensure that the feedback reach the relevant teams, 

including the leadership. The company takes pride in the commitment, competence and 

dedication shown by its employees in all areas of business.  

 

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 

COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE 

COMPANY TO WHICH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THIS 

REPORT 

 

During the period under review, no material changes and commitments have occurred 

between the end of the financial year and till the date of this report which would materially 

affect the financial position of the Company. 

 

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR 

COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S 

OPERATION IN FUTURE 

 

During the period under review, there were no significant and material orders passed by the 

regulators or courts or tribunals which impact the going concern status of the Company and 

it’s operations in future. 

 

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS 

 

The Directors state that applicable Secretarial Standards, i.e. SS-1 and SS-2, relating to 

'Meetings of the Board of Directors' and 'General Meetings', respectively, have been duly 

followed by the Company. 
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CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE 

EARNINGS AND OUTGO 

 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 134 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 

2014 regarding conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange 

earnings and outgo, your Director’s furnish hereunder the additional information as 

required.   

 

A. Conservation of Energy 
 

Information in accordance with the provisions of Section 134 (3) (m) read with the 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 regarding conservation of energy does not apply to your 

Company. 

 

B. Technology Absorption 
 
Your Company has no foreign collaboration, hence no particulars are offered. 

 

C.  Foreign Exchange Earning and Outgo 
 
As required under Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014, the information relating to the foreign exchange earnings and outgo 

are given in the Notes to the financial statements as well as hereunder for the year ended 

31stMarch, 2021: 

 

Expenditure in Foreign Currency                   :      NIL 

 

Foreign Exchange Earnings during the year :      NIL 

 

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

 

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, it is hereby 

confirmed: 

 

a) that in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards 

have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures; 

 

b) that the Director’s had selected such accounting policies and applied them 

consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so 

as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the 

financial year and the profit or loss of the Company for the period ended 31st March, 

2021; 

 

c) that the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of 

adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies 

Act 2013, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and 

detecting any fraud and other irregularities;  
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d) that the Directors’ had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis ;  

 

e) that the Directors’ have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the 

company and such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating 

effectively; and 

 

f) that the Directors’ had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the 

provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating 

effectively.  

 

DISCLOSURES UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, 

PROHIBITION & REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 

 

There was no case filed during the year, under the Sexual Harassment of Women at 

Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013. Further, the Company ensures 

that there is a healthy and safe atmosphere for every women employee at the workplace 

and have made necessary policies for safe and secure environment for women employees.  

 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

 

Your Directors’ wishes to place on record its sincere thanks to all its Customers, Suppliers, 

Bankers and Central & State Government Authorities for extending support to your 

Company. The Board also places on record its sincere appreciation of the contribution made 

by all the stakeholders for placing their faith and trust on the Board. 

 

 

 

      By Order of the Board of Directors 

      For VJTF Eduservices Limited 

 

Place:  Mumbai    Sd/-   Sd/- 

Date: 4th September, 2021   Dr. Vinay Jain  Dr. Raina Vinay Jain 

      Managing Director Whole Time Director 

      DIN- 00235276  DIN-01142103 
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Annexure 1 

FORM NO. MGT 9 
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 

As on financial year ended on 31.03.2021 
Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company (Management 

& Administration) Rules, 2014. 

 
I. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS: 

 

1.  CIN L80301MH1984PLC033922 

2.  Registration Date 03/09/1984 

3.  Name of the Company VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED 

4.  Category/Sub-category 

of the Company 

Company Limited by Shares/ Indian Non-Government Company 

5.  Address of the 

Registered office  & 

contact details 

Witty International School, Pawan Baug Road, Malad West, 

Mumbai-400064. 

Tel.:022- 61056800 / 01 / 02  Fax: 022- 61056803  

Email: vjtfho@vjtf.com 

6.  Whether listed company Yes 

7.  Name, Address & 

contact details of the 

Registrar & Transfer 

Agent, if any. 

M/s. Skyline Financial Services Private Limited 

Add: D-153 A, 1st Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase-I, New Delhi 

- 110 020. 

Tel No. 011-26812682/83 

Fax No. 011-26812682 

Email: atul@skylinerta.com/admin@skylinerta.com 

 
II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY (All the business activities contributing 

10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated) 

 

S. No. Name and Description of main 
products / services 

NIC Code of the 
Product/service 
 

 

%  to total turnover of the company 

1 Education Services  851 100  

 
III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 

 

SR. No Name & 
Address of 
the Company 

CIN/GLN HOLDING/ 
SUBSIDIARY/ 
ASSOCIATE 

% OF  
SHARES 
HELD 

APPLICABLE  
SECTION 

1 

VJTF 
Buildcon 
Private 
Limited 

U45400MH2009PTC197093 
Subsidiary 
Company 

82.42% 2(87) 

mailto:vjtfho@vjtf.com
mailto:admin@skylinerta.com


25 of 142

 

 

 
IV.           SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity) 

A) Category-wise Share Holding 

 
 

A) Category-wise Share 
Holding 

Shares Held at  beginning of  the Year 
31/03/2020 

Shares Held at the End of  the Year 
31/03/2021 

% Change 
During The 
Year 

Sr. No. 
Category of 

Shareholders 
Demat Physical Total 

% of 
Total 

Shares 
Demat Physical Total 

% of 
Total 

Shares 

A Promoters                   

1 Indian                   

a) Individual HUF 11303973 0 11303973 64.23 11303973 0 11303973 64.23 0.00 

b) Central Govt 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

c) State Government 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

d) Bodies Corporate 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

e) Banks/FI 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

f) Any Other 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

  Sub-Total (A)(1) 11303973 0 11303973 64.23 11303973 0 11303973 64.23 0.00 

2 Foreign                   

a) NRI Individuals 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

b) Other Individuals 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

c) Bodies Corporate 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

d) Banks /FI 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

e) Any Other 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

  Sub-Total (A)(2) 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

  
Total Shareholding 
of Promoters(A) 11303973 0 11303973 64.23 11303973 0 11303973 64.23 0.00 

B Public Shareholding                   

1 Institutions                   

a) Mutual Funds 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

b) Banks/FI 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

c) Central Government 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

d) State Government 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

e) Venture Capital Fund 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

f) Insurance Companies 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

g) FIIs 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

h) 
Foreign Venture 
Capital Fund 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

i) Any Other 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

i) Any Other Foreign 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

  Sub-Total (B)(1) 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

2 Non-Institutions                   

a) Bodies Corporate                   

1) Indian 1733448 0 1733448 9.85 1733448 0 1733448 9.85 0.00 

2) Overseas 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 
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b) Individuals                   

1) 

Individual shares 
holders having 
nominal share capital 
upto Rs. 1,00,000 56527 0 56527 0.32 52974 0 52974 0.30 -0.02 

2) 

Individual shares 
holders having 
nominal share capital 
Excess of Rs. 1,00,000 3980086 42500 4022586 22.86 3982874 42500 4025374 22.87 0.01 

c) Others                    

a) HUF 438416 45000 483416 2.75 437516 45000 482516 2.74 -0.01 

b) Non Resident Indian 50 0 50 0.00 1585 0 1585 0.01 0.01 

c) Foreign National 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

d) Clearing Members 0 0 0 0.00 140 0 140 0.00 0.00 

e) Trust 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

e) Foreing Bodies-DR 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

f) 
NBFC Registered 
With RBI 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

  Sub-Total (B)(2) 6208527 87500 6296027 35.77 6208527 87500 6296027 35.77 0.00 

  
Total Public 
Shareholding (B) 6208527 87500 6296027 35.77 6208527 87500 6296027 35.77 0.00 

C) 

Shares Held By 
Custodian for GDRs 
& ADRs 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

D) IEPF 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

  Grand Total  17512500 87500 17600000 100.00 17512500 87500 17600000 100.00 0.00 

 
B) Shareholding of Promoter- 

 

Sr. 
No. 

Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the beginning of the year Shareholding at the end of the year 
% change 
in 
sharehol
ding 
during 
the year 

  

  No. of 
Shares 

% of total 
Shares of the 

company 

%of 
Shares 
Pledged / 
encumber
ed to total 
shares 

No. of 
Shares 

% of total 
Shares of 

the 
company 

%of Shares 
Pledged / 
encumbered to 
total shares 

1. Dr. Vinay Jain 6078122 34.53 0 6078122 34.53 0 0.00 

2. Dr. Raina Jain                                                                                                                     5177051 29.42 0 5177051 29.42 0 0.00 

3. Dharamchand Rajmal 
Shah 

24400 0.14 0 24400 0.14 0 0.00 

4. Bimladevi Shah                                                                                                                        24400 0.14 0 24400 0.14 0 0.00 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



27 of 142

 

 

C) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding  

 
Sr. 
No 

Name of 
Shareholder 

Shareholding As on 31/03/2020 Transaction 
Date 

Increase / 
Decrease 

Reason Cummulative 
Shareholding 
Holding as on 
31/03/2021 

No of Shares 
Held 

% To the 
Total Shares 

Promoters and Promoter Group           

1 Dr. Vinay Jain 6078122 34.53 - - - 6078122 

2 Dr. Raina Jain 5177051 29.42 - - - 5177051 

3 
Dharamchand 
Rajmal Shah 

24400 0.14 - - - 24400 

4 Bimladevi Shah 24400 0.14 - - - 24400 

 
D) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders:  

     (Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs): 

 
Sr. 
No 
 

Name of Shareholder 
 

Shareholding As on 
31/03/2020 

Transaction 
Date 

Increase 
/Decrease 

Reason Cummulative 
Shareholding 
Holding as on 

31/03/2021 
  

No of 
Shares 
Held 

% To the Total 
Shares 

1 
Sam Financial 
Services 

1604649 9.12 
    

 
 

    
Balance 1604649 

2 Badri Baldawa 1084995 6.16 
     

 
 

    
Balance 1084995 

3 
Sachin Jayantilal 
Porwal 

396170 2.25 
     

 
 

    
Balance 396170 

4 
Sharda Popatlal 
Porwal 

275000 1.56 
     

 
 

    
Balance 275000 

5 
Mahesh Ratilal 
Gathani 

250000 1.42 
     

       
Balance 250000 

6 Jayant Ratilal Gathani 250000 1.42 
     

       
Balance 250000 

7 Swati Anil Porwal 212500 1.21 
     

       
Balance 212500 

8 Mamta Sachin Porwal 187500 1.07 
     

       
Balance 187500 

9 
Kalawati Prithviraj 
Kothari 

160000 0.91 
     

 
 

    
Balance 160000 

10 
Anilkumar Popatlal 
Porwal 

150000 0.85 
     

  
 

    
Balance 150000 
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E) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel: 
 

Sr. 
No 

  

Name of 
Shareholder 

  

Shareholding As on 
31/03/2020 

 Transaction 
Date 

Increase 
/Decrease  

Reason Cummulative 
Shareholding 
Holding as on 

31/03/2021 
  

No of Shares 
Held 

% To the 
Total Shares 

1 Dr. Vinay Jain 6078122 34.53 - - - 6078122 

2 Dr. Raina Jain 5177051 29.42 - - - 5177051 

 
        V. INDEBTEDNESS -Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not 

due for payment. 
 

  

Secured Loans 

excluding deposits 

Unsecured 

Loans 
Deposits Total Indebtedness 

Indebtedness at the beginning of financial 

year 2020-21 
  

  

    

i) Principal Amount 605.96 354.99 - 960.95 

ii) Interest due but not paid - - - - 

iii) Interest accrued but not due 4.68 - - 4.68 

Total (i+ii+iii) 610.64 354.99 - 965.63 

Change in Indebtedness during the financial 

year 
 

  
 

* Addition 52.40 - - 52.40 

* Reduction - 66.49 - 66.49 

Net Change 52.40 66.49 - (14.09) 

Indebtedness at the end of the financial 

year 2020-21 

    

i) Principal Amount 658.36 288.50 - 946.86 

ii) Interest due but not paid - - - - 

iii) Interest accrued but not due 4.69 - - 4.69 

Total (i+ii+iii) 663.05 288.50 - 951.55 

 
VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL- 
 

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager: 
 

SN. Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ Manager Total Amount 

    Vinay Jain Raina Jain   

1 Gross salary (in Rupees)    

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 

17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 

60,00,000  60,00,000 1,20,00,000 

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 

1961 

 - -  -  

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) 

Income- tax Act, 1961 

 -  -  - 
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2 Stock Option  - -  -  

3 Sweat Equity       

4 Commission 

-  as % of profit 

-  others, specify… 

  

  

  
- 
- 

  
- 
- 

  
- 
- 

5 Others, please specify 

  

  

 - -  -  

  Total (A) 

  

  

 60,00,000  60,00,000 1,20,00,000 

  Ceiling as per the Act 

  

  

      

 

B. Remuneration to other directors 

 
SN. Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total 

Amount 

    - - -   

1 Independent Directors      

Fee for attending board committee meetings - - -   

Commission - - -   

Others, please specify - - -   

Total (1) - - -   

2 Other Non-Executive Directors      

Fee for attending board committee meetings - - -  

Commission - - -   

Others, please specify - - -   

  Total (2) - - -   

  Total (B)=(1+2) - - -   

  Total Managerial Remuneration - - -   

  Overall Ceiling as per the Act - - -   

 
C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN 
MD/MANAGER/WTD 
 

SN Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel 

    CEO CS CFO Total 

1 Gross salary (in Rupees)        

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 

17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 

-  3,82,202  11,66,400  15,48,602 

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 

1961 

- - - - 

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) 

Income-tax Act, 1961 

- - - - 

2 Stock Option - - - - 

3 Sweat Equity - - - - 

4 Commission - - - - 

  -  as % of profit - - - - 

   others, specify… - - - - 

5 Others, please specify - - - - 

  Total -  3,82,202  11,66,400  15,48,602 
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VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: 

 
Type Section of the 

Companies 

Act 

Brief 

Description 

Details of Penalty / 

Punishment / Compounding 

fees imposed 

Authority 

[RD / NCLT/ 

COURT] 

Appeal made, 

if any (give 

Details) 

A. COMPANY 

Penalty - - - - - 

Punishment - - - - - 

Compounding - - - - - 

B. DIRECTORS 

Penalty - - - - - 

Punishment - - - - - 

Compounding - - - - - 

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT 

Penalty - - - - - 

Punishment - - - - - 

Compounding - - - - - 

 
 
By Order of the Board  
For VJTF Eduservices Limited 
 
 
 
Sd/-        Sd/-  
Dr.  Vinay Jain Dr. Raina Jain 
Managing Director Whole Time Director 
DIN: 00235276 DIN: 01142103 
 
 
Place: Mumbai 
Dated: 4th September, 2021   



31 of 142

Annexure- 2 
 FORM NO. AOC -2 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

 
Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with 
related parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including 
certain arms length transaction under third proviso thereto. 
 
1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis: Nil 
 

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis 
 

SL. 
No. 

Particulars Details 

       1 Name (s) of the related party & nature of 
relationship 

1. VJTF Buildcon Pvt. Ltd (Subsidiary Company) 
2. VJTF Infraschool Services (Mumbai) Pvt. Ltd 
(Associate Company) 
3. VJTF Construction Pvt. Ltd (Other Associate 
Company) 
4. Pratiksha Foundation Charitable Trust 
5. Witty Global Education Trust 
6. Witty Education Pvt. Ltd. (Other Associate 
Company) 
7. Witty Enterprises Pvt. Ltd. (Other Associate 
Company) 
8. Witty Infratech Private Limited (Other 
Associate Company) 
 9. Dr. Raina Jain (Director of the Company) 
10. Dr. Vinay Jain (Director of the Company) 
 

     2  Nature of 
contracts/arrangements/transaction 

Operational and Management Fees Income, 
Income collected on our behalf by, Lease rent 
expenses, Director’s remuneration, 
Reimbursement of expenses given, Loan given, 
Loan given received back, Payment made on 
behalf of, Payment made on behalf of received 
back, Payment received on behalf of, Payments 
received on behalf of – repaid, 

      3 Duration of the  
contracts/ arrangements/transaction 

Yearly 

      4 Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction including the value, if any 
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Particulars 

YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2021 YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2020 

Subsidiary 
Associate / 

Others 

Key 

Management 

Personnel 

Subsidiary 
Associate 

/ Others 

Key 

Management 

Personnel 

              

Interest Income             

VJTF Infraschool Services 

(Mumbai) Private Limited     

                         

-    

                         

-    

                            

-    

                  

-    

                              

56.84  

                                   

-    

VJTF Buildcon Private 

Limited 

                         

-    

                         

-    

                            

-    

                   

100.10  

               

-    

                                   

-    

              

Operational and 

Management Fees income 
            

Pratiksha Foundation 

Charitable Trust 

                         

-    

                     

2.00  

                           

-    

                          

-    

                                

2.00  

                          

-    

              

Income Collected on our 

behalf by 
            

Pratiksha Foundation 

Charitable Trust 

                         

-    

                     

0.80  

                            

-    

                          

-    

                    

187.10  

                                   

-    

Witty Education Private 

limited 

                         

-    

                         

-    

                            

-    

                          

-    

                            

133.45  

                                   

-    

              

Lease Rent Expenses             

Witty Global Education 

Trust 

                         

-    

                         

-    

                            

-    

                          

-    

                     

60.00  

                                   

-    

Dr.Raina Jain 
                         

-    

                         

-    

                     

2.40  

                          

-    

                                   

-    

                        

2.40  

              

Director's Remuneration 

Expenses 
            

Dr.Vinay Jain 
                         

-    

                         

-    

                       

60.00  

                          

-    

                                   

-    

                              

60.00  

Dr.Raina Jain 
                         

-    

                         

-    

                       

60.00  

                          

-    

                                   

-    

                              

60.00  

              

Reimbursement of 

Expenses given 
            

Pratiksha Foundation 

Charitable Trust 

                         

-    

                    

15.34  

                            

-    

                          

-    

                            

124.91  

                                   

-    

Witty Global Education 

Trust 

                         

-    

                     

8.94  

                            

-    

                          

-    

                                   

-    

                                   

-    
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Witty Education Private 

limited 

                         

-    

                     

7.03  

                            

-    

                      

-    

                              

17.04  

                                   

-    

              

Loans Given             

VJTF Infraschool Services 

(Mumbai) Private Limited     

                         

-    

                     

5.68  

                 

-    

                          

-    

                              

58.76  

                       

-    

VJTF Buildcon Private 

Limited 

                    

10.62  

                         

-    

                            

-    

                   

306.54  

                                   

-    

                                   

-    

              

Loans Given Received 

Back 
            

VJTF Buildcon Private 

Limited 

                  

809.70  

                         

-    

                 

-    

                          

-    

                                   

-    

                      

-    

              

Lease Deposit Given             

Witty Global Education 

Trust 

                         

-    

                    

-    

                            

-    

                          

-    

                            

146.65  

                                   

-    

              

Loans Taken repaid             

VJTF Infraschool Services 

(Udaipur) Private Limited      

                         

-    

                         

-    

                            

-    

                 

-    

                            

679.98  

                                   

-    

              

Payments made on behalf 

of: 
            

Pratiksha Foundation 

Charitable Trust 

                         

-    

                  

541.85  

                            

-    

                          

-    

                         

2,896.36  

                                   

-    

Witty Global Education 

Trust 

                         

-    

                  

159.28  

                            

-    

                          

-    

                            

269.44  

                    

-    

Witty Education Private 

Limited 

                         

-    

                    

50.09  

                            

-    

                          

-    

                                   

-    

                                   

-    

              

Payments made on behalf 

of - received back: 
            

Pratiksha Foundation 

Charitable Trust 

                         

-    

                  

541.85  

                 

-    

                          

-    

                         

2,896.36  

                                   

-    

Witty Global Education 

Trust 

                         

-    

                  

159.28  

                            

-    

                          

-    

                            

122.79  

                   

-    

Witty Education Private 

Limited 

                         

-    

                    

50.09  

                            

-    

                          

-    

                                   

-    

                                   

-    

              

Payments received on 

behalf of: 
            

Pratiksha Foundation 

Charitable Trust 

                         

-    

               

1,613.16  

                            

-    

                          

-    

                            

418.14  

                                   

-    

Witty Education Private 

Limited 

                         

-    

                  

352.97  

                            

-    

                          

-    

                         

1,154.17  

                    

-    
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Witty Global Education 

Trust 

                         

-    

                    

33.04  

                            

-    

                          

-    

                         

106.67  

                                   

-    

VJTF Infraschool Services 

(Udaipur) Private Limited      

                         

-    

                    

10.00  

                            

-    

                          

-    

                         

697.98  

                                   

-    

              

Payments received on 

behalf of - repaid: 
            

Pratiksha Foundation 

Charitable Trust 

                         

-    

               

1,517.84  

                            

-    

                          

-    

                            

321.66  

                                   

-    

Witty Education Private 

Limited 

                         

-    

                  

970.70  

                            

-    

                          

-    

                            

544.86  

                   

-    

Witty Global Education 

Trust 

                         

-    

                    

28.63  

                            

-    

                          

-    

                            

106.67  

                                   

-    

VJTF Infraschool Services 

(Udaipur) Private Limited      

                         

-    

                     

8.32  

                            

-    

                          

-    

                            

133.11  

                                   

-    

              

Security cum Guarantee 

Taken (Amount reduced) 
            

VJTF Constructions Private 

Limited 

                         

-    

                         

-    

                            

-    

                          

-    

                      

25.00  

                                   

-    

Dr Raina Jain 

Dr Vinay Jain                          

-    

                         

-    

                            

-    

                          

-    

                                   

-    

                              

25.00  

              

5 Justification for entering into such 
contracts or arrangements or transaction’s 

In normal course 

6 Date of approval by the Board 31/07/2020 

7 Amount paid as advances, if any -- 

8 Date on which the special resolution was 
passed in General meeting as required 
under first proviso to section 188 

-- 

 
By Order of the Board  
For VJTF Eduservices Limited 
 
 
Sd/-   Sd/-   
Dr. Vinay Jain Dr. Raina Jain 
Managing Director Whole Time Director 
DIN: 00235276 DIN: 01142103 
 
Dated: 04th September, 2021 
Place: Mumbai                               
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Form No. MR-3 

 
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

 
                        FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st March 2021 

 
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 
 

To, 
 

The Members, 
 
   M/s. VJTF Eduservices Limited 
 

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and 
the adherence to good corporate practices by M/s VJTF Eduservices Limited (hereinafter 
called the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a 
reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing 
my opinion thereon. 

 
Based on my verification of the M/S VJTF Eduservices Limited’s  books, papers, minute books, 
forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information 
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the 
conduct of secretarial audit, I, hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the 
audit period covering the F inancial Year ended on 31st March 2021, complied with the 
statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes 
and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting 
made hereinafter: 

 
I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by  VJTF Eduservices Ltd (“the Company”) for the Financial Year ended on 31st 
March, 2021, according to the provisions of: 

 
(i)   The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 

 
(ii)   The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder; 

 
(iii)   The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 

 
(iv)    Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations: 

 
(v)   The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and  
     Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):- 

 
(a) The  Securities  and  Exchange  Board  of  India  (Substantial  Acquisition  of  Shares   

And Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 
 

(b) The   Securities   and   Exchange   Board   of   India   (Prohibition   of   Insider   
Trading) Regulations, 1992; 

 
(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share        

Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with         
Client;

Annexure - 2 
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(Vi) Other laws applicable specifically to the Company, as detailed below; Company is in 
process to surrender its NBFC license due to no business in the company since 2013 with 
the Reserve Bank of India under Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 Rules, regulations and 
guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India as are applicable to the Non Banking 
Financial Company (NBFC). 
 
I have relied on the representation made by the Company and its officers for the systems 
and mechanisms formed by the Company for compliances under the other applicable Acts, 
Laws and Regulations as mentioned by the Company in its Management Representation 
letter. 
 
  I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses: 
 
i) Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.  

 
ii) Listing Agreement and SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulation, 2015 entered into by the Company with the BSE Limited. 
 
During the period under review the Company has generally complied with the 
provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above 
subject to the following specific observations: 

 

1. As per the information provided by the management this year, status of the Company is 
NBFC (Non-Banking Financial Company). Further, the management informed us that they 
are already submit the application with RBI to surrender of NBFC licence. 

 

I further report that 
 
a) The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of 

Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes 
in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under 
review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

 
b) Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and 

detailed notes on agenda were sent in advance, and a system exists for seeking and 
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the 
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

 
c) As per the minutes of the Board duly recorded and signed by Chairman, the decisions of 

the Board were unanimous and no dissenting views have been recorded. 

 

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate 

with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable 

laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 
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Place: Mumbai      Sd/- 
Date:  24th August, 2021    FCS Rajvirendra Singh Rajpurohit 
       FCS No. 11346 
       C P No.: 15891 
       UDIN : F011346C000825346 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
I further report that during the year under report, the Company has not undertaken 
event/action having a major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above 
referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, etc. referred to above. 
 
This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure- 3 and 
forms an integral part of this Report. 
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2. I have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain 
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. 
The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in 
Secretarial records. I believe that the process and practices, I followed provide a 
reasonable basis for our opinion. 
 

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of 
Accounts of the Company. The compliance by the Company of the applicable financial 
laws, like direct and indirect tax laws, has not been reviewed in this Audit, since the 
same have been subject to review by the other designated professionals. 

 
4. Where ever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the 

Compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 
 

5. The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, 
regulations, standards are the responsibility of management. My examination was 
limited to the verification of procedure on test basis. 
 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has 
conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 

Place: Mumbai      Sd/- 
Date:  24th August, 2021    FCS Rajvirendra Singh Rajpurohit 
       FCS No. 11346 
       C P No.: 15891 
       UDIN : F011346C000825346   
      

 

1. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the 
Company; my responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based 
on our audit. 
 

 
To,                                                                                                                                       Annexure - 3 
The Members, 
M/s. VJTF Eduservices Limited 
 
 
Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 
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Annexure-4 
 

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR’S REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
  
 
 To 
 The Members, 
 VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED 
 
 
We have examined the compliance of Corporate Governance by M/s. VJTF Eduservices 
Limited for the year ended March 31, 2021 as stipulated in Schedule V of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 to the extent applicable. 
 
The compliance of various provisions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the 
management. Our examination was limited to the review of the procedures and 
implementations thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring compliance of the 
conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on 
the financial statements of the Company. 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations sought 
and replies given to us by the Management of the Company, We hereby certify that the 
Company has Suo-moto complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as 
stipulated in the above-mentioned Listing Regulations, as applicable. 
 
We state that there was one investor grievances received during the year ended 31st March, 
2021. 
 
We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of 
the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has 
conducted the affairs of the Company. 
 
 
Date – 24th August, 2021 
Place:  Mumbai 
       

 

                                          FOR R S Rajpurohit & Co, 
                                                    Company Secretaries 

             Sd/- 
                                                                FCS Rajvirendra Singh Rajpurohit 

       FCS No - 11346 
       C P No.: 15891 

       UDIN : F011346C000825346 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 
 
A) BUSINESS OVERVIEW 
  
We provide a wide variety of educational services to K-12 schools which include designing 

curriculum, providing teaching aids, supplying methods for imparting education, organizing 

extra-curricular activities for students and teacher training, etc. The Company is already 

providing services to Witty Kids at Goregaon East, Witty International School, Borivali (West), 

Malad West, Udaipur and Bhilwara. The Company has now started providing services to Witty 

Kids, Udaipur and Witty International School, Bhilwara.  

B) OUTLOOK 

The world is still in throes of Covid-19. It will take considerable time for the economy to get on 

its feet and grow in strength. Under such a scenario, it would not be prudent to make any 

definitive forecast or commitment in respect of the Company’s outlook for F.Y.2020-21. 

Government Initiatives 

Some of the other major initiatives taken by the Government are: 

In April 2021, India along with Bangladesh, Brazil, China, Egypt, Indonesia, Mexico, Nigeria and 

Pakistan joined the United Nation’s E9 initiative. E9 initiative is the first of a three-phased 

process to co-create an initiative on digital learning and skills, targeting marginalised children 

and youth, especially girls. The initiative aims to accelerate recovery and advance the 

Sustainable Development Goal 4 agenda by driving rapid change in education systems. 

According to Union Budget 2021-22, the government allocated Rs. 54,873.66 crore (US$ 7.53 

billion) for Department of School Education and Literacy, compared with Rs. 59,845 crore (US$ 

8.56 billion) in Union Budget 2020-21. 

The government allocated an expenditure budget of Rs. 38,350.65 crore (US$ 5.28 billion) for 

higher education and Rs. 54,873 crore (US$ 7.56 billion) for school education and literacy. The 

government also allocated Rs. 3,000 crore (US$ 413.12 million) under Rashtriya Uchchatar 

Shiksha Abhiyan (RUSA). 
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Under the Union Budget 2021-22, the government has placed major emphasis on strengthening 

the country’s digital infrastructure for education by setting up the National Digital Educational 

Architecture (NDEAR). 

In January 2021, in order to mitigate the impact of challenges created due to COVID-19 

pandemic, the Ministry of Education issued guidelines for identification, admission and 

continued education of migrant children. 

On January 15, 2021, the third phase of Pradhan Mantri Kaushal Vikas Yojana (PMKVY) was 

launched in 600 districts with 300+ skill courses. Spearheaded by the Ministry of Skill 

Development and Entrepreneurship, the third phase will focus on new-age and COVID-related 

skills. PMKVY 3.0 aims to train eight lakh candidates. 

In December 2020, the Ministry of Skill Development and Entrepreneurship, in collaboration 

with the Tata Indian Institute of Skills, launched two short-term courses in factory automation. 

Road Ahead 

In 2030, it is estimated that India’s higher education will: 

 combine training methods that involve online learning and games, and is expected to 

grow 38% in the next 2-4 years 

 adopt transformative and innovative approaches in Higher education 

 have an augmented Gross Enrolment Ratio (GER) of 50% 

 reduce state-wise, gender based and social disparity in GER to 5% 

 emerge as the single largest provider of global talent with one in four graduates in the 

world being a product of the Indian higher education system 

 be among the top five countries in the world in terms of research output with an annual 

R&D spend of US$ 140 billion 

 have more than 20 universities among the global top 200 universities 

Various Government initiatives are being adopted to boost the growth of distance education 

market besides focusing on new education techniques, such as E-learning and M-learning. 
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Education sector has seen a host of reform and improved financial outlays in recent years that 

could possibly transform the country into a knowledge haven. With human resource 

increasingly gaining significance in the overall development of the country, development of 

education infrastructure is expected to remain the key focus in the current decade. In this 

scenario, infrastructure investment in the education sector is likely to see a considerable 

increase in the current decade 

The Government of India has taken several steps including opening of IIT’s and IIM’s in new 

locations as well as allocating educational grant for research scholars in most Government 

institutions. Furthermore, with online mode of education being used by several educational 

organisations, the higher education sector in India is set for major change and development in 

the years to come. 

C) PERFORMANCE: 
  
In the following table, please find brief of financials of the Company:  

PARTICULARS 

  

Standalone 

for the year 

ended 31st 

March, 2021 

Standalone for 

the Year ended 

31st March, 

2020 

Consolidated  

for the year 

ended 31st 

March, 2021 

Consolidated 

for the Year 

ended 31st 

March, 2020 

GROSS REVENUE 908.68 1863.66 908.68 1964.71 

PROFIT /(LOSS) BEFORE 

DEPRECIATION/ 

AMORTIZATION EXPENSES 

AND TAXATION 

(243.31) (19.31) (245.39) 81.10 

Less: Depreciation & 

Amortization Expenses 

288.37 392.31 288.37 392.31 

PROFIT /(LOSS)  FOR THE 

Less: Provision for Taxation     

Current Tax -- -- -- 27.00 

Deferred Tax (34.81) 1.31 (34.81) 1.31 

MAT 
Entitlement 

-- 38.89 -- 38.89 

(531.68) (411.62) (533.75) (311.21) 
YEAR BEFORE TAXATION 



43 of 142

Prior Period Taxation 

Adjustment 

-- 6.10 -- 56.03 

3.05 4.60 3.05 4.60 

Adjustment On Account Of 
Disposal Of Stake In 
Subsidiary 

- - - - 

Less: Minority Interest  - (0.36) 4.13 

Add: Brought forward balance 

Balance Carried to Balance 

PROFIT/(LOSS) AFTER TAX (496.87) (457.92) (498.94) (434.44) 

Other Comprehensive 

Income 

58.16 511.49 2472.35 2901.72 
from previous year 

(435.66) 58.16 1979.87 2472.35 
Sheet 

 
D) OPPORTUNITIES & THREATS 
 
The long term shutdown of educational sector and other business operations to contain the 
Covid-19 menace, the resultant liquidity crunch along with the time and resources needed to 
return to normalcy of business operations, are threats that your Company shares with other 
business entities globally. Times of such adversity pose challenges to outperform and your 
Directors and Senior Management of the Company with co-operation and dedication of its 
personnel at all levels stand committed to counter the threats with innovative strategies and 
over extending the reach of technological boundaries. The Company is pro-actively identifying 
and pursuing opportunities by developing new key accounts and focusing on other available 
opportunities. 
 
VJTF has taken proactive steps to identify and prioritize the risks upfront, document them in 
consultation with the business groups and define the risk management framework. The 
Company has laid out internal controls over Financial Reporting to be followed by the 
Company. Such internal financial controls are adequate and operate effectively.  
 
The Company has identified the major and significant risks into two broad categories, External 
Risks and Internal Risks, with mitigation strategies of each. The Company is well-diversified in 
terms of both its service offerings and geographic spread. 
 
RISK & CONCERNS  
 
Your Company’s Board of Directors have put in place adequate risk assessment and risk 
mitigation measures. The Executive Management has an appropriate framework that generates 
confidence of foreseeing and mitigating the risks, which every manufacturing company faces in 
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the form of fluctuations in the supply and pricing of fuel, energy and essential raw material. 
However, no measures are adequate when confronted by force majeure event like Covid-19. 
 
E) INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY: 
 
An appropriate and adequate system of internal controls exist in your company to ensure that 
all assets are safeguarded and protected against loss or from misuse or disposition, and that the 
transactions are authorized, recorded and reported suitably. Internal control systems are 
ensuring effectiveness of operations, accuracy and promptness of financial reporting and 
observance with laws & regulations. 
 
The internal control is supplemented on an ongoing basis, by an extensive program of internal 
audit being implemented throughout the period. The internal audit reports along with 
management comments thereon are review by the Audit Committee of the Board comprising of 
independent and non-executive Directors, on a regular basis. Implementations of the 
suggestions are also monitored by the Audit Committee. The internal control is designed to 
ensure that the financial and other records of the company are reliable for preparing financial 
statements and other data, and for maintaining accountability of assets.  
  
F) HUMAN RESOURCES POLICIES: 
 
It is your company's belief that people are at the heart of corporate & constitute the primary 
source of sustainable competitive advantage. The trust of your company's human resource 
development efforts therefore is to create a responsive and market driven organization. Your 
company continues its focus on strengthening competitiveness in all its business. Your directors 
look forward to the future with confidence. The company has followed a conscious policy of 
providing training to Management Staff through in-house and external programmes, for 
upgrading personal and technical skills in relevant areas of functional disciplines. 
 
G) RISK MANAGEMENT: 

Although  the  company  has  long  been  following  the  principle  of  risk  minimization  as  is  
the  norm  in every industry, it has now become a compulsion.  
 
Therefore,  in  accordance  with  Regulation 21  of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulation, 2015,  the  Board  members  were  informed about  risk  assessment  
and  minimization  procedures  after  which the Board  formally  adopted  steps  for framing,  
implementing  and  monitoring  the  risk  management  plan  for  the  company  through  Audit 
Committee.  
 
The main objective of this policy is to ensure sustainable business growth with stability and to 
promote a pro-active approach in reporting, evaluating and resolving risks associated with the 
business. In order to achieve  the  key  objective,  the  policy  establishes  a  structured  and  
disciplined  approach  to  Risk Management, in order to guide decisions on risk related issues.  
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In  today’s  challenging  and  competitive  environment,  strategies  for  mitigating  inherent  
risks  in accomplishing  the  growth  plans  of  the  Company  are  imperative.  The common  
risks  inter  alia  are Regulations, competition, Business risk, Technology obsolescence, 
Investments, retention of talent and expansion of facilities. 
 
Business Risk, inter alia, further include financial risk, political risk, fidelity risk, legal risk. As a 
matter of policy, these risks are assessed and steps are taken to mitigate the same. 
 
H) CAUTIONARY STATEMENT: 
 
The statements in report of the Board of Directors and the Management Discussion & Analysis 
Report describing the Company’s outlook, estimates or predictions may be forward looking 
statements within the meaning of applicable securities laws and regulations. Actual results 
could differ materially from those expressed or implied since the Company’s operations are 
influenced by many external and internal factors beyond the control of the Company. The 
Company takes no responsibility for keeping the members updated on changes in these factors 
except as may be statutorily required from time to time. 
 
 
 
       By Order of the Board of Directors 
       For VJTF Eduservices Limited 
 
 
 
 
Place:  Mumbai     SD/-   SD/- 
Date: 4th September, 2021    Dr. Vinay Jain  Dr. Raina Vinay Jain 
       Managing Director Whole Time Director 
       DIN- 00235276 DIN-01142103 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 

1. COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY: 
 

Your Company has been practicing the principal of good corporate governance over the years.  
It is committed to follow sound systems to support healthy business growth. The Company 
has complied with the recommendations of the code of corporate governance. Your Company 
is also committed to adherence to highest standards of corporate governance both in letter 
and in spirit. 
 

The Company believes that all its operations and actions must serve the underlying goal of 
enhancing overall shareholder value, over a sustained period of time. 
 

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 
 

1. As on 31st March, 2021, the Company has Six directors. Out of the Six Directors, Four are 
non-executive and independent directors. The composition of the board is in conformity with 
Regulation 17 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and 
Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
2. None of the directors on the board is member of more than ten committees or chairman of 
more than five committees across all the public companies in which he is a director. 
Necessary disclosures regarding committee positions in other public companies as on 31st 

March, 2021 have been made by the directors. 
 
3. Independent directors are non-executive directors as defined under Regulation 16(1)(b) of 
read with 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”). The maximum tenure of the 
independent directors is in compliance with the Act. All the Independent Directors have 
confirmed that they meet the criteria as mentioned under Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with Section 149(6) 
of the Act. 
 
a) Composition and Category: 

 

The Board of Directors of the Company comprises of a fair number of Independent 
Professionally competent and acclaimed Non-Executive Directors as on 31st March, 2021 as 
per the details given as under: 
 
Dr. Vinay Jain      -            Managing Director & Promoter 
 
Dr. Raina Vinay Jain   - Wholetime Director & Promoter 
 
Mr. Vishal Punjabi   - Non-Executive & Independent Director 
 
CA Shivratan Santosh Agarwal - Non-Executive & Independent Director 
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Mr. Hitesh Gunwantlal Vakharia - Non-Executive & Independent Director 
 
Mr. Sourabh Jain   - Non-Executive & Independent Director 
 
Dr. Raina Vinay Jain is the spouse of Dr. Vinay Jain. None of the other directors are related to 
any other director on the Board. 

 
b) Board Meetings, Attendance & committee Memberships: 

 
The name and categories of the Directors on the Board, their attendance at Board Meetings 
during the year and at the last Annual General Meeting, as also the number of Directorships 
and Committee Memberships / Chairmanships held by them in Indian Public Companies 
(including the Company) as at 31stMarch, 2021 are given below: 
 

Name of Director Category of 
Directorship 

Attendance at No. of 
Directorships in 
Public Companies 
(Including the 
company) 

No. of committee 
positions held in 
Public Companies  
(Including the 
Company) 

Board 
Meetin
gs 

Last 
AGM 

 
 
Chairman 

 
Member 

Dr. Vinay Jain Executive & 
Promoter 

4 Yes 1 public limited 
listed company and 1 
(Subsidiary Private 
Limited of a Listed 
Public ltd Company ) 

- 1 

Dr. Raina Vinay Jain 
 

Executive & 
Promoter  

4 Yes 1 public limited 
listed company and 1 
(Subsidiary Private 
Limited of a Listed 
Public ltd Company ) 

1 1 

CA. Shivratan Santosh 
Agarwal 

Non-
Executive & 
Independent 

4 Yes 
 
 
  

1 Public Limited 
Listed Company 

2 3 

Mr.  Hitesh 
Gunwantlal 
Vakharia 

Non-

Executive & 
Independent 

4 Yes 1 Public Limited 
Listed Company 

1 3 

Mr.  Vishal Punjabi Non-
Executive & 
Independent 

4 Yes 1 Public Limited 
Listed Company 

- 1 

Mr. Sourabh Jain Non-
Executive & 
Independent 

2 Yes 1 Public Limited 
Listed Company 

- - 
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c) Number of Board Meetings held and dates on which held: 
 
During the financial year ended 31stMarch, 2021, Four (4) Board Meetings were held and the 
gap between two meetings did not exceed one hundred twenty days. The dates on which the 
said meetings were held: 31/07/2020, 15/09/2020, 11/11/2020 & 12/02/2021. Since Ministry 
has given relaxation vide its General Circular No. 11 /2020 one time relaxation the gap 
between two consecutive meetings of the Board may extend to 180 days till the next two 
quarters, instead of 120 days as required in the CA-13 The Committee has met Four (4) times 
and the gap between two meetings did not exceed four months 
 

 The necessary quorum was present for all the meetings. 

 The terms and conditions of appointment of the independent directors are disclosed 
on the website of the Company. 

 During the year a separate meeting of the independent directors was held inter-alia to 
review the performance of non-independent directors and the board as a whole. 

 The Board periodically reviews compliance reports of all laws applicable to the 
Company, prepared by the Company. 

 
 d) Details of equity shares of the Company held by the Directors as on March 31st, 2021 are 
given below: 

 

Name 
 

Category Number of Equity Shares 

Dr. Vinay Jain Managing Director 60,78,122 
 

Dr. Raina Jain Whole Time Director 51,77,051 
 

 
3. AUDIT COMMITTEE: 
 
A. Composition and attendance  
 
The Audit Committee comprises of Two Non-Executive and One Executive Director, namely 
CA Shivratan Santosh Agarwal (Chairman), Mr. Hitesh Gunwantlal Vakharia and Dr. Vinay Jain 
respectively. 
 
Since Ministry has given relaxation vide its General Circular No. 11 /2020 one time relaxation 
the gap between two consecutive meetings of the Board may extend to 180 days till the next 
two quarters, instead of 120 days as required in the CA-13 The Committee has met Four (4) 
times and the gap between two meetings did not exceed four months. The dates on which 
the said meetings were held are as follows:  
 
31/07/2020, 15/09/2020, 11/11/2020 & 12/02/2021. The Statutory Auditors are Invitees to 
the Meeting. 



49 of 142

Details of attendance of each Director at the Audit Committee Meetings are given below:- 
 

 
B. Terms of Reference  
 
The brief terms of reference of the Audit Committee include: – 
 

 Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its 
financial information to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and 
credible; 

 Recommend the appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of 
the Company; 

 Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the 
statutory auditors; 

 Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditors’ 
report thereon before submission to the board for approval, 

 Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before 
submission to the board for approval; with particular reference to: 
a. Matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be 

included in the Board’s report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section 3 of section 134 
of the Companies Act, 2013 

b. Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same 
c. Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by 

Management 
d. Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit 

findings 
e. Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial 

statements 
f. Disclosure of any related party transactions 
g. Qualifications in the draft audit report 

 

 Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before 
submission to the board for approval; 
 

 Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised 
through an issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of 
funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer document / prospectus 

Name of the Director Position Category Meeting 
attendance 

CA Shivratan Santosh Agarwal Chairman Non-Executive & Independent 
Director 

4 

Mr. Hitesh Gunwantlal Vakharia Member Non-Executive & Independent 
Director 

4 

Dr. Vinay Jain Member Executive Director & Promoter 4 
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/ notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilization 
of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate recommendations to 
the Board to take up steps in this matter; 

 Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness 
of audit process; 

 Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related 
parties; 

 Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments; 

  Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary; 

 Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems; 

 Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, 
adequacy of the internal control systems; 

 Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of 
the internal audit department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the 
department, reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit; 

  Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on; 

 Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into 
matters where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control 
systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the board; 

 Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and 
scope of audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern; 

 To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, 
debenture holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and 
creditors; 

 To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism; 

 Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., the whole-time Finance Director or any other 
person heading the finance function or discharging that function) after assessing the 
qualifications, experience and background, etc. of the candidate;  

 Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit 
Committee. 

 

4. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE: 
 

A. Composition and attendance  
 
The Remuneration committee was reconstituted as The Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee according to the provisions of the Act and Regulation 19 of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The committee comprises of 
three Directors as on 31st March, 2021 i.e. CA. Shivratan Santosh Agarwal (Chairman of the 
Committee), Mr. Vishal Punjabi & Mr. Hitesh Gunwantlal Vakharia are members of the 
committee respectively.  
 
Since Ministry has given relaxation vide its General Circular No. 11 /2020 one time relaxation 
the gap between two consecutive meetings of the Board may extend to 180 days till the next 
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two quarters, instead of 120 days as required in the CA-13 The Committee has met Four (4) 
times and the gap between two meetings did not exceed four months. The dates on which 
the said meetings were held are as follows:  
 
31/07/2020, 15/09/2020, 11/11/2020 & 12/02/2021. The Committee has met Four (4) times 
during the financial year 2020-21. 
 

Name of the Member Position Category Meeting 
attenda

nce 

CA Shivratan Santosh Agarwal Chairman 
Non-Executive & Independent 
Director 

4 

Mr. Hitesh Gunwantlal Vakharia Member Non-Executive & Independent 
Director 

4 

Mr. Vishal Punjabi Member 
Non-Executive & Independent 
Director 

4 

 
B. Terms of Reference  
The broad terms of reference of the nomination and Remuneration Committee are as    
Under: 

 Recommend to the board the set up and composition of the board and its 
committees. Including the “formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, 
positive attributes and independence of a director”. The committee will consider 
periodically reviewing the composition of the board with the objective of achieving an 
optimum balance of size, skills, independence, knowledge, age, gender and 
experience. 

 Recommend to the board the appointment or reappointment of directors. 

 Devise a policy on board diversity. 

 Recommend to the board appointment of key managerial personnel (“KMP” as 
defined by the Act) and executive team members of the Company (as defined by this 
committee). 

 Carry out evaluation of every director’s performance and support the board and 
independent directors in evaluation of the performance of the board, its committees 
and individual directors. This shall include “formulation of criteria for evaluation of 
independent directors and the board”. 

 Recommend to the board the remuneration policy for directors, executive team or key 
managerial personnel as well as the rest of the employees. 

 On an annual basis, recommend to the board the remuneration payable to the 
directors and oversee the remuneration to executive team or key managerial 
personnel of the Company. 

 Oversee familiarization program for directors. 
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 Oversee the human resource philosophy, human resource and people strategy and 
human resource practices including those for leadership development, rewards and 
recognition, talent management and succession planning (specifically for the board, 
key managerial personnel and executive team). 

 Provide guidelines for remuneration of directors on material subsidiaries. 

 Recommend to the board on voting pattern for appointment and remuneration of 
directors on the boards of its material subsidiary companies. 

 Performing such other duties and responsibilities as may be consistent with the 
provisions of the committee charter. 
 

C.  Remuneration Policy: 
 

Subject to the approval of the Board of Directors and subsequent approval by the members at 
the General Meeting and such authorities as the case may be, remuneration of Managing 
Director and Whole time Directors is fixed by the Remuneration Committee. The 
remuneration is decided by the Remuneration Committee taking into consideration various 
factors such as qualifications, experience, expertise, prevailing remuneration in the 
competitive industries, financial position of the company etc., 

 
D. Details of the remuneration to the directors for the year. 

 
During the year remuneration of Executive Directors was Rs. 10 lakh Per month. 

 
No remuneration has been paid to non-executive directors of the company during the year. 
 
E.  Performance Evaluation Criteria for Independent Directors: 
 
The performance evaluation criteria for independent directors are determined by the 
Nomination and Remuneration committee. An indicative list of factors that may be evaluated 
include participation and contribution by a director, commitment, effective deployment of 
knowledge and expertise, effective management of relationship with stakeholders, integrity 
and maintenance of confidentiality and independence of behavior and judgment. 
 
5. STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE: 

 
A. Composition and attendance: 

 

Since Ministry has given relaxation vide its General Circular No. 11 /2020 one time relaxation 
the gap between two consecutive meetings of the Board may extend to 180 days till the next 
two quarters, instead of 120 days as required in the CA-13 The Committee has met Four (4) 
times and the gap between two meetings did not exceed four months. The dates on which 
the said meetings were held are as follows:  
 
31/07/2020, 15/09/2020, 11/11/2020 & 12/02/2021. The Committee has met Four (4) times 
during the financial year 2020-21.  
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The composition and attendance of Stakeholders Relationship Committee as on 31st March, 
2020 is given below. The quorum for functioning of the committee is any two (2) directors 
present. 

Name of the Member Position Category Meeting 
attendance 

Mr. Hitesh Gunwantlal Vakharia Chairman Non-Executive & Independent 
Director 

4 

CA Shivratan Santosh Agarwal Member Non-Executive & Independent 
Director 

4 

Dr. Raina Jain Member Executive Director & Promoter 4 

 
B. Terms of Reference: 
 
The Company has a Stakeholders Relationship Committee to look into redress of Investors 
Complaints and requests such as delay in transfer of shares, non-receipt of Dividend, Annual 
Report, revalidation of Dividend warrants etc., 
The committee deals with various matters relating to: 

 Transfer / transmission of shares 

 Issue of Share certificate in lieu of lost, sub-divided, consolidated, rematerialized or 
defaced certificates. 

 Consolidation / splitting of folios 

 Review of shares dematerialized and all other related matters. 

 Investor’s grievance and redressal mechanism and recommend measures to improve 
the level of investor’s services. 

 
C. Information on Investor Grievances for the period from 1stApril, 2020 to 31stMarch 2021: 

 
There are no outstanding complaints at the close of financial year which were received from 
shareholders during the year. The Company has no transfers pending at the close of the 
financial year. 

 
The total no. of complaints received and complied during the year were: 

 
Opening: Nil 
Complaints Received: Nil 
Complied: Nil 
Pending: Nil 

 
The complaints are generally attended to within seven days from the date of receipt of the 
compliant, as communicated by the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent i.e Skyline Financial 
Services Pvt. Ltd. 

 

The Outstanding complaints as on 31stMarch 2021 – Nil 
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D. Compliance Officer: 
 

Ms. Shruti Sharma is the compliance officer for complying with the requirements of SEBI 
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulation, 1992 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
 
6. Risk Management Committee: 
 
Your Company is well aware of risks associated with its business. The Company manages risk 
through a detailed Risk Management Policy framework which lays down guidelines in 
identifying, assessing and managing risks that the businesses are exposed to. Risk is managed 
by the Board/Risk Management Committee of the Board through appropriate structures that 
are in place at the Company. 
 
7. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS:   
 

a. The last three Annual General Meetings of the Company were held as under: 

YEAR LOCATION DAY AND DATE TIME 

For the year 
ended 31st 

March, 2020 

Witty International School Building, 
Pawan Baug Road, Malad (West), 
Mumbai – 400064 

Tuesday, 29th 
December, 2020 

5.00 P.M. 

For the year 
ended 31st 

March, 2019 

4thFloor, Witty World, Plot No: 165, 
Near Ayappa Temple, Bangur Nagar, 
Goregaon (W), Mumbai – 400104 

Monday, 30th 
September, 2019 

2.30 P.M. 

For the year 
ended 31st 

March, 2018 

4thFloor, Witty World, Plot No: 165, 
Near Ayappa Temple, Bangur Nagar, 
Goregaon (W), Mumbai – 400104 

Saturday, 29th 
September, 2018 

2.30 P.M. 

 
b. Extra Ordinary General Meeting 
There was No Extra Ordinary General Meeting during the financial year ended on 31st March, 
2021. 
 

c. Special Resolution 
There were 3 special resolutions passed during the year 2020-21 in the AGM held on 29th 
December, 2020 under review. 

 
d. Details of special resolution passed through postal ballot, the persons who conducted the 
postal ballot exercise and details of the voting pattern: 
The Company did not pass any special through Postal Ballot during the year 2020-21 under 
review. 
 
e. Whether any special resolution is proposed to be conducted through Postal Ballot: 
 No resolutions are proposed to be conducted. 
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8. DISCLOSURES 
 
a. Related Party transactions 

 
During the period under review, besides the transactions reported in the Notes to Accounts to 
the Financial Statements, there were no other related party transactions of material nature with 
the promoters, Directors, the management or their subsidiaries or relatives during the year that 
may have potential conflict with the interest of the company at large. 

The board has approved a policy for related party transactions which has been uploaded on 
the Company’s website at the following link-   
 
http://vjtf.com/investor-relations/related-parties-transaction-policy 

 
b. Details of non-compliance by the Company, penalties and strictures imposed on the 
Company by the Stock Exchange(s) or SEBI or any statutory authority, on any matter related 
to capital markets, during the last three years: 
 
During the year there were no penalty imposed by ant statutory and regulatory authorities. 
 
c. Accounting treatment in preparation of Financial Statements 
 
The guidelines/ accounting standards laid down by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India (ICAI) and prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 have been followed 
in preparation of the financial statements of the Company in all material aspects. 
 

d. The Company has adopted a whistle blower policy and has established the necessary vigil 
mechanism for employees and directors to report concerns about unethical behavior. No 
person has been denied access to the chairman of the audit committee. The said policy has 
been also put up on the website of the Company at the following link- 
 
http://www.vjtf.com/investor-relations/whistle-blower-policy 
 
e. Reconciliation of share capital audit: 
 
A qualified practicing Company Secretary carried out a share capital audit to reconcile the 
total admitted equity share capital with the national securities depository limited (NSDL) and 
the Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) and the total issued and listed equity 
share capital. The audit report confirms that the total issued / paid-up capital is in agreement 
with the total number of shares in physical form and the total number of dematerialized 
shares held with NSDL and CDSL. 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.vjtf.com/investor-relations/whistle-blower-policy
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f. Code of Conduct 
 
Your Company has laid down a Code of Conduct (“Code”) for all the Board Members and 
Senior Management Personnel of the Company. The Code is available on the website of the 
Company at the following link- http://www.vjtf.com/investor-relations/code-of-conduct. 
 
All Directors and Senior Management Personnel of the Company have affirmed compliance 
with the Company’s Code of Conduct for the financial year ended March 31, 2021. 
 
g. Familiarization on Program imparted to Independent Director is available on the website of 
the Company (URL: http://www.vjtf.com/investor-relations) 
 
h. Compliance with Discretionary requirements under Listing Regulations: The Board of 
Directors periodically reviewed the compliance of all applicable laws and steps taken by the 
Company to rectify instances of non-compliance, if any. The Company is in compliance with 
all mandatory requirements of Listing Regulations. In addition, the Company has also adopted 
the following non-mandatory requirements to the extent mentioned below:  
 

i) Audit qualifications: Company’s financial statements are unqualified. 
 

ii) Reporting of Internal Auditor: The Internal Auditor of the Company directly 
reports to the Audit Committee on functional matters. 

 
The Company has submitted quarterly compliance report on Corporate Governance with the 
Stock Exchanges, in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 27(2)(a) of the SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
 
9. SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 
 
The audit committee reviews the consolidated financial statements of the Company and the 
investments made by its unlisted subsidiary company. The minutes of the board meetings 
along with a report on significant developments of the unlisted subsidiary companies are 
periodically placed before the board of directors of the Company. 
 
The Company has a policy for determining ‘material subsidiaries’ which is disclosed on its 
website at the following Link- 
http://www.vjtf.com/investor-relations/policy-for-determining-material-subsidiaries 
 

11. MEANSOF COMMUNICATION:   

Financial Result Un-audited / Audited News Papers 

First Quarter Un-audited Active Times & Mumbai Lakshadeep 

Second Quarter Un-audited Active Times & Mumbai Lakshadeep 

http://www.vjtf.com/investor-relations/code-of-conduct
http://www.vjtf.com/investor-relations
http://www.vjtf.com/investor-relations/policy-for-determining-material-subsidiaries
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Third Quarter Un-audited Active Times & Mumbai Lakshadeep 

Fourth Quarter Audited Active Times & Mumbai Lakshadeep 

 
The financial results are also displayed on the website of the Company www.vjtf.com.  

Note: Un-audited Financial Results were intimated to Stock Exchanges within 45 days of first 
three quarters and Audited Financial Results for the last quarter / financial year ending within 
120 days of close of financial year. This relaxation is given by the SEBI in the Covid 19 Pandemic. 

12. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION: 

(i) Day, Date and Time: Thursday, 30th September, 2021 at 3:00 PM  

Venue:  Witty World, Romell Aether Layout, Off. Vishveshwar Nagar Rd, Near Umiyamata 

Temple, Goregaon  East, Mumbai – 400 063 

(ii) Financial Year 

Year Ending                                                           :        31ST March, 2021 

AGM on                                                                 :         Thursday, 30th September, 2021 

 (iii) Financial Calendar 2020-21  

Results for the quarter ending 30th June 2020  :      3rd week of September, 2020 

Results for the quarter ending 30th Sep, 2020  :      2nd week of November 2020 

Results for the quarter ending 31st Dec 2020   :      2nd week of February 2020 

Results for the quarter & year ending 31st March 2021 :      4th week of June 2021 

 
(iv) Book Closure Date  :    24th September, 2021 to 30th September, 2021 
           (Both the days inclusive)  
(v) Registered Office :    Witty International School, Pawan Baug Road, Malad 

     West, Mumbai-400064. 
(vi) Equity shares listed on  :    BSE Limited 
 
Stock Exchanges 25th Floor, P. J. Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai 400 001  
Note: The Annual listing fees as prescribed have been already paid to the BSE Limited, 
Mumbai, for the year 2020-21. 
 
(vii) Company Registration Details: 
 

The Corporate Identity Number (CIN) : L80301MH1984PLC033922 
 

Trading Symbol at BSE Limited  : Scrip Code: 509026  
 

Scrip ID          : VJTFEDU 
     
Demat ISIN Number in NSDL & CDSL  : Equity Shares INE117F01013 

http://www.vjtf.com/
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(viii) Bombay Stock Exchange Stock Market Data (in Rs. / per share): 
 

Period High (Rs.) Low (Rs.) 

April, 2020 60.00 53.70 

May, 2020 56.35 53.00 

June, 2020 55.70 47.50 

July, 2020 58.50 54.80 

August, 2020 57.00 54.50 

September, 2020 54.00 54.00 

October, 2020 54.00 53.75 

November, 2020 56.70 54.00 

December, 2020 58.70 58.70 

January, 2021 58.95 54.10 

February, 2021 56.00 54.10 

March, 2021 58.00 55.10 

ix) Distribution of Shareholdings as on 31stMarch, 2021: 

 
(x) Registrars and Transfer Agents: 

(Share transfer and communication 
regarding share certificates,   
dividends and change of address) 

Skyline Financial Services Private Limited 
Add: D-153 A, 1st Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, 
Phase-I, New Delhi - 110 020. 
Tel No. 011-26812682/83 
Fax No. 011-26812682 
Email: atul@skylinerta.com/admin@skylinerta.com 

  
(xi) SHARE TRANSFER SYSTEM: 
 
Presently, the share transfers in physical form are processed and the share certificates 
returned within a period of 15 from the date of receipt, subject to the documents being clear 

Shares Holding of 
nominal value of 

Shareholders Total Number of shares 

Rs.              Rs. Number % total Number % of total 

 Up  To 5,000 162 67.78 118190.00 0.07 

 5001 To 10,000 13 5.44 1135100.00 0.64 

 10001 To 20,000 9 3.77 140330.00 0.08 

 20001 To 30,000 3 1.26 76510.00 0.04 

 30001 To 40,000 1 0.42 34000.00 0.02 

 40001 To 50,000 2 0.84 100000.00 0.06 

 50001 To 1,00,000 1 0.42 52500.00 0.03 

 1,00,000 and Above 48 20.08 175364960.00 99.64 

 Total  239 100.00 176000000 100.00 

mailto:admin@skylinerta.com
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in all respects. The Company has, as per SEBI guidelines with effect from 11th Feb, 2004 
discontinued the facility of transfer cum de-mat, so company dispatches the share certificates 
to transferee. In case, the transferee wishes to dematerialize the share, he / she can approach 
a Depository Participant (DP) with the share certificates.  The D.P. will based on Demat 
Request Form (DRF) & Certificate generate a De-mat request, which they will send to 
Company’s Registrar along with DRF & share certificate on receipt of the same Company’s 
Registrar will dematerialize the shares within 21 days of De-mat request received. 
 
(xii)  SHARE HOLDING AS ON 31st MARCH 2021: 
 

Category No. of Shares Percentage of Total Capital 

Promoters 1,13,03,973 64.23 

Private Corporate Bodies 17,33,438 09.85 

Resident Individuals 40,78,348 23.17 

Others 4,84,241 02.75 

Total  1,76,00,000 100.00 

 
(xiii) LIST OF TOP 10 SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY AS ON 31.03.2021 
 

SR. 
NO. 

Name of Shareholder No. of Shares Held Percentage (%) 

1. Sam Financial Services 1604649 9.12 

2. Badri Baldawa 1084995 6.16 

3. Sachin Jayantilal Porwal 396170 2.25 

4. Sharda Popatlal Porwal 275000 1.56 

5. Mahesh Ratilal Gathani 250000 1.42 

6. Jayant Ratilal Gathani 250000 1.42 

7. Swati Anil Porwal 212500 1.21 

8. Mamta Sachin Porwal 187500 1.07 

9. Kalawati Prithviraj Kothari 160000 0.91 

10. Anilkumar Popatlal Porwal 150000 0.85 

 
(xiv) DEMATERIALISATION OF SHARES: 
 
Approximately 99.50% the Equity Shares have been dematerialized upto 31st March, 2021. 
 
Trading in Equity shares of the Company is permitted only in dematerialized form w.e.f. 26th 
June, 2000 as per notification issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI). 
 
(xvi) INVESTOR CORRESPONDENCE FOR TRANSFER / DEMATERILISATION OF SHARES AND 
ANY OTHER QUERY RELATING TO THE SHARES OF THE COMPANY: 
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For Shares held in Physical form 
 

For Shares held in De-mat Form 

Skyline Financial Services Limited 
Add: D-153A, 1stFloor, Okhla Industrial 
Area, Phase-1 , New Delhi – 110020 
Tel: (011) 30857575, Fax : (011) 
30857562 

To Depository Participant 
or  

Skyline Financial Services Limited 
Add: D-153A, 1st Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, 
Phase-1 , New Delhi- 110020 
Tel: (011) 30857575,  

Fax : (011) 30857562 

  

Any query on Annual Report  
 

VJTF Eduservices Limited 
Witty International School, Pawan Baug Road, Malad 

West, Mumbai – 400 064. 
Email Id : vjtfho@vjtf.com 

 

(xvii) Address for Correspondence 
 
Witty International School, Pawan Baug Road, Malad West, Mumbai – 400 064. 
 
DECLARATION REGARDING COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF CONDUCT AS PER REGULATION 17 
OF SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015. 
 
In accordance with SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015 
with the Stock Exchanges, I hereby confirm that, all Board Members and Senior Management 
Personnel of the Company have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct, as applicable 
to them, for the financial year ended 31st March, 2021.    
 
 
 
Date: 4th September, 2021         
Place: Mumbai 

                                                                                       Sd/- 
                                                                                                        Dr. Vinay Jain 

                                                                                                                  Managing Director 
                                                                                               DIN- 00235276 
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CEO CERTIFICATION 

 
To, 
The Board of Directors 
M/s. VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED 
 
Dear Sir, 
 

A. We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year 
ended 31st March 2021 and to the best of our knowledge and belief that:  
 

(1) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any 
material fact or contain statements that might be misleading;  
 

(2) these statements together present a true and fair view of the listed entity‘s 
affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws 
and regulations.  

 
B. There are, to the best of the knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by 

the listed entity during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the 
Company’s code of conduct.  
 

C. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for 
financial reporting and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control 
systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to 
the auditors and the audit committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of 
such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or 
propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.  

 
D. We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee  

(1) significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;   
(2) significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have 

been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and  
(3) instances of significant fraud of which they have become aware and the 

involvement therein, if any, of the management or an employee having a 
significant role in the listed entity‘s internal control system over financial 
reporting.  

 

        For VJTF Eduservices Limited 

Dated: 4th September, 2021     Sd/- 

Place: Mumbai      Dr. Vinay Jain                         
        Managing Director 
        DIN:00235276 
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     INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 
To the Members of M/s. VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED 
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

 
Opinion 

 
1. We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of  VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED 

(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, and the statement of Profit 
and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of 
Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.  

 

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian 
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021, and loss, changes in 
equity and its cash flows for the year then ended. 

 

Basis for opinion 

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of 
the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of 
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for opinion. 

 

Emphasis of Matters 

 

4. We draw Attention to Note 32 to the standalone financial statements, which describe the uncertainty 
caused by Novel Corona virus (COVID-19). Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.  

 

Key Audit Matters 

 
5. Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in 

our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed 
in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our 
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined that 
there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report. 

 

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon 

6. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report 
including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and 
Shareholder’s Information report, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our 
auditor’s report thereon. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
To the Members of VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED 
Report on the Standalone Financial Statements 
 

7. Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do 
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

8. In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated.  

 

9. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this 
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

 
Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial statements 

10. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act 
with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view 
of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in 
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting 
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act  This responsibility also includes maintenance of 
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the 
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and 
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable 
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, 
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true 
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

11. In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to 
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

12. The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 

13. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not 
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 
taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.  

14. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, 
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The 
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or 
the override of internal control.  

 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are 
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness 
of such controls. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
To the Members of VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED 
Report on the Standalone Financial Statements 
 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in 
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures 
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained 
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the 
Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

  

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 
15. Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually 

or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of 
the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and 
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; 
and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial statements. 

16. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit.  

17. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and 
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, 
related safeguards. 

18. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters 
that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period 
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law 
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, 
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse 
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of 
such communication. 

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements  

19. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” 
a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

20. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.  

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so 
far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive income, the 
Statement of Changes in Equity and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the books of account 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.  
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
To the Members of VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED 
Report on the Standalone Financial Statements 
 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2021 
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 
2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.  

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in 
“Annexure B”. 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with the 
requirements of Section 197 (16) of the act, as amended: 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the 
provisions of Section 197 of the Act. 

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us: 

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its 
standalone financial statements - Refer Note 33 and 44 to the financial statements. 

 
ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which 

there were any material foreseeable losses.  
 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2021. 

 

 
For J. Kala & Associates 
Firm Registration Number: 118769W 
Chartered Accountants 
 
 
Sd/- 
 

Vaibhav Patodi 
Partner 
Membership Number: 420935 
UDIN: 21420935AAAADK7970 
 
Place: Mumbai  
Date: 30th June 2021 
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Annexure A to Independent Auditors’ Report 
 
Referred to in Paragraph 19 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of VJTF 
Eduservices Limited on the financial statements as of and for the year ended 31st March 2021 
 

 
 

 

i.  (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative 
details and situation of property, plant and equipment (fixed assets). 

 
 (b) The Company has a regular program of physical verification of its property, plant and 

equipment (fixed assets) by which all assets are verified in a phased manner, over a period of 
three years. However, due to COVID 19 related restrictions, the Management was not able to 
perform year end physical verification of fixed assets as per the phased program. According to 
the information and explanations given to us, management does not expect any material 
discrepancy as an when the physical verification is carried out. 

 
 (c) The Company does not own any immovable properties. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(i) 

(c) of the said Order are not applicable to the Company. 
 

ii.  The Company is in the business of rendering services, and consequently, does not hold any 
inventory. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(ii) of the said Order are not applicable to the 
Company. 

   
iii.  The company has granted unsecured loans to two companies covered in the register maintained 

under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013: 
  

(a) The rate of interest and other terms and conditions on which the loans have been granted 
are not, prima facie, prejudicial to the interest of the company.  
 

(b) We have been informed that repayment of principal and payment of interests are on 
demand. In our opinion and based on the information and explanations provided to us, we 
did not notice any delay in repayment of principal and payment of interest as demanded by 
the company, during the year.  

 
(c) There are no amounts overdue for more than ninety days in respect of the loans granted. 
 
(d) However, reference is also invited to what is stated at Note no. 44. 

 
iv.  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has 

not granted any loans or provided any guarantees or security in connection with any loan to any 
party covered under Section 185 of the Act except those mentioned in Note 36 of accompanying 
financial statements. In respect of loans granted and security cum guarantee given, the 
provisions of Section 186 of the Act have been complied with. However, the Company has not 
made any Investments during the year. 

  
v. The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73, 

74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the extent notified. 
 
vi.       The Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records under sub-

section (1) of Section 148 of the Act for any of the products of the Company. 
 
vii.  (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company 

examined by us, in our opinion, there are inordinate delays in depositing the undisputed 
statutory dues, including Provident Fund, Income Tax, Goods & Service Tax, Cess and other 
material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities. 
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  There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Income Tax, Goods 

and Service Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2021 for a 
period of more than six months from the date they became payable, except for Stamp Duty of Rs. 
144 lakhs and TDS of Rs. 0.61 lakhs (subsequently paid). 

 
(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company 

examined by us, there are dues of Income Tax which have not been deposited on account of any 
dispute, are as follows: 
                                                                      (Rs in lakhs) 

Name of 
Statute 

Nature of 
Disputed dues 

Amount under 
dispute  

Period to 
which amount 

relates 

Forum where 
dispute is  
pending 

Income  Tax 
Act,1961 

Income tax 38.60 FY 2016-17 Commissioner 
of Income Tax 
(Appeals)  

 
  
viii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has 

not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings (other than loans covered by moratorium) 
from financial institutions and banks, except for minor delays. As the Company has not 
borrowed any money from Governments or issued any Debentures, the question of dues payable 
to them does not arise. 

 
ix. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the term loans 

have been applied for the purpose for which those were obtained. However, the Company has 
neither raised any moneys by way of Initial Public Offer or Further Public Offer (including debt 
instruments). 

 
x. During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company which was 

carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according 
to the information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of 
material fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees, noticed or 
reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the Management. 

 
xi. The Company has paid or provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the 

requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act. 
 
xii.       As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the 

provisions of Clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 
 

xiii. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the 
records of the Company, transactions with related parties are in compliance with Section 177 
and 188 of the Act, wherever applicable and details have been disclosed in the Financial 
Statements (Refer Note 36) as required under Indian Accounting Standard (IND AS) 24, Related 
Party Disclosure specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules 2014. 
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xiv.   The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or 

partly convertible debentures during the year under review. Accordingly, the provisions of 
Clause 3(xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 
 

xv.    The Company has not entered into any non cash transactions with its directors or persons 
connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable 
to the Company. 

 
xvi.    The Company had applied vide its Letter dated 4th February. 2019 to the Reserve Bank of India 

for surrender of existing registration number 13.00998 dated 5th September, 1998 for which 
their confirmation / approval is still awaited. However, the Company is not required to be 
registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 

 
 
  
 
For J. Kala & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration Number: 118769W 

 
 

Sd/- 
Vaibhav Patodi 
Partner 
Membership Number: 420935 
 
Place: Mumbai  
Date: 30th June, 2021 
UDIN: 21420935AAAADK7970 



69 of 142

Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Report 
 
Referred to in paragraph 20 (f) of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of 
VJTF Eduservices Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 
2021 
 

 
 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under Clause (i) 
of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act. 
 
1. We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of VJTF 

EDUSERVICES LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the 
standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

 
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
 
2.  The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 

controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its 
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under 
the Act. 

 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
 
3.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with 

reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) 
and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act to the 
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal 
financial controls and both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that 
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was 
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.  

 
4.  Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 

internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating 
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, 
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and 
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of 
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

 
5.  We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 

for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to financial 
statements. 

 
 
 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements 
 

6.  A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed 
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
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financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes 
those policies and procedures that  

 
a) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 

transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 
 

b) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation 
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that 
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations 
of management and directors of the company; and  
 

c) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the 
financial statements. 

 
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements 
 
7.   Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial 

statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods 
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control controls with reference to financial 
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

 

Opinion 
 

8.  In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls 
system with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal control 
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

 
For J. Kala & Associates 
Firm Registration Number: 118769W 
Chartered Accountants 

 
Sd/- 
Vaibhav Patodi 
Partner 
Membership Number: 420935 
 
Place: Mumbai  
Date: 30th June 2021 
UDIN: 21420935AAAADK7970 
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 (Rs. in Lakh)  (Rs. in Lakh) 

A ASSETS

1    NON CURRENT ASSETS

       a) Property, Plant and Equipment 2 505.66                        648.47                                    

       b) Goodwill on Amalgamation 936.53                        936.53                                    

       c) Right of Use Assets 3 2,529.29                     2,677.12                                 

       d) Financial Assets

i. Investments

a) Subsidiary and Associate 4 (i) 795.95                        795.95                                    

b) Others 4 (ii) 0.92                            0.92                                        

ii. Other Financial Assets 5 2,058.53                     1,890.00                                 

       e)  Deferred Tax Assets / Liabilities (net) 6 3.95                            -                                          

       f)  Income Tax Assets (net) 7 19.57                          17.22                                      

6,850.40                     6,966.21                                 

2    CURRENT ASSETS

       a) Financial Assets

i.  Trade Receivables 8 37.62                          8.05                                        

ii. Cash and Cash Equivalents 9 46.35                          44.01                                      

iii.  Loans 10 513.73                        1,309.44                                 

iv.  Other Financial Assets 11 316.29                        314.49                                    

       b) Other Current Assets 12 5.62                            10.85                                      

919.61                        1,686.84                                 

TOTAL 7,770.01                     8,653.05                                 

B EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

1    EQUITY 

       a) Equity Share Capital 13 1,760.00                     1,760.00                                 

       b) Other Equity 14 (435.65)                       58.16                                      

1,324.35                     1,818.16                                 

2    LIABILITIES

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

       a)  Financial Liabilities

i.  Borrowings 15 658.36                        605.96                                    

ii.  Lease Liabilities 16 2,594.43                     2,590.75                                 

iii.  Other Financial Liabilities 17 62.09                          67.20                                      

       b)  Provisions 18 32.47                          26.97                                      

       c)  Deferred Tax Assets / Liabilities (net) 6 -                              29.78                                      

3,347.35                     3,320.67                                 

CURRENT LIABILITIES

       a)  Financial Liabilities

i.   Borrowings 19 288.50                        354.99                                    

ii. Trade Payables 20 223.90                        143.30                                    

iii.  Lease Liabilities 21 55.97                          49.67                                      

iv. Other Financial Liabilities 22 642.47                        1,039.18                                 

       b)  Other Current Liabilities 23 1,886.52                     1,926.51                                 

       c)  Provisions 24 0.95                            0.58                                        

3,098.31                     3,514.22                                 

TOTAL 7,770.01                     8,653.05                                 

Summary of significant Accounting policies 1

The accompany notes from an internal part of the Financial 

statements
1-48

AS PER OUR ATTACHED REPORT OF EVEN DATE FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
FOR J.KALA & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm Registration No. 118769W Sd/- Sd/-

DR. VINAY JAIN DR. RAINA JAIN

DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

Sd/- DIN No. 00235276     DIN No. 01142103

VAIBHAV PATODI

PARTNER

Membership No. 420935 Sd/- Sd/-

SHRUTI SHARMA CA MANOJ JAIN

PLACE :  MUMBAI COMPANY SECRETARY CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

DATE : 30th June 2021

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2021

(CIN No. L80301MH1984PLC033922)

VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED

 PARTICULARS  NOTES 

 AS AT 

31ST MARCH, 2021 

 AS AT 

31ST MARCH, 2020 
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 (Rs. in Lakh)  (Rs. in Lakh) 

I INCOME

Revenue from Operations 25 500.90                            1,452.95                             

Other Income 26 407.78                            410.71                                

TOTAL INCOME 908.68                            1,863.66                             

II EXPENSES

Employee Benefits Expense 27 406.54                            535.45                                

Finance Costs 28 489.55                            696.18                                

Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 2 288.37                            392.31                                

Other Expenses 29 255.90                            651.34                                

TOTAL EXPENSES 1,440.36                         2,275.28                             

III Loss Before Tax (I-II) (531.68)                           (411.62)                              

IV Tax Expense : 

a) Prior Period Taxation Adjustments -                                  6.10                                    

b) MAT Credit (Entitlement)/Reversal -                                  38.89                                  
c) Deferred Tax (34.81)                             1.31                                    

(34.81)                             46.30                                  

V Loss for the year (III-IV) (496.87)                           (457.92)                              

VI Other Comprehensive Income

a) (i) Items that will not be reclassified to Profit and Loss

        Re-measurement Gain on defined benefit plans 4.12                                6.21                                    

    (ii) Income tax relating to above items (1.07)                               (1.61)                                  

b) (i) Items that will be reclassified to Profit and Loss -                                  -                                     

    (ii) Income tax relating to above items -                                  -                                     

3.05                                4.60                                    

Total Comprehensive Income for the year (V+VI) (493.82)                           (453.32)                              

Basic and Diluted Earnings per share (in Rs.) (2.82)                               (2.60)                                  

 (nominal value of Equity Share Rs. 10)

Summary of significant Accounting policies 1

The accompany notes from an internal part of the Financial 

statements 1-48

AS PER OUR ATTACHED REPORT OF EVEN DATE FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

FOR J.KALA & ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Firm Registration No. 118769W

Sd/- Sd/-

DR. VINAY JAIN DR. RAINA JAIN

Sd/- DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

VAIBHAV PATODI DIN No. 00235276     DIN No. 01142103

PARTNER

Membership No. 420935

Sd/- Sd/-

PLACE : MUMBAI SHRUTI SHARMA CA MANOJ JAIN

DATE : 30th June 2021 COMPANY SECRETARY CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

 FOR THE YEAR 

ENDED 

31ST MARCH, 2021 

 FOR THE YEAR 

ENDED 

31ST MARCH, 2020 

VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED

 STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021 

 PARTICULARS  NOTES 

(CIN No. L80301MH1984PLC033922)
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PARTICULARS

 FOR THE YEAR 

ENDED 

31ST MARCH, 2021 

 FOR THE YEAR 

ENDED 

31ST MARCH, 2020 

(Rs. in Lakh) (Rs. in Lakh)
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :

Net Loss before Tax  (531.68)                        (411.62)                        

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 288.37                          392.31                         

Accrued liability for Gratuity 10.00                            2.70                             

Sundry Balances and Provisions no longer required written back (12.19)                          (2.42)                            

Sundry Balances written off 1.39                              1.97                             

Lease liability written back on rent concession (208.86)                        -                               

Profit on Lease Termination -                               (66.74)                          

Interest Income on Loans given (177.74)                        (325.22)                        

Finance Costs 489.55                          696.18                         

(141.16)                        287.16                         

Movements in Working Capital

Increase in Trade Receivables (29.57)                          (6.01)                            

Increase in Financials and other assets (Current & Non-Current) (166.48)                        (193.57)                        

Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables, Liabilities and Provisions (335.99)                        1,886.13                      

Cash flow / (used in) Operations (673.20)                        1,973.71                      

Income tax paid (Net) (0.08)                            (13.74)                          

Net cash flow/ (used in) Operating Activities (673.28)                        1,959.97                      

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :

Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment (Net) -                               (15.80)                          

Loans Given -                               (266.55)                        

Loans given received back 795.70                          -                               

Interest Received on Loans given 177.74                          325.22                         

Net cash flow from Investing Activities 973.44                          42.87                           

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds from Borrowings 133.26                          400.00                         

Repayment of Borrowings (160.38)                        (1,300.12)                     

Payment of lease liabilities (97.88)                          (417.65)                        

Finance Costs paid (172.82)                        (696.51)                        

Net cash used in Financing Activities (297.82)                        (2,014.28)                     

Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents ( A+B+C ) 2.34                              (11.45)                          

Add: Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 44.01                            55.46                           

46.35                            44.01                           

 Notes : 

1. The above Cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method set out in IndAS - 7 Statement of Cash Flows.

2. Previous year's figures have been regrouped/rearranged wherever necessary to conform to this years classification.

AS PER OUR ATTACHED REPORT OF EVEN DATE FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

FOR J.KALA & ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Firm Registration No. 118769W Sd/- Sd/-

DR. VINAY JAIN DR. RAINA JAIN

DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

DIN No. 00235276     DIN No. 01142103

Sd/- 

VAIBHAV PATODI

PARTNER Sd/- Sd/-

Membership No. 420935 SHRUTI SHARMA CA MANOJ JAIN

COMPANY SECRETARY CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

PLACE :  MUMBAI

DATE : 30th June 2021

VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

(CIN No. L80301MH1984PLC033922)

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 

Operating (Loss) / Profit before Working Capital changes
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A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Particulars Rs. in Lakh

As at 31st March, 2019 1,760.00          

Increase / Decrease during the year -                   

As at 31st March, 2020 1,760.00          

Increase / Decrease during the year -                   

As at 31st March, 2021 1,760.00          

B. OTHER EQUITY

(Rs. in Lakh)

Other Comprehensive 

Income

General 

reserve

Retained 

earnings

Remeasurement of net 

defined benefit plans

As at 31st March, 2019 200.00             252.20          59.29                                   511.49                                   

Loss for the year -                   (457.92)        -                                       (457.92)                                 

Other comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) -                   -               4.60                                     4.60                                       

As at 31st March, 2020 200.00             (205.72)        63.89                                   58.17                                     

Loss for the year -                   (496.87)        -                                       (496.87)                                 

Other comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) -                   -               3.05                                     3.05                                       

As at 31st March, 2021 200.00             (702.59)        66.94                                   (435.65)                                 

AS PER OUR ATTACHED REPORT OF EVEN DATE FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

FOR J.KALA & ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Firm Registration No. 118769W Sd/- Sd/-

DR. VINAY JAIN DR. RAINA JAIN

DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

Sd/- DIN No. 00235276     DIN No. 01142103

VAIBHAV PATODI

PARTNER

Membership No. 420935 Sd/- Sd/-

SHRUTI SHARMA CA MANOJ JAIN

PLACE : MUMBAI COMPANY SECRETARY CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

DATE : 30th June 2021

VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED

  STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

Particulars Total

Reserves and surplus

(CIN No. L80301MH1984PLC033922)
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2 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Rs. in Lakh)

Plant and 

Machinery

Furniture 

and Fixtures
Vehicles  Buses 

Office 

Equipments

School 

Equipments

 Electrical 

Equipments 

 Air 

Conditioner 
 Computer  Total 

Gross Carrying Amount

Balance as at 31st March, 2019 3.79               11.02           72.71        906.03        17.57               2.17                1.67                   8.77                  0.58                1,024.29      

Additions -                 -               -            15.80          -                   -                  -                     -                    -                  15.80           

Disposals -                 -               -            (1.95)           -                   -                  -                     -                    -                  (1.95)            

Balance as at 31st March, 2020 3.79               11.02           72.71        919.87        17.57               2.17                1.67                   8.77                  0.58                1,038.13      

Additions -                 -               -            -              -                   -                  -                     -                    -                  -               

Disposals -                 -               -            (2.27)           -                   -                  -                     -                    -                  (2.27)            

Balance as at 31st March, 2021 3.79               11.02           72.71        917.60        17.57               2.17                1.67                   8.77                  0.58                1,035.86      

Accumulated Depreciation

Balance as at 31st March, 2019 0.82               9.82             11.61        209.17        11.51               0.85                1.46                   3.61                  0.52                249.36         

Expense for the year 0.28               0.47             9.11          127.55        3.11                 0.43                0.03                   1.21                  0.06                142.25         

Disposals -                 -               -            (1.95)           -                   -                  -                     -                    -                  (1.95)            

Balance as at 31st March, 2020 1.10               10.29           20.73        334.76        14.62               1.28                1.50                   4.82                  0.58                389.66         

Depreciation adjusted in opening -                 -               -            -              -                   -                  -                     -                    -                  -               

Expense for the year 0.28               0.32             9.09          126.93        2.29                 0.39                0.03                   1.21                  -                  140.54         

Disposals -                 -               -            -              -                   -                  -                     -                    -                  -               

Balance as at 31st March, 2021 1.38               10.61           29.82        461.69        16.91               1.67                1.53                   6.03                  0.58                530.20         

Net Carrying Amount

Balance as at 31st March, 2019 2.97               1.20             61.09        696.86        6.06                 1.32                0.21                   5.16                  0.06                774.93         

Balance as at 31st March, 2020 2.69               0.73             51.98        585.11        2.95                 0.89                0.18                   3.95                  (0.00)               648.47         

Balance as at 31st March, 2021 2.41               0.41             42.89        455.91        0.66                 0.50                0.14                   2.74                  -                  505.66         

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

Particulars
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1 (A).  CORPORATE INFORMATION:

VJTF Eduservices Limited (the Company) was incorporated on 03
rd
September, 1984 having registered office at Mumbai.The Company has established itself as

an emerging player in the Education Services Segment. The Company provides services to Operational Education Projects. The Company also provides required

auxiliary / support services to other companies in the Education Sector and future prospects of the Company looks promising.

1 (B).  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

1.  Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements:

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to as the 'Ind AS') as notified by

Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting standards) Rules as

amended from time to time  and other related provisions of the Act. 

The financial statements of the Company are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting and Historical cost convention except for the following material items

that have been measured at fair value as required by the relevant Ind AS:

(i)   Certain financial assets and liabilities

(ii)  Defined benefit employee plan 

The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements. All assets and liabilities have been classified as current

or non current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Act.

The financial statements are presented in INR, the functional currency of the Company. 

2.  Use of Estimates and judgments:

The preparation of the financial statements requires the Management to make, judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets

and liabilities, disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the

reporting period. The recognition, measurement, classification or disclosure of an item or information in the financial statements is made relying on these

estimates. The estimates and judgements used in the preparation of the financial statements are continuously evaluated by the management and are based on

historical experience and various other assumptions and factors (including expectations of future events) that the management believes to be reasonable under

the existing circumstances. Actual results may differ from those estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in current and

future periods.

Critical accounting judgements and key source of estimation uncertainty 

The Company is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from

other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. The estimates

and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. The areas involving critical estimates or judgments are:

(a) Recognition and measurement of defined benefit obligations, key actuarial assumptions  

(b) Estimation of fair value of financial instruments

(c) Estimated credit loss of trade receivables

(d) Estimation of current tax expenses and payable

3. Property, plant and equipment (PPE):

Property, plant and equipment is stated at acquisition cost net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. 

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting

trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling

and removing the item and restoring the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of

property, plant and equipment. Subsequent expenditure Subsequent costs are included in the assets carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as

appropriate only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and that the cost of the item can be reliably

measured.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Property, plant and equipment which are not ready for intended use as on the date of Balance Sheet are disclosed as “Capital work-in-progress”.

4. Intangible assets:

Intangible assets (other than goodwill on amalgamation)  are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

(CIN No. L80301MH1984PLC033922)
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5.  Investment Property:

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Company, is classified as investment property.

Investment property is measured at its cost, including related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs less depreciation and impairment if any.

6. Depreciation and Amortization:

(a) Property plant and equipment (PPE) and Investment Property

Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis on a straight line method based on estimated useful life prescribed under Schedule II to the Act. The residual

values, useful lives and method of depreciation of property, plant and equipment is reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if

appropriate. 

(b) Intangible assets

Intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of their expected useful lives. The amortisation period and the amortisation method is

reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

7.  Financial Instruments: 

(a) Financial assets:

I. Initial recognition:

Financial assets are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. On initial recognition, a financial asset is

recognised at fair value, in case of Financial assets which are recognised at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL), its transaction cost are recognised in the

statement of profit and loss. In other cases, the transaction cost are attributed to the acquisition value of the financial asset.

II. Subsequent measurement:

Financial assets are subsequently classified as measured at:

 - amortised cost

 - fair value through profit & loss (FVTPL)

 - fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

The above classification is being determined considering the:

 - the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and 

 - the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset. 

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their recognition, except if and in the period the group changes its business model for managing financial

assets. 

(i) Measured at amortised cost: 

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost, if these financial assets are held within a business module whose objective is to hold these assets

in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified date to cash flows that are solely payments of

principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

(ii) Measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): 

Financial assets other than equity instrument are measured at FVTPL unless it is measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI on initial recognition. Such financial

assets are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value, including interest income and dividend income if any, recognised in the Statement of Profit and

Loss. 

(iii) Measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI): 

Financial assets are measured at FVTOCI, if these financial assets are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual

cash flows that give rise on specified dates to solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding and by selling financial assets. Fair

value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). Interest income measured using the Effective Interest Rate method and impairment

losses, if any are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. On derecognition, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the

equity to ‘other income’ in the Statement of Profit and  Loss

III. Equity instruments: 

On initial recognition, the Company can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to present the subsequent changes in fair value in

other comprehensive income pertaining to investments in equity instruments. This election is not permitted if the equity investment is held for trading. These

elected investments are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from

changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the ‘Reserve for equity instruments through other comprehensive income’.

The cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss on disposal of the investments. 

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss when the Company’s right to receive the dividends is

established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does not represent a recovery of part of

cost of the investment and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably. Dividends recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss are included in the ‘Other

income’ line item.
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IV. Impairment:

The Company recognises a loss allowance for Expected Credit Losses (ECL) on financial assets that are measured at amortised cost and at FVOCI. The credit

loss is difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to an entity in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to

receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate. This is assessed on an individual or collective basis after considering all

reasonable and supportable including that which is forward looking.

The Company’s trade receivables or contract revenue receivables do not contain significant financing component and loss allowance on trade receivables is

measured at an amount equal to life time expected losses i.e. expected cash shortfall, being simplified approach for recognition of impairment loss allowance.

Under simplified approach, the Company does not track changes in credit risk. Rather it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on the lifetime ECL at

each reporting date right from its initial recognition. The Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on the portfolio of trade

receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivable and is adjusted for forward

looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

For financial assets other than trade receivables, the Company recognises 12–months expected credit losses for all originated or acquired financial assets if at

the reporting date the credit risk of the financial asset has not increased significantly since its initial recognition. The expected credit losses are measured as

lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on financial asset increases significantly since its initial recognition. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of

the instrument improves such that there is no longer significant increase in credit risks since initial recognition, then the Company reverts to recognizing

impairment loss allowance based on 12 months ECL. The impairment losses and reversals are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. For equity

instruments and financial assets measured at FVTPL, there is no requirement of impairment testing.

V. Derecognition:

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers rights to receive cash

flows from an asset, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained

substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent

of the Company’s continuing involvement. 

In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights

and obligations that the Company has retained.

(b) Financial Liabilities 

I. Initial Recognition and measurement 

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. Financial liabilities are initially

recognised at fair value net of transaction costs for all financial liabilities not carried at fair value through profit or loss. The Company’s financial liabilities

includes trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts.

II. Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost are subsequently measured at using EIR method. Financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss

are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

III. Loans & Borrowings:

After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized

in profit & loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through EIR amortization process.

IV. Financial Guarantee Contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that requires a payment to be made or to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs

because the specified debtors fails to make payment when due in accordance with the term of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognized

initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. 

V. De-recognition 

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced

by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or

modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is

recognized in the statement of profit or loss. 

VI. Offsetting of financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the

recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 
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8.  Fair Value Measurement:

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives, investments at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be 

received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement 

is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

(a) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

(b) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions

that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest

and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. The Company uses valuation techniques that are

appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and

minimising the use of unobservable inputs. All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised

within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

(i) Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

(ii) Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

(iii) Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between

levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of

each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the

asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

9 Cash and Cash equivalents:

Cash and Cash equivalents include cash and Cheque in hand, bank balances, demand deposits with banks and other short-term highly liquid investments that

are readily convertible to known amounts of cash & which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value where original maturity is three months or less.

Outstanding bank overdrafts are adjusted in cash and cash equivalents as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

10 Foreign Currency Transactions:

a) Initial Recognition

Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the transaction. Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange

transactions settled during the year are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss of the year. 

b) Measurement of Foreign Currency Items at the Balance Sheet Date

Foreign currency monetary items of the Company are restated at the closing exchange rates. Non monetary items are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing

on the date of the transaction.  Exchange differences arising out of these transactions are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

11 Revenue Recognition:

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration which the Company

expects to receive in exchange for those products or services. Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration received or

receivable, adjusted for estimated customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances. Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers. The Company

earns revenue primarily from providing educational services.

Income from Services (Educational Activities)

Revenues from services rendered are recognized pro-rata on accrual basis over the period of the contract as and when services are rendered or performance

obligation are satisfied. 

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Company performs by transferring goods or

services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is

conditional.

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration (or an amount of

consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services, a contract liability is recognised when

the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of the

consideration is due). 
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Rent

Rental Income is recognised on a time proportion basis as per the contractual obligations agreed with the respective tenant.

Interest

Revenue is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the interest rate applicable and based on effective interest rate 

method.

Dividend

Dividend Income is recognized when right to receive the same is established.

12. Borrowing Cost:

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets are capitalized as a part of

Cost of that assets, during the period till all the activities necessary to prepare the Qualifying assets for its intended use or sale are complete during the period of

time that is required to complete and prepare the assets for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time

to get ready for their intended use or sale. Other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

13. Taxes on Income:

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the statement of profit and loss except to the extent it relates to items

directly recognized in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax:

Current tax is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit is different from accounting profit due to temporary differences between accounting and tax

treatments, and due to items that are never taxable or tax deductible. Tax provisions are included in current liabilities. Interest and penalties on tax liabilities are

provided for in the tax charge. The Company offsets, the current tax assets and liabilities (on a year on year basis) where it has a legally enforceable right and

where it intends to settle such assets and liabilities on a net basis or to realise the assets and liabilities on net basis.

Deferred tax:

Deferred income tax is recognized using the balance sheet approach. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for deductible and taxable

temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in financial statements. Deferred income tax asset are

recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of

unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are not recognised where it is more likely than not that the assets will not be

realised in the future.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient

taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the

tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or

substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Minimum Alternative Tax (‘MAT’) credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal

income-tax during the specified period. The Company reviews the same at each balance sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of MAT credit

entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that Company will pay normal income-tax during the specified period.

14. Employee Benefits:

(a) Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which

the employees render the related service are recognized in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts

expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

(b) Post-employment obligations

The Company has following post-employment plans:

(i) Defined benefit plans such a gratuity and

(ii) Defined contribution plans such as Provident fund

(i) Defined-benefit plan:

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plan is the present value of defined benefit obligations at the end of

the reporting period less fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligations is calculated annually by actuaries through actuarial valuation using the

projected unit credit method.

The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and loss:

(a) Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailment and non-routine settlements; 

(b) Net interest expense or income
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The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets. This cost is

included in employee benefit expenses in the statement of the profit & loss.

Re-measurement comprising of actuarial gains and losses arising from 

(a) Re-measurement of Actuarial (gains)/losses

(b) Return on plan assets, excluding amount recognized in effect of asset ceiling

(c) Re-measurement arising because of change in effect of asset ceiling are recognised in the period in which they occur directly in Other comprehensive

income. Re-measurement are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Ind AS 19 requires the exercise of judgment in relation to various assumptions including future pay rises, inflation and discount rates and employee and

pensioner demographics. The Company determines the assumptions in conjunction with its actuaries, and believes these assumptions to be in line with best

practice, but the application of different assumptions could have a significant effect on the amounts reflected in the income statement, other comprehensive

income and balance sheet. There may be also interdependency between some of the assumptions.

(ii) Defined-contribution plan:

Under defined contribution plans, provident fund, the Company pays pre-defined amounts to separate funds and does not have any legal or informal obligation

to pay additional sums. Defined Contribution plan comprise of contributions to the employees’ provident fund with the government, superannuation fund and

certain state plans like Employees’ State Insurance and Employees’ Pension Scheme. The Company’s payments to the defined contribution plans are recognised

as expenses during the period in which the employees perform the services that the payment covers.

15. Leases:

Where the Company is Lessee

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to

control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether:

(i)                  the contract involves the use of an identified asset;

(ii)                the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease; and

(iii)               the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements

in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases,

the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior

to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated

depreciation and impairment losses.

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these

options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset.

Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable.

For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an

individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount

is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest

rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease liabilities are

remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a

termination option.

Lease liability shown under Other Financial Liabilities and right of use asset is shown in Plant property and equipment as lease Asset (Right of use)

and lease payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

Where the Company is Lessor

Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term unless the receipts are

structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the expected inflationary cost increases. The respective leased assets are included

in the balance sheet based on their nature.
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16. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the group has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable

that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the Company from a contract are lower than the unavoidable costs A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may probably not require an outflow of resources

or an obligation for which the future outcome cannot be ascertained with reasonable certainty. When there is a possible or a present obligation where the

likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in financial statements.

17. Impairment of Non-Financial Assets:

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortization and are tested annually for impairment, or more frequently if

events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances

indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss for the amount by which the asset’s

carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the

purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest level for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely dependent of

the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed

for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period. After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the

asset over its remaining useful life.

18. Investment in Subsidiaries, Joint-ventures and Associate:

Investment in equity shares of subsidiaries, joint-venture and associate are recorded at cost and reviewed for impairment at each reporting date.

19. Earnings Per Share:

Basic earnings per shares are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss after tax for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average

number of equity shares outstanding during the period. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable

to the equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity

shares.
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No. of Shares Rs. in Lakh No. of Shares Rs. in Lakh

4 (i) INVESTMENTS (Non-Current)

Investment in equity instruments (Unquoted)

Subsidiaries and Associate (At cost, fully paid up)

  a) Subsidiaries

 VJTF Buildcon Private Limited* 10 865,000 313.70 865,000 313.70

  b) Associate

 VJTF Infraschool Services (Mumbai) Private Limited 

(Formerly: VJTF Infrastructure Private Limited) 
1,638,217 482.25 1,638,217 482.25

Total (i) 795.95 795.95

4 (ii)  Others (At cost, fully paid up)

 Malad Sahakari Bank Ltd.  10 100 0.01 100 0.01

 Mangal Co-op. Bank Ltd.  50 1,810 0.91 1,810 0.91

Total (ii) 0.92 0.92

GRAND TOTAL (i + ii) 796.87 796.87

Aggregate amount of quoted investments at market value -                      -                      -                    -                     

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments at cost -                      796.87                -                    796.87               

Aggregate amount of impairment in the value of investments -                      -                      -                    -                     

VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED

 AS AT 

31st MARCH, 2020 

 Face Value 

Per Share 

 AS AT 

31st MARCH, 2021 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

(CIN No. L80301MH1984PLC033922)

* Pleadged in favour of a Housing Finance Company against borrowings of a related party, Witty Enterprises Private Limited.
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 AS AT

31st MARCH, 2021 

 AS AT

31st MARCH, 2020 

 Rs. in Lakh  Rs. in Lakh 

3         RIGHT OF USE ASSETS

a) Gross block

Opening Gross Block 2,876.22                                    -                                                   

Additions -                                             4,077.70                                          

Disposals -                                             (1,201.48)                                         

Closing Gross Carrying Value 2,876.22                                    2,876.22                                          

b) Accumulated Depreciation

Opening Accumulated Depreciation 199.10                                       -                                                   

Expense for the year 147.83                                       250.05                                             

Disposals -                                             (50.95)                                              

Closing Depreciation/amortisation                                                       346.93                                       199.10                                             

 Net block (a-b) 2,529.29                                    2,677.12                                          

5         OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Non-Current)

(Unsecured, Considered Good)

Security deposits given to

Related parties 2,007.24                                    1,830.11                                          

Others 51.29                                         59.89                                                

2,058.53                                    1,890.00                                          

6         DEFERRED TAX ASSETS / LIABILITIES (NET)

Deferred tax liabilities (Refer note below for component and movement) (41.74)                                        (75.47)                                              

MAT credit entitlement 45.69                                         45.69                                                

3.95                                           (29.78)                                              

Component and movement of deferred tax assets / (liabilities) : (Rs. in Lakh)

 Property, Plant 

and Equipment 

 Financial Assets 

/ Liabilities 

 Unabsorbed 

depreciation 
 Others 

At 31st March, 2019 (188.48)             83.28                   26.19                            6.46                                           (72.55)                                              

(Charged) / Credited:

- to profit or loss (755.58)             721.25                 30.71                            2.31                                           (1.31)                                                

- to other comprehensive income -                    -                       -                               (1.61)                                          (1.61)                                                

At 31st March, 2020 (944.06)             804.53                 56.90                            7.16                                           (75.47)                                              

(Charged) / Credited:

- to profit or loss 33.67                 (43.03)                  41.56                            2.60                                           34.80                                                

- to other comprehensive income -                    -                       -                               (1.07)                                          (1.07)                                                

At 31st March, 2021 (910.39)             761.50                 98.46                            8.69                                           (41.74)                                              

7         INCOME TAX ASSETS (NET)

19.57                                         17.22                                                

19.57                                         17.22                                                

8         TRADE RECEIVABLES

(Unsecured, Considered Good)

Due for a period exceeding six months from the date they became due for payment 0.10                                           -                                                   

Others 37.52                                         8.05                                                  

37.62                                         8.05                                                  

9         CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Balances with banks:

       On current accounts 34.74                                         23.16                                                

Cash on hand 11.61                                         20.85                                                

46.35                                         44.01                                                

Particulars

Income Tax Receivable (Net of provision of Rs.13.79 Lakh, As at 31st March, 2020 - Rs. 45.99 Lakhs)

VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED

(CIN No. L80301MH1984PLC033922)

 Total Deferred Tax Assets / 

(Liabilities) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

Deferred tax for temporary differences attributable to
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 AS AT

31st MARCH, 2021 

 AS AT

31st MARCH, 2020 

 Rs. in Lakh  Rs. in Lakh 

VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED

(CIN No. L80301MH1984PLC033922)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

10       LOANS

(Unsecured, Considered Good)

Loans and advances (in the nature of Loans) to related parties 512.92                                       1,306.32                                          

Loans and advance to employees 0.81                                           2.12                                                  

Loans and advances to others -                                             1.00                                                  

513.73                                       1,309.44                                          

11       OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Current)

(Unsecured, Considered Good Unless Otherwise Stated )

Receivable against sale of asset 306.95                                       306.95                                             

Other receivables* 9.34                                           7.54                                                  

316.29                                       314.49                                             

*Net of Provision for doubtful advances of Rs. NIL (As at 31st March, 2020 - Rs. 51.25 Lakhs)

12       OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Prepaid Insurance 1.92                                           10.77                                                

Prepaid Expenses 3.70                                           0.08                                                  

5.62                                           10.85                                                

13       EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

(A) Authorised

2,000.00                                    2,000.00                                          

2,000.00                                    2,000.00                                          

(B) Issued, subscribed and paid up

1,760.00                                    1,760.00                                          

Total issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital 1,760.00                                    1,760.00                                          

(C) Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

Number Rs. in Lakh Number Rs. in Lakh

At the beginning of the year 17,600,000          1,760.00                      17,600,000                                1,760.00                                          

Changes during the year -                       -                               -                                             -                                                   

Outstanding at the end of the year 17,600,000          1,760.00                      17,600,000                                1,760.00                                          

(D) Terms, Rights and Preferences attached to Equity Shares 

(E) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company 

Number  % of holding Number  % of holding 

Vinay Dharamchand Jain 6,078,122            34.53                            6,078,122                                  34.53                                                

Raina Vinay Jain 5,177,051            29.42                            5,177,051                                  29.42                                                

Sam Financial Services Private Limited 1,604,649            9.12                              1,604,649                                  9.12                                                  

Badri Baldawa 1,084,995            6.16                              1,084,995                                  6.16                                                  

As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020

1,76,00,000 (31st March, 2020 - 1,76,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up

2,00,00,000 (31st March, 2020 - 2,00,00,000) Equity Shares of  Rs. 10 each

Each holder of Equity Shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Shareholders have right to receive interim dividends declared by the Board of Directors and Final dividend

proposed by the Board of Directors and approved by the Shareholders.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the Shareholders will be entitled in proportion to the number of Equity Shares held by them to receive remaining assets of the

Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. However, presently there are no such preferential amounts.

The Shareholders have all other rights as available to equity Shareholders as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, read together with the Memorandum and Articles

of Association of the Company, as applicable.

As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020
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14       OTHER EQUITY

General reserve 200.00                                       200.00                                             

Retained earnings (702.59)                                      (205.72)                                            

Other comprehensive income 66.94                                         63.89                                                

(435.65)                                      58.16                                                

Nature and purpose of other equity and reserves :

15       BORROWINGS (Non-Current)

Secured

Term Loans from

       Aditya birla finance limited (Non-banking financial institution-NBFC) 383.62                                       384.13                                             

ECLGS (Emergency Credit Line Guarantee Scheme) Loans from

Aditya birla finance limited (Non-banking financial institution-NBFC) 66.78                                         -                                                   

Kotak Bank 37.16                                         -                                                   

HDFC Bank 30.13                                         -                                                   

Vehicle Loans from Banks and NBFCs

(Secured by way of hypothecation of motor vehicles purchased there against)

Kotak Bank 24.63                                         72.89                                                

HDFC Bank 103.91                                       132.51                                             

     Daimler Financial Services India Pvt. Ltd. 12.13                                         16.43                                                

658.36                                       605.96                                             

Rate of Interest ,Details of Security and Term of Repayment of Term Loans 

 Aditya birla finance limited (Non-banking financial institution-NBFC) 

Rate of Interest ,Details of Term of Repayment of ECLGS (Emergency Credit Line Guarantee Scheme) Loans

Kotak Bank

HDFC Bank

 Vehicle Loans 

Repayable by Rate of Interest Bank Name

September 20th, 2022 8.41%  Kotak Bank 13.53                                         32.37                                                

June 20th, 2022 and May 20th, 2022 8.76%  Kotak Bank 6.77                                           26.10                                                

June 20th, 2022 and April 20th, 2022 8.76%  Kotak Bank 4.33                                           14.42                                                

September 5th, 2023 9.67%  HDFC Bank 103.91                                       132.51                                             

128.54                                       205.40                                             

 Vehicle Loan- Daimler Financial Services India Pvt. Ltd.

Carries interest at 8.25% p.a. The loan is repayable in 48 monthly installments (including 12 months principal moratorium period) commencing from July, 2020 and ending on

June, 2024. Existing Securities of vehicle loans extended to this loan.

Carries interest at 12.50% p.a. The Term loan is secured by Equitable Mortgage of Immovable properties of Associates Company and personally guaranteed by the Directors.

The loan is repayable in 120 monthly installments commencing from January, 2020 and ending on September, 2030.

Carries interest at 7.50% p.a.. The loan is repayable in 60 monthly installments ending on January, 2023. 

General Reserve: General Reserves are created out of profits and kept aside for general purpose and financial strengthening of the company, they don’t have any special

purpose to fulfill and can be used for any purpose in future. 

Aditya birla finance limited (Non-banking financial institution-NBFC)

Carries interest at 13% p.a. The ECLGS loan is secured by Equitable Mortgage of Immovable properties of Associates Company. The loan is repayable in 48 monthly

installments (including 12 months principal moratorium period) commencing from October, 2020 and ending on September, 2024.

Carries interest at 8% p.a. The loan is repayable in 48 monthly installments (including 12 months principal moratorium period) commencing from August, 2020 and ending on

July, 2024. Existing Securities of vehicle loans extended to this loan.
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16       LEASE LIABILITIES (NON-CURRENT)

 Lease Liabilities* 2,594.43                                    2,590.75                                          

2,594.43                                    2,590.75                                          

17       OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Security Deposits from Employees 62.09                                         67.20                                                

62.09                                         67.20                                                

18       PROVISIONS (Non-Current)

Provision for employee benefits

Gratuity 32.47                                         26.97                                                

                                          32.47                                                 26.97 

19       BORROWINGS (Current)

 Loan from bodies corporate*                                           35.58                                               105.58 

 Overdraft from Bank** 252.92                                       249.41                                             

                                        288.50                                               354.99 

    *(Navnidhi Commerce Private Limited Rate of interest - 12% p.a., Previous year - 12% p.a. and

        Samriddhi Finserve India Private Limited Rate of interest - 18% p.a., Previous year - nil)

    **(Rate of interest 11.25% p.a, Previous year 11.25% p.a.)

20       TRADE PAYABLES

223.90                                       143.30                                             

223.90                                       143.30                                             

 

21       LEASE LIABILITIES (CURRENT)

 Lease Liabilities* 55.97                                         49.67                                                

55.97                                         49.67                                                

22       OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (CURRENT)

Current Maturities of Non-Current Borrowings* 239.75                                       252.79                                             

Interest Accrued but not Due 4.69                                           4.68                                                  

 Payable to a Related Party 214.44                                       732.44                                             

Due to Employees 183.59                                       49.27                                                

642.47                                       1,039.18                                          

23       OTHERS CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Statutory Dues 191.99                                       248.56                                             

 Payable to a Related Party 566.55                                       564.87                                             

 Advance received against sale of assets 15.00                                         15.00                                                

Contract Liability* (Fees Received in advance) 1,112.98                                    1,098.08                                          

*(For details - Refer Note 42 ) 1,886.52                                    1,926.51                                          

24       PROVISIONS (CURRENT)

Provision for employee benefits

Gratuity 0.95                                           0.58                                                  

0.95                                           0.58                                                  

*(For details of Securities- Refer Note 15 herein above)

 (Unsecured, Repayable on Demand) 

 Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 

*(For details - Refer Note 34 below)

*(For details - Refer Note 34 below)
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 FOR THE YEAR 

ENDED 31ST 

MARCH, 2021 

 FOR THE YEAR 

ENDED 31ST 

MARCH, 2020 

Rs. in Lakh Rs. in Lakh

25 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Sale of Services (Educational Activities) - Refer Note 42

     Course and Other Fees 500.90                          1,452.95                 

500.90                          1,452.95                 

26 OTHER INCOME

Interest Income on:

Loans Given -                               165.48                    

Bank Fixed Deposit 0.61                              0.32                        

Unwinding of Interest (Income) 177.13                          159.42                    

Income Tax Refund -                               0.03                        

Lease liability written back on rent concession 208.86                          -                          

Profit on Lease Termination -                               66.74                      

Sundry Balances and Provisions no longer required written back 12.19                            2.42                        

Miscellaneous Income 8.99                              16.30                      

407.78                          410.71                    

27 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

Salaries, Wages and Bonus 395.35                          523.01                    

Contribution to Provident Fund 1.18                              2.17                        

Gratuity Expense 10.00                            8.90                        

Staff Welfare 0.01                              1.37                        

406.54                          535.45                    

28 FINANCE COSTS 

Interest Expense on:

      Borrowings 160.38                          185.65                    

      Leased Liability 316.72                          455.51                    

      Delayed Payment of Statutory dues 8.95                              13.39                      

Other Borrowing Cost:

      Loan Processing Fees 3.50                              6.45                        

      Unwinding of Interest (Expense) -                               35.18                      

489.55                          696.18                    

VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

(CIN No. L80301MH1984PLC033922)
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 FOR THE YEAR 

ENDED 31ST 

MARCH, 2021 

 FOR THE YEAR 

ENDED 31ST 

MARCH, 2020 

Rs. in Lakh Rs. in Lakh

29 OTHER EXPENSES

Auditors' Remuneration:

       Audit Fees 4.13                              4.13                        

Advertisement and Publicity 4.23                              33.36                      

Electricity 21.06                            30.37                      

Events and Programmes 0.01                              3.70                        

Filing Fees 0.14                              0.03                        

House Keeping Expenses 4.95                              21.41                      

Insurance 9.19                              26.36                      

Kids Welfare Activities 38.86                            76.79                      

Legal and Professional 36.28                            40.77                      

Office Expenses 74.90                            99.54                      

Postage, Telegram, Telephone and Internet 1.06                              1.98                        

Printing and Stationery 7.93                              18.09                      

Rates and Taxes 3.04                              23.67                      

Rent -                               2.40                        

Repairs and  Maintenance 0.65                              7.84                        

Security Charges 20.15                            24.67                      

Teaching Honorarium -                               0.28                        

Travelling Expenses 0.03                              15.23                      

Vehicle Expenses 19.66                            163.53                    

Water Charges 0.37                              2.58                        

Bank Charges 1.39                              1.57                        

Cafeteria Expenses 6.42                              48.91                      

Sundry balances Written off 1.39                              1.97                        

Miscellaneous Expenses 0.05                              2.16                        

Irrecoverable advance written off 51.25      

Less: Related provision written back (51.25)     -                               -                          

255.90                          651.34                    

VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

(CIN No. L80301MH1984PLC033922)
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 FOR THE YEAR 

ENDED 

31ST MARCH, 2021 

 FOR THE YEAR 

ENDED 

31ST MARCH, 2020 

Rs. in Lakh Rs. in Lakh

(a) Tax expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Prior Period Taxation Adjustments -                                  6.10                                

MAT Credit (Entitlement)/Reversal -                                  38.89                              

Deferred Tax (34.81)                             1.31                                

Total tax expense (34.81)                             46.30                              

(b) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's tax rate:

Profit before income tax expense (531.68)                           (411.62)                          

Enacted income tax rate in India applicable to the Company 26.00% 26.00%

Tax expenses on profit before tax at the enacted income tax rate (A) (138.24)                           (107.02)                          

Tax effects of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating taxable income (B)

Permanent Disallowances 2.33                                3.53                                

Prior Period Taxation Adjustments -                                  6.10                                

MAT Credit (Entitlement)/Reversal -                                  38.89                              

Deferred tax asset not recognised on unabsorbed losses 101.37                            40.60                              

Others (0.26)                               64.20                              

Current tax expense recognised in profit or loss (A+B) (34.81)                             46.30                              

Effective tax rate 6.55% -11.25%

31

(Rs. in Lakh)

Current Non-current Current Non-current

Gratuity 0.95                        32.47                    0.58                                26.97                              

Total

Gratuity (Post-employment obligations)

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit obligation over the year are as follows:

(Rs. in lakh)

 Present value of 

obligation 

Fair value of plan 

assets

 Net amount

(UNFUNDED) 

Present value of 

obligation

 Fair value of plan 

assets 

 Net amount

(UNFUNDED) 

As at the beginning of the year 27.55                   -                       27.55                      24.86                    -                                  24.86                              

Current service cost 8.13                     -                       8.13                        7.04                      -                                  7.04                                

Past service cost -                       -                       -                          -                        -                                  -                                 

Interest expense 1.87                     1.87                        1.86                      1.86                                

Excess provision written back -                       -                          -                        -                                 

Total amount recognized in profit 

or loss
10.00                   -                       10.00                      8.90                      -                                  8.90                                

Remeasurements:

(Gain)/loss from change in 

assumptions
0.21                     -                       0.21                        2.82                      -                                  2.82                                

Experience gains (4.33)                    -                       (4.33)                       (9.03)                     -                                  (9.03)                              

Total amount recognised in other 

comprehensive income
(4.12)                    -                       (4.12)                       (6.21)                     -                                  (6.21)                              

Benefit payments -                       -                       -                          -                        -                                  -                                 

As at end of the year 33.43                   -                       33.43                      27.55                    -                                  27.55                              

(CIN No. L80301MH1984PLC033922)

VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED

33.43                                                       27.55                                                                        

The Company provides for gratuity as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous service for a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The

Company does not fund the liability and maintains a target level of funding to be maintained over a period of time based on estimations of expected gratuity payments.

Liabilities with regard to the Gratuity Plan are determined by actuarial valuation on the reporting date using Projected Unit Credit method.

Income tax expenses

This note provides an analysis of the Company's income tax expense and how the tax expense is affected by non-assessable and non-deductible items. It also explains

significant estimates made in relation to the Company's tax positions.

Particulars

    NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  FOR YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

Employee benefit obligations

 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

31ST MARCH, 2021 

 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

31ST MARCH, 2020 

    FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021     FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020

Particulars
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The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:

Particulars

Discount rate

Salary growth rate

The sensitivity of the overall plan liabilities with respect to key assumptions (Rs. in lakh)

 Increase in 

assumption 

 Decrease in 

assumption 
 Increase in assumption  Decrease in assumption 

Discount rate 31.44                      35.62                    25.91                              29.35                              

Salary growth rate 35.54                      31.51                    29.28                              25.97                              

The defined benefit obligations shall mature after year end 31st March, 2021 as follows (Rs. in lakh)

Particulars

Year 1 0.95                      

Year 2 4.20                      

Year 3 1.25                      

Year 4 1.34                      

Year 5 1.38                      

Thereafter 10.80                    

The average outstanding term of the obligations (Years) as at valuation date is 13.88 years.

32 Global Health Pandemic from COVID – 19 (“Covid – 19”)

33 Contingent liabilities not provided for in respect of:  FOR THE YEAR 

ENDED 

31ST MARCH, 2021 

 FOR THE YEAR 

ENDED 

31ST MARCH, 2020 

(Rs. in lakh) (Rs. in lakh)

Disputed Income Tax matters* 81.02                              39.33                              

Corporate Guarantees/Securities given 25,017.35                       25,017.35                       

* Note: Include demand of Rs.42.42 Lakh (previous year Rs.Nil) for the assessment year 2018-19 vide order dated 24
th
 May, 2021.

  
34 Leases

 FOR THE YEAR 

ENDED 

31ST MARCH, 2021 

 FOR THE YEAR 

ENDED 

31ST MARCH, 2020 

(Rs. in Lakh) (Rs. in Lakh)

Opening balance 2,640.42                         3,776.37                         

Additions during the year -                                  -                                 

Interest accrued during the year 316.72                            455.51                            

Deletions -                                  (1,173.81)                       

Lease liability written back on rent concession (208.86)                           -                                 

Lease payments (97.88)                             (417.65)                          

Closing Balance 2,650.40                         2,640.42                         

Out of above:

      Current Lease Liabilities 55.97                              49.67                              

      Non Current Lease Liabilities 2,594.43                         2,590.75                         

 FOR THE YEAR 

ENDED 

31ST MARCH, 2021 

 FOR THE YEAR 

ENDED 

31ST MARCH, 2020 

(Rs. in Lakh) (Rs. in Lakh)

Not later than one year 191.40                            124.20                            

Later than one year and not later than five years 881.70                            1,193.10                         

Later than five years 7,604.30                         7,596.43                         

Total 8,677.40                         8,913.73                         

(ii) Break-up of the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at 31 st March, 2021 on an undiscounted basis: :

(i) Carrying value of lease liabilities and the movement during the period:

 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

31ST MARCH, 2020 

6.80% 6.85%

AS AT 31st MARCH, 2021

5.00% 5.00%

0.50%

0.50%

 Change in assumption by Particulars

The spread of COVID-19 has severely impacted businesses around the globe. In many countries, including India, there has been severe disruption to regular business

operations due to lock-downs, travel bans, quarantines, social distancing and other emergency measures. Worldwide School operations are also affected during this COVID

19 pandemic and now school education is shifted to online platforms. However, two entry level grades i.e. Play Group and Nursery are not possible to function smoothly on

online platforms. The transport/utility facility income is affected badly during this pandemic time. Management has not recognized income from both entry level grades and

transport/utility facility, resulting in revenue being significantly reduced.

The Company has made detailed assessment of its liquidity position for a period of at least one year from ended 31st March, 2021. Management believes that it has taken into

account all the possible impact of known events till the date of approval of its financial statements arising from COVID-19 pandemic in the preparation of the stand-alone

financial statements.The Company will continue to monitor any material changes to future economic conditions.

There are no pending litigations against the company, except as stated above. The Company reviews all its litigations and proceedings and makes adequate provisions,

wherever required and discloses the contingent liabilities, wherever applicable, in its financial statements. 

 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

31ST MARCH, 2021 

 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

31ST MARCH, 2020 

 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

31ST MARCH, 2021 
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 FOR THE YEAR 

ENDED 

31ST MARCH, 2021 

 FOR THE YEAR 

ENDED 

31ST MARCH, 2020 

(Rs. in Lakh) (Rs. in Lakh)

(iii) Rental expenses for short-term leases recognised in statement of profit and loss -                                     2.40                                   

35 Earnings per share  AS AT 

31ST MARCH, 2021 

 AS AT 

31ST MARCH, 2020 

Loss for the year (Rs.in Lakh) (A) (496.87)                              (457.92)                             

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year (B) 17,600,000                        17,600,000                        

Basic & Diluted EPS (Rs. ) (A/B) (2.82)                                  (2.60)                                 

Face value of equity shares 10                                      10                                     

36 Related Party Disclosures as per Ind AS 24

A. List of Related Parties (As identified by the Management)

a.  Enterprise where Control Exists

I.   Subsidiary

VJTF Buildcon Private Limited

    II.   Associate

VJTF Infraschool Services (Mumbai) Private Limited (Formerly VJTF Infrastructure Private Limited)

    b.  Others (Enterprises where significant influence exercised by Key Managerial Personnel)

VJTF Infraschool Services (Udaipur) Private Limited (Formerly Rishi Reality Leasing Services Private Limited)

VJTF Construction Private Limited

Witty Education Private Limited

Witty Enterprises Private Limited

Witty Infratech Private Limited

Pratiksha Foundation Charitable Trust

Witty Global Education Trust

c.   Key Managerial personnel and relatives 

Dr. Vinay Jain, Director

Dr. Raina Jain, Director

B. Transactions during the year (at arm’s length) and balances outstanding as at the year end with related parties are as follows:

    I.    Transactions during the year (Rs. in Lakh)

Subsidiary Associate / Others
Key Management 

Personnel
Subsidiary Associate / Others

Key Management 

Personnel

Interest Income

VJTF Infraschool Services 

(Mumbai) Private Limited    
-                       -                       -                          -                        56.84                              -                                 

VJTF Buildcon Private Limited -                       -                       -                          100.10                  -                                  -                                 

Operational and Management 

Fees income

Pratiksha Foundation Charitable 

Trust
-                       2.00                     -                          -                        2.00                                -                                 

Income Collected on our behalf 

by

Pratiksha Foundation Charitable 

Trust
-                       0.80                     -                          -                        187.10                            -                                 

Witty Education Private limited -                       -                       -                          -                        133.45                            -                                 

Lease Rent Expenses

Witty Global Education Trust -                       -                       -                          -                        60.00                              -                                 

Dr.Raina Jain -                       -                       2.40                        -                        -                                  2.40                                

Director's Remuneration 

Expenses

Dr.Vinay Jain -                       -                       60.00                      -                        -                                  60.00                              

Dr.Raina Jain -                       -                       60.00                      -                        -                                  60.00                              

Particulars

YEAR ENDED 31
st
 MARCH, 2021 YEAR ENDED 31

st
 MARCH, 2020
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Reimbursement of Expenses 

given

Pratiksha Foundation Charitable 

Trust
-                       15.34                   -                          -                        124.91                            -                                 

Witty Global Education Trust -                       8.94                     -                          -                        -                                  -                                 

Witty Education Private limited -                       7.03                     -                          -                        17.04                              -                                 

Loans Given

VJTF Infraschool Services 

(Mumbai) Private Limited    
-                       5.68                     -                          -                        58.76                              -                                 

VJTF Buildcon Private Limited 10.62                   -                       -                          306.54                  -                                  -                                 

Loans Given Received Back

VJTF Buildcon Private Limited 809.70                 -                       -                          -                        -                                  -                                 

Lease Deposit Given

Witty Global Education Trust -                       -                       -                          -                        146.65                            -                                 

Loans Taken repaid

VJTF Infraschool Services 

(Udaipur) Private Limited      
-                       -                       -                          -                        679.98                            -                                 

Payments made on behalf of:

Pratiksha Foundation Charitable 

Trust
-                       541.85                 -                          -                        2,896.36                         -                                 

Witty Global Education Trust -                       159.28                 -                          -                        269.44                            -                                 

Witty Education Private Limited -                       50.09                   -                          -                        -                                  -                                 

Payments made on behalf of - 

received back:

Pratiksha Foundation Charitable 

Trust
-                       541.85                 -                          -                        2,896.36                         -                                 

Witty Global Education Trust -                       159.28                 -                          -                        122.79                            -                                 

Witty Education Private Limited -                       50.09                   -                          -                        -                                  -                                 

Payments received on behalf of:

Pratiksha Foundation Charitable 

Trust
-                       1,613.16              -                          -                        418.14                            -                                 

Witty Education Private Limited -                       352.97                 -                          -                        1,154.17                         -                                 

Witty Global Education Trust -                       33.04                   -                          -                        106.67                            -                                 

VJTF Infraschool Services 

(Udaipur) Private Limited      
-                       10.00                   -                          -                        697.98                            -                                 

Payments received on behalf of - 

repaid:

Pratiksha Foundation Charitable 

Trust
-                       1,517.84              -                          -                        321.66                            -                                 

Witty Education Private Limited -                       970.70                 -                          -                        544.86                            -                                 

Witty Global Education Trust -                       28.63                   -                          -                        106.67                            -                                 

VJTF Infraschool Services 

(Udaipur) Private Limited      
-                       8.32                     -                          -                        133.11                            -                                 

Security cum Guarantee Taken 

(Amount reduced)

VJTF Constructions Private 

Limited
-                       -                       -                          -                        25.00                              -                                 

Dr Raina Jain

Dr Vinay Jain
-                       -                       -                          -                        -                                  25.00                              

    II.    Outstanding balances as at the year end (Rs. in Lakh)

Loan Given

VJTF Infraschool Services 

(Mumbai) Private Limited    
-                       512.92                 -                          -                        507.24                            -                                 

VJTF Buildcon Private Limited -                       -                       -                          799.08                  -                                  -                                 

YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2020

Subsidiary Associate/ Others
Key Management 

Personnel

Particulars
Subsidiary

Key Management 

Personnel
Associate/Others

YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2021



94 of 142

(CIN No. L80301MH1984PLC033922)

VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED

    NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  FOR YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

Lease Deposit Given

Witty Global Education Trust -                       479.19                 -                          -                        479.19                            -                                 

Dr.Raina Jain -                       -                       411.17                    -                        -                                  411.17                            

Operation & Management 

Deposits

Pratiksha Foundation Charitable 

Trust
-                       1,400.14              -                          -                        1,400.14                         -                                 

Investment in Shares of an 

subsidiary and associate

VJTF Buildcon Private Limited 313.70 -                       -                          313.70 -                                  -                                 

VJTF Infraschool Services 

(Mumbai) Private Limited    
-                       482.25                 -                          -                        482.25                            -                                 

Rent Payables

Witty Global Education Trust -                       15.90                   -                          -                        15.90                              -                                 

Dr.Raina Jain -                       -                       5.66                        -                        -                                  2.40                                

Other Current Liability

VJTF Infraschool Services 

(Udaipur) Private Limited      
-                       566.55                 -                          -                        564.87                            -                                 

Payable to associates

Pratiksha Foundation Charitable 

Trust
-                       210.03                 -                          -                        114.70                            -                                 

Witty Education Private Limited -                       -                       -                          -                        617.73                            -                                 

Witty Global Education Trust -                       4.41                     -                          -                        -                                  -                                 

Director's Remuneration Payable 

Dr.Vinay Jain -                       -                       29.42                      -                        -                                  7.56                                

Dr.Raina Jain -                       -                       38.96                      -                        -                                  6.51                                

Security cum Guarantee taken

VJTF Construction Private Limited -                       400.00                 -                          -                        400.00                            -                                 
Dr Raina Jain

Dr Vinay Jain
-                       -                       400.00                    -                        -                                  400.00                            

Security cum Guarantee Given

VJTF Infraschool Services 

(Mumbai) Private Limited    
-                       10,357.35            -                          -                        10,357.35                       -                                 

VJTF Infraschool Services 

(Udaipur) Private Limited      
-                       3,060.00              -                          -                        3,060.00                         -                                 

Witty Enterprises Private Limited -                       10,000.00            -                          -                        10,000.00                       -                                 

Witty Infratech Private Limited -                       1,100.00              -                          -                        1,100.00                         -                                 
Dr Raina Jain

-                       -                       500.00                    -                        -                                  500.00                            

1. Above disclosed amounts represent transaction values only, without considering the impact of  GST and IND AS .

2. No amounts pertaining to related parties have been written off / back or provided for.

3. Related party relationship have been identified by the management and relied upon by the Auditors.

37

A Loans and advances (Rs. in Lakh)

Outstanding 

Balances as at the 

year end

Maximum 

Amount 

Outstanding 

During the year 

Outstanding Balances as 

at the year end

Maximum Amount 

Outstanding During the 

year 

512.92                    512.92                  507.24                            507.24                            

VJTF Buildcon Private Limited -                          809.70                  799.08                            799.08                            

Total 512.92                    1,322.62                1,306.32                         1,306.32                         

YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2021

VJTF Infraschool Services (Mumbai) Private Limited    

YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2020

notes : 

Name of the Party
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B Premises Lease Deposit and Operation and Management Deposit (Rs. in Lakh)

Outstanding 

Balances as at the 

year end

Maximum 

Amount 

Outstanding 

During the year 

Outstanding Balances as 

at the year end

Maximum Amount 

Outstanding During the 

year 

Pratiksha Foundation Charitable trust 1,400.14                 1,400.14                1,400.14                         1,400.14                         

Witty Global Education Trust 479.19                    479.19                  479.19                            479.19                            

Dr. Raina Jain 411.17                    411.17                  411.17                            411.17                            

Total 2,290.50                 2,290.50                2,290.50                         2,290.50                         

38 Disclosure as required under Section 186 (4) of the Companies Act, 2013:

39 Fair value measurements and accounting classification

 AS AT 

31ST MARCH, 2021 

 AS AT 

31ST MARCH, 2020 

(Rs. in Lakh) (Rs. in Lakh)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Carrying amount)

Non-Current

Investments (Subsidiaries, Associates) 795.95                            795.95                            

Other Investments 0.92                                0.92                                

Other Financial Assets 2,058.53                         1,890.00                         

Current

Trade Receivables 37.62                              8.05                                

Cash and Cash Equivalents 46.35                              44.01                              

Loans 513.73                            1,309.44                         

Other Financial Assets 316.29                            314.49                            

3,769.39                         4,362.85                         

Financial liabilities carried at amortised cost (Carrying amount)

Non-Current

Borrowings 658.36                            605.96                            

Lease Liability 2,594.43                         2,590.75                         

Other Financial Liabilities 62.09                              67.20                              

Current

Borrowings 288.50                            354.99                            

Trade Payables 223.90                            143.30                            

Lease Liability 55.97                              49.67                              

Other Financial Liabilities 642.47                            1,039.18                         

4,525.72                         4,851.05                         

40

(A) Credit Risk

YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2021

Name of the Party

Credit risk arises from the possibility that the counter party may not be able to settle their obligations as agreed. To manage this, the Company periodically assess financial

reliability of customers, taking into account the financial condition, current economic trends, and analysis of historical bad debts and ageing of accounts receivable. Individual

risk limits are set accordingly.

The Company considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis through

out each reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk the Company compares the risk of default occurring on asset as at the reporting date

with the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition. It considers reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking information such as:

i) Actual or expected significant adverse changes in business,

The following tables shows the carrying amount of all financial assets and liabilities. In all cases of financial assets and liabilities, carrying amount (amortised cost) is a

reasonable estimate of fair value, therefore, defining levels of fair value hierarchy is not applicable.

Refer note 4 and 36 above with respect to Loans, Guarantees and Securities given as well as investments made – for business purpose.

YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2020

Financial risk management

The Company’s activities expose it to business risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. In order to minimise any adverse effects on the financial performance, the

Company’s risk management is carried out by a corporate finance team under policies approved by the board of directors and top management. Company's treasury identifies,

evaluates and mitigates financial risks in close cooperation with the Company’s operating units. The board provides guidance for overall risk management, as well as policies

covering specific areas. 

ii) Actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of the counterparty,

iii) Financial or economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant change to the counterparty’s ability to meet its obligations,

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectations of recovery, such as a debtor failing to engage in a repayment plan with the Company. Where loans

or receivables have been written off, the Company continues engage in enforcement activity to attempt to recover the receivable due. Where recoveries are made, these are

recognized in profit or loss.

iv) Significant changes in the value of the collateral supporting the obligation or in the quality of the third-party guarantees or credit enhancements.
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Ageing of Account receivables : (Rs. in Lakh)

Particulars  AS AT 

31ST MARCH, 2021 

AS AT 

31st MARCH, 2020

0-3 months                                   37.62                                        -   

3-6 months                                        -                                          -   

6 months to 12 months                                        -                                      7.16 

beyond 12 months                                        -                                      0.89 

Total                                   37.62                                    8.05 

(B) Liquidity risk

(i) Maturities of financial liabilities

(Rs. in Lakh)

Contractual maturities of financial 

liabilities

As at 31st March, 2021

Less than 

3 months

3 months 

to 6 months

6 months 

to 1 year

Between 

1 and 2 years

More than 2 years Total

Non-derivatives

Borrowings

Term Loans 4.84                      4.99                      10.47                       23.89                     359.73                             403.92                            

ECLGS 5.82                      12.27                    31.72                       52.45                     81.62                               183.88                            

Vehicle Loans 47.35                    47.13                    75.14                       102.80                   37.87                               310.30                            

Loan from bodies corporate -                       -                       35.58                       -                         -                                  35.58                              

Overdraft from bank -                       -                       252.92                     -                         -                                  252.92                            

Trade payables 42.72                   154.43                 26.76                       -                         -                                  223.90                            

Security deposits -                       -                       -                          -                         62.09                               62.09                              

Interest accrued but not due on 

borrowings
4.69                      -                       -                          -                         -                                  4.69                                

Lease Liabilities -                       -                       55.97                       -                         2,594.43                          2,650.41                         

Payable to a Related Party -                       -                       214.44                     -                         -                                  214.44                            

Other payables 115.21                  68.38                    -                          -                         -                                  183.59                            

Total non-derivative liabilities 220.63                    287.20                    703.00                       179.14                     3,135.74                             4,525.72                            

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding to meet obligations when due. Due to the

dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, Company's treasury maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining sufficient cash and bank balances available to meet the

working capital requirements. Management monitors rolling forecasts of the group’s liquidity position (comprising the unused cash and bank balances along with liquid

investments) on the basis of expected cash flows. This is generally carried out at Company level in accordance with practice and limits set by the group. These limits vary to

take into account the liquidity of the market in which the Company operates.

Credit risk is managed at segment as well as Company level. For banks and financial institutions, only high rated banks/institutions are accepted.

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectations of recovery, such as a debtor failing to engage in a repayment plan with the Company. Where loans

or receivables have been written off, the Company continues to engage in enforcement activity to attempt to recover the receivable due. Where recoveries are made, these are

recognized as income in the statement of profit and loss.

For other financial assets, the Company assesses and manages credit risk based on internal control and credit management system. Internal credit control and management is

performed on a Company basis for each class of financial instruments with different characteristics.

The company considers whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period. It considers available reasonable and

supportive forward-looking information. Macroeconomic information (such as regulatory changes, market interest rate or growth rates) are also considered as part of the

internal credit management system. A default on a financial asset is when the counterparty fails to make payments as per contract. This definition of default is determined by

considering the business environment in which entity operates and other macro-economic factors.

The Company measures the expected credit loss of trade receivables and loan from individual customers based on historical trend, industry practices and the business

environment in which the entity operates. Loss rates are based on actual credit loss experience and past trends. Based on the historical data, loss on collection of receivable is

not material hence no additional provision considered.

Amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not

significant.

The tables below analyse the group’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities for:
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(Rs. in Lakh)

Contractual maturities of financial 

liabilities

As at 31st March, 2020

Less than 

3 months

3 months 

to 6 months

6 months 

to 1 year

Between 

1 and 2 years

More than 2 years Total

Non-derivatives

Borrowings

Term Loans -                       -                       70.28                       22.83                    361.30                             454.41                            

Vehicle Loans -                       -                       182.52                     -                         221.82                             404.34                            

Loan from bodies corporate -                       -                       105.58                     -                         -                                  105.58                            

Overdraft from bank -                       -                       249.41                     -                         -                                  249.41                            

Trade payables 22.48                   90.41                   30.41                       -                         -                                  143.30                            

Security deposits -                       -                       -                          -                         67.20                               67.20                              

Interest accrued but not due on 

borrowings
4.68                      -                       -                          -                         -                                  4.68                                

Lease Liabilities -                       -                       49.67                       -                         2,590.75                          2,640.42                         

Payable to a Related Party -                       -                       732.44                     -                         -                                  732.44                            

Other payables 49.27                    -                       -                          -                         -                                  49.27                              

Total non-derivative liabilities 76.43                      90.41                      1,420.30                    22.83                       3,241.07                             4,851.05                            

(C) Market risk

(i) Foreign currency risk

(ii) Interest rate risk

41 Capital Management

 (Rs. in Lakh) 

Particulars  AS AT 

31ST MARCH, 2021 

 AS AT 

31st MARCH, 2020 

1,140.26                          1,169.72                         

Total equity 1,324.35                          1,818.16                         

Net debt to equity ratio 86.10% 64.34%

Loan covenants : The company intends to manage optimal gearing ratios.

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to :

1. safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and 

2. Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid

to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares, reduce debt or sell assets.

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. As on the balance-sheet

date, the Company does not have foreign currency receivables or payables and is therefore not exposed to foreign exchange risk. 

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of

risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk includes investment,

deposits, foreign currency receivables and payables. The Company's treasury team manages the Market risk, which evaluates and exercises independent control over the

entire process of market risk management.

The gearing ratios were as follows:

Net debt (Total  borrowings, including current maturities less cash & cash equivalent excluding Lease Liability under 

Ind AS 116)

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of the financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. According to the

Company, interest rate risk exposure is only for floating rate borrowings. The Company is not significantly exposed to the interest rate risk, since the borrowings of the

Company are on Fixed interest rate basis.
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42

A

 (Rs. in Lakh) 

YEAR ENDED 31st 

MARCH, 2021

 YEAR ENDED 31ST 

MARCH, 2020

Contracted price 557.64                            1,465.55                         

(56.74)                             (12.60)                            

500.90                            1,452.95                         

B

C  (Rs. in Lakh) 

YEAR ENDED 31st 

MARCH, 2021

 YEAR ENDED 31ST 

MARCH, 2020

1,098.08                         1,049.75                         

(1,098.08)                        (1,049.75)                       

1,112.98                         1,098.08                         

1,112.98                            1,098.08                            

43

44

45 Recent Accounting Pronouncements  - Standards issued but not yet effective

46

47

48

AS PER OUR ATTACHED REPORT OF EVEN DATE 

FOR  J. KALA & ASSOCIATES FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Firm Registration No.: 118769W

Sd/- Sd/-

DR. VINAY JAIN DR. RAINA JAIN

Sd/- DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

VAIBHAV PATODI DIN No. 00235276     DIN No. 01142103

PARTNER

Membership No. 420935

Sd/- Sd/-

PLACE : MUMBAI SHRUTI SHARMA CA MANOJ JAIN

DATE : 30th June 2021 COMPANY SECRETARY CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Less: Returns, rebates, incentive and other similar allowances

There is no interest paid during the year and no principle and interest is outstanding to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as on Balance sheet date.

Previous years’ figures have been re-grouped / re-arranged wherever necessary so as to make them comparable with those of the current year.

Ministry of Corporate affairs (MCA) notifies new standards or amendment to the existing standards. There is no such notification which would have been applicable from

April 01, 2020.

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker.

The Company’s Directors are identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) as defined by Ind AS 108, Operating Segments. The CODM evaluates the

Company’s performance and allocates resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators, however the Company is primarily engaged in only one segment

viz.,‘Educational Services’ and that all operations are in India. Hence the Company does not have any reportable Segments as per Indian Accounting Standard 108

“Operating Segments”.

The accounts of certain trade receivables, trade payables, loans and advances given and banks are, however, subject to formal confirmations or reconciliations and

consequent adjustments, if any. However, there is no indication of dispute on these accounts, other than those mentioned in the financial statements. The management does

not expect any material difference affecting the current year’s financial statements on such reconciliation/adjustments.

While disclosing the aggregate amount of transaction price yet to be recognised as revenue towards unsatisfied or partially satisfied performance obligations, along with the

broad time band for the expected time to recognise those revenues, the Company has applied the practical expedient in Ind AS 115. Accordingly, the Company has not

disclosed the aggregate transaction price allocated to unsatisfied or partially satisfied performance obligations which pertain to contracts where revenue recognised

corresponds to the value transferred to customer typically involving time based and event based contracts.

The aggregate value of transaction price allocated to unsatisfied or partially satisfied performance obligations is Rs.1,098.08 Lakh, which is expected to be recognised as

revenue in the next year.

Revenue recognised that was included in the balance at the beginning of the year

Balance at the end of the year

Increase due to invoicing during the year, excluding amounts recognised as revenue during the year

Balance at the beginning of the year

Changes in contract liabilities (fees received in advance) are as follows:

Legal Disputes with Cerestra Infrastructure Trust (Registered AIF with SEBI) related to Mumbai and Udaipur School properties (not owned by the Company) are sub judice

with Hon’ble Bombay High Court. The Company has made a detailed assessment of its impact on loans given of Rs. 513 Lakhs, guarantee given of Rs. 13,417 Lakhs and

investment made of Rs. 482 Lakhs and based on the advice given by external legal counsel, no provision/adjustment has been considered necessary by the managementwith

respect to the above matters in these standalone financial statements, considering the uncertainty relating to the outcome of the matters.

Revenue recognised

Reconciliation of revenue recognised with the contracted price:

Revenue from contracts with customers



99 of 142

    INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
To the Members of VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED 
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Opinion 

 
1. We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of VJTF EDUSERVICES 

LIMITED (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Holding Company”) and its subsidiary (Holding 
Company and its subsidiary together referred to as “the Group”),its associate which comprise 
the consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, and the consolidated Statement of 
Profit and Loss,(including Other Comprehensive Income), the consolidated statement of 
changes in equity and the consolidated Cash Flows Statement for the year then ended, and 
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information.(herein after referred to as “the consolidated 
financial statements”). 
 

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 
us, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated 
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021, of consolidated loss (including  other 

comprehensive income) ,their consolidated cash flows and consolidated statement of changes 
in equity for the year then ended. 

Basis for Opinion 
 

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under 
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in 
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of 
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. We believe 
that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion on the consolidated financial statements. 

Emphasis of Matters 

 

4. We draw Attention to note 34 to the consolidated financial statements, which describe the 
uncertainty caused by Novel Corona virus (COVID-19). Our opinion is not modified in respect of 
this matter.  

 

Key Audit Matters 

 
5. Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 

significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These 
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as 
a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on 
these matters. We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our 
report. 
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Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon 

 
6. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other 

information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, 
Board’s Report including annexure to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, 
Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the consolidated 
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. 
 

7. Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information 
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

 
8. In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to 

read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is 
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained 
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have 
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we 
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated 
Financial Statements 
 

9. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and 
presentation of these consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the 
Companies Act, 2013 that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, 
consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows and consolidated changes in 

equity, of the Group including its Associate in accordance with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 
of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of 

its associate are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and 
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting 
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were 
operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair 
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been 
used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors 
of the Holding Company, as aforesaid. 
 

10. In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the 
companies included in the Group and of its associate are responsible for assessing the ability 
of the Group to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends 
to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
 

11. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its 

associate is responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group and of 

its associate. 
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
 

12. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, 
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high 
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs 
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 
these consolidated financial statements. 
 

13. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 
 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial 

statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control. 
 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the 
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls. 

 
 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 
 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group and 

of its associate to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures 
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify 
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of 
our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group and of 

its associate to cease to continue as a going concern. 
 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial 
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial 
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation. 

 
 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the 

entities or business activities within the Group and of its associate to express an opinion 
on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, 
supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities 
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included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent 
auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which 
have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the 
direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain 
solely responsible for our audit opinion. 

 
14. Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that, 

individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably 
knowledgeable user of the consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We consider 
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and 
in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified 
misstatements in the consolidated financial statements. 
 

15. We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such 
other entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the 
independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the 
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we identify during our audit. 
 

16. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied 
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them 
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

  
17. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 

matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of 
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our 
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or 
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be 
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably 
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Other Matter 

18. In the case of associate, the financial statements/special purpose financial information for the 
year ended March 31, 2021 is not available. In absence whereof, the Group’s share of total 
comprehensive income of associate for the year ended March 31, 2021 has not been included 
in the Consolidated Financial Statements. Accordingly, we do not report in terms of sub-
section (3) of Section 143 of the Act including report on Other Information in so far to the 
extent these relate to the aforesaid associate. 
 
Attention is also drawn to Note No. 46 to Consolidated Financial Statements. 
 
Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements, and our report on Other Legal and 
Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matter with respect 
to non-availability of financial information. 
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

(a) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that: 
 

(b) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best 
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid 
consolidated financial statements. 

 
(c) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the 

aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our 
examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors. 

 
(d) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss 

(including other comprehensive income), Consolidated Statement of Changes in 

Equity and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the relevant books of account and records maintained for the 
purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements. 

 
(e) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the 

Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. 
 

(f) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding 
Company as on March 31, 2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the 
Holding Company and the report of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary company, 
none of the directors of the Group companies is disqualified as on March 31, 2021 
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 

 
(g) With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls over financial reporting of 

the Group and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report 
in “Annexure A”. 

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance 
with the requirements of Section 197 (16) of the act, as amended: 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us, the remuneration paid in respect of the Holding Company to its directors 
during the year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. 

 
(i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in 

accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our 
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 
us: 

 
(j) The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the 

consolidated financial position of the Group – Refer Note 35 and 46. 
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(k) The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts 

including derivative contracts as at March 31, 2021. 
 
 
 

(l) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 
2021 by the Holding Company and its subsidiary company. 

 
 

 
For J. Kala & Associate 
Firm Registration Number: 118769W 
Chartered Accountants 
 
 
Sd/- 
Vaibhav Patodi 
Partner 
Membership Number: 420935 
 
Place: Mumbai  
Date: 30th June 2021 
UDIN: 21420935AAAADM8775 
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Annexure A to Independent Auditors’ Report 
 
Referred to in paragraph 19(f) of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members 
of VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 
March 31, 2021 
 

 
 
 
 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of 
the Act 
 
1.  In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and 

for the year ended March 31, 2021, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”) its 
subsidiary company and its associate, which are companies incorporated in India, as of that date. 

 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
 
2.  The respective Board of Directors of the Holding company, its subsidiary company and its 

associate, to whom reporting under clause (i) of sub section 3 of Section 143 of the Act in respect 
of the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting is applicable, which are 
companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls based on reporting criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI).  
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of 
its business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its 
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under 
the Act. 

 

Auditors’ Responsibility 
 

3.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over 
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the“Guidance Note”) issued 
by the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both 
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards 
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over 
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all 
material respects. 

 

4.  Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our 
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based 
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error. 
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Annexure A to Independent Auditors’ Report 
 
Referred to in paragraph 19(f) of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members 
of VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 
March 31, 2021 
 

 
 
 
 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
 
5. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies 
and procedures that: 
 
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect 

the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 
 

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and 
 

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the 
financial statements. 

 
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
 

6. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including 
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements 
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the 
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the 
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in 
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

 
Opinion 
 

7. In our opinion, the Holding Company, its subsidiary company and its associate, which are 
companies incorporated in India, have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial 
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021 , based on the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
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Annexure A to Independent Auditors’ Report 
 
Referred to in paragraph 19(f) of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members 
of VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 
March 31, 2021 
 

 
 
 
 

Other Matter 

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating 
effectiveness of the internal financial controls over financial reporting does not cover associate in 
absence of availability of financial statements/special purpose financial information.  
 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matter. 
 
 

For J. Kala & Associate 
Firm Registration Number: 118769W 
Chartered Accountants 
 
 
Sd/- 
Vaibhav Patodi 
Partner 
Membership Number: 420935 
 
Place: Mumbai  
Date: 30th June 2021 
UDIN: 21420935AAAADM8775 
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 (Rs. in lakh) (Rs. in lakh)

A ASSETS

1   NON CURRENT ASSETS

       a) Property, Plant and Equipment 2 505.66                                  648.47                                  

       b) Goodwill on Amalgamation 936.53                                  936.53                                  

       c) Investment Accounted for Using the Equity Method 3 -                                        -                                        

       d) Right of Use Assets 4 2,529.29                               2,677.12                               

       e) Financial Assets

i. Investments 5 0.92                                      0.92                                      

ii. Other Financial Assets 6 5,274.14                               5,915.31                               

       f) Deferred Tax Assets / Liabilities (net) 7 3.95                                      -                                        

       g) Income Tax Assets (Net) 8 19.57                                    17.22                                    

9,270.06                               10,195.57                             

2   CURRENT ASSETS

        a) Financial Assets

i. Trade Receivables 9 37.62                                    8.05                                      

ii. Cash and Cash Equivalents 10 47.58                                    45.33                                    

iii. Loans 11 513.73                                  510.36                                  

iv. Other Financial Assets 12 316.34                                  314.49                                  

        b) Other Current Assets 13 5.62                                      10.85                                    

920.89                                  889.08                                  

TOTAL 10,190.95                             11,084.65                             

B EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

1   EQUITY 

        a) Equity Share Capital 14 1,760.00                               1,760.00                               

        b) Other Equity 15 1,412.10                               1,907.63                               

        Equity attributable to owners of the company 3,172.10                               3,667.63                               

        c) Non-Controlling Interest 563.89                                  564.26                                  

3,735.99                               4,231.89                               

2   LIABILITIES

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

        a) Financial Liabilities

i Borrowings 16 658.36                                  605.96                                  

ii Lease Liabilities 17 2,594.43                               2,590.75                               

iii Other Financial Liabilities 18 62.09                                    67.21                                    

        b)  Provisions 19 32.47                                    26.97                                    

        c) Deferred Tax Assets / Liabilities (net) 7 -                                        29.78                                    

3,347.35                               3,320.67                               

CURRENT LIABILITIES

        a) Financial Liabilities

i. Borrowings 20 288.50                                  354.99                                  

ii. Trade Payables 21 224.78                                  143.99                                  

iii.  Lease Liabilities 22 55.97                                    49.67                                    

iii. Other Financial Liabilities 23 642.47                                  1,039.19                               

        b) Other Current Liabilities 24 1,888.06                               1,936.80                               

        c) Provisions 25 0.95                                      0.58                                      

        d) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 26 6.88                                      6.88                                      

3,107.61                               3,532.10                               

TOTAL 10,190.95                             11,084.65                             

 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 1 -                                        

The accompanying notes from an integral part of the

Financial Statements 1-52

 AS PER OUR ATTACHED REPORT OF EVEN DATE FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

 FOR J.KALA & ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Firm Registration  No. 118769W Sd/- Sd/-

DR. VINAY JAIN DR. RAINA JAIN

DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

Sd/- DIN No. 00235276     DIN No. 01142103

VAIBHAV PATODI

PARTNER

Membership No. 420935 Sd/- Sd/-

SHRUTI SHARMA
CA MANOJ JAIN

PLACE  :  MUMBAI COMPANY SECRETARY CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

DATE  : 30th June 2021

 PARTICULARS  NOTES 

AS AT 

31ST MARCH, 2021

AS AT 

31ST MARCH, 2020

VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED

(CIN No. L80301MH1984PLC033922)

   CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2021 
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(Rs. in lakh) (Rs. in lakh)

I REVENUE

Revenue from Operations 27 500.90                                  1,452.95                                

Other Income 28 407.78                                  511.76                                   

Total 908.68                                  1,964.71                                

II EXPENSES

Employee Benefits Expense 29 406.53                                  535.45                                   

Finance Costs 30 491.11                                  696.42                                   

Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 2 288.37                                  392.31                                   

Other Expenses 31 256.42                                  651.74                                   

Total 1,442.43                               2,275.92                                

Profit before share of profits / (loss) of an associate (533.75)                                (311.21)                                 

Add:  Share of loss of an associate -                                        -                                         

Loss before tax (533.75)                                (311.21)                                 

Tax Expense : 

     Current  Tax -                                        27.00                                     

     Short provision for taxation of earlier years -                                        56.03                                     

     MAT Credit Entitlement -                                        38.89                                     

     Deferred Tax (34.81)                                   1.31                                       

Loss for the year (A) (498.94)                                (434.44)                                 

Other Comprehensive Income 

a) (i) Items that will not be reclassified to Profit and Loss

              Re-measurement Gain on defined benefit plans 4.12                                      6.21                                       

    (ii) Income tax relating to above items (1.07)                                     (1.61)                                      

b) (i) Items that will be reclassified to Profit and Loss -                                        -                                         

    (ii) Income tax relating to above items -                                        -                                         

Other Comprehensive Income for the year (B) 3.05                                      4.60                                       

Total Comprehensive Income for the year (A+B) (495.89)                                (429.84)                                 

Loss attributable to:

Equity holders of the parent (498.58)                                (438.57)                                 

Non - controlling interests (0.36)                                     4.13                                       

Total comprehensive income attributable to:

Equity holders of the parent (495.53)                                (433.97)                                 

Non - controlling interests (0.36)                                     4.13                                       

Basic and Diluted Earnings per share (2.83)                                     (2.47)                                      

(Face value of Rs.10 per equity share)

 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 1

The accompanying notes from an integral part of the

Financial Statements 1-52

AS PER OUR ATTACHED REPORT OF EVEN DATE FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

FOR J.KALA & ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Firm Registration  No. 118769W Sd/- Sd/-

DR. VINAY JAIN DR. RAINA JAIN

Sd/- DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

VAIBHAV PATODI DIN No. 00235276     DIN No. 01142103

PARTNER

Membership No. 420935

Sd/- Sd/-

PLACE  :  MUMBAI SHRUTI SHARMA CA MANOJ JAIN

DATE  : 30th June 2021 COMPANY SECRETARY CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

NOTES

    CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

(CIN No. L80301MH1984PLC033922)

VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

31ST MARCH, 2021

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

31ST MARCH, 2020PARTICULARS
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(Rs. in lakh) (Rs. in lakh)

A.

(533.75)                                   (311.21)                                        

288.37                                     392.31                                         

10.00                                       2.70                                             

(12.19)                                     (2.42)                                            

1.39                                         1.97                                             

(208.86)                                   -                                               

-                                          (66.74)                                          

(177.74)                                   (426.27)                                        

491.11                                     696.42                                         

(141.67)                                   286.76                                         

(29.57)                                     (6.01)                                            

643.17                                     (2,174.61)                                     

(344.58)                                   3,915.54                                      

127.35                                     2,021.68                                      

(0.08)                                       (899.15)                                        

127.27                                     1,122.53                                      

B.

-                                          2,439.20                                      

Loan given (3.37)                                       -                                               

-                                          39.98                                           

-                                          2,000.00                                      

-                                          (4,025.31)                                     

177.74                                     426.27                                         

174.37                                     880.14                                         

C.

8.82                                         400.00                                         

(35.95)                             (1,300.10)                                     

(97.88)                             (417.65)                                        

(174.38)                                   (696.42)                                        

(299.39)                                   (2,014.17)                                     

2.25                                         (11.49)                                          

45.33                                       56.82                                           

47.58                                       45.33                                           

 Notes :

1

2

AS PER OUR ATTACHED REPORT OF EVEN DATE 

FOR J.KALA & ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Firm Registration  No. 118769W Sd/- Sd/-

DR. VINAY JAIN DR. RAINA JAIN

DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

DIN No. 00235276     DIN No. 01142103

VAIBHAV PATODI

PARTNER

Membership No. 420935 Sd/- Sd/-

SHRUTI SHARMA CA MANOJ JAIN

PLACE  :  MUMBAI COMPANY SECRETARY CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

DATE  : 30th June 2021

The above Cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method set out in IndAS - 7 Statement of Cash Flows.

Previous year's figures have been regrouped/rearranged wherever necessary to conform to this years classification.

  Sd/-

VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED

(CIN No. L80301MH1984PLC033922)

    CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

31ST MARCH, 2021 

 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

31ST MARCH, 2020 

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :

Net Loss before tax:  

Adjustments for :

Depreciation and Amortisation Expense

Accrued liability for Gratuity 

Sundry Balances and Provisions no longer required written back

Sundry irrecoverable balances written off

Lease liability written back on rent concession

Profit on Lease Termination

Interest Income

Finance Costs

Operating (Loss) / Profit before Working Capital changes

Movements in Working Capital:

Cash flow in Operations

Increase in Trade Receivables

(Decrease) / Increase in Financials and other assets (Current and Non Current)

Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payable, Other Liabilities and Provisions

Income tax paid (Net)

Net cash flow from Operating Activities

Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment

Receipt against loan given

Proceeds from maturity of fixed deposit

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :

Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents ( A+B+C )

Advance given against Share application money 

Interest received on loan given

Proceeds from Borrowings

Repayment of Borrowings

Payment of lease liabilities

Finance Costs paid

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Net cash used in from Financing Activities 

Net cash flow from Investing Activities

Cash and Bank Balances at the beginning of the year 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 
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A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL 

Particulars Rs. in Lakh

As at 31st March, 2019 1,760.00           

Increase / Decrease during the year -                     

As at 31st March, 2020 1,760.00           

Increase / Decrease during the year -                     

As at 31st March, 2021 1,760.00           

B. OTHER EQUITY (Rs. in Lakh)

General reserve
Capital Reserve 
on Consolidation

Retained earnings

As at 31st March, 2019 200.00              152.44              1,929.87              59.29                                2,341.60              560.12               2,901.72           

Profit for the year -                     -                     (438.57)                (438.57)                 4.13                    (433.97)            

Other comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) -                     -                     4.60                                   4.60                      -                     4.60                  

As at 31st March, 2020 200.00              152.44              1,491.30              63.89                                1,907.63              564.25               2,472.35           -                        -                        

Loss for the year (498.58)                (498.58)                 (0.36)                 (495.53)            

Other comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) 3.05                                   3.05                      3.05                  

As at 31st March, 2021 200.00              152.44              992.72                 66.94                                1,412.10              563.89               1,979.87           

AS PER OUR ATTACHED REPORT OF EVEN DATE

FOR J. KALA & ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Firm Registration  No. 118769W

DR. VINAY JAIN DR. RAINA JAIN

Sd/- DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

VAIBHAV PATODI DIN No. 00235276     DIN No. 01142103

PARTNER

Membership No. 420935

PLACE  :  MUMBAI Sd/- Sd/-

DATE  : 30th June 2021 SHRUTI SHARMA CA MANOJ JAIN

COMPANY SECRETARY CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED

    CONSOLIDATED  STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

Particulars

Reserves and surplus

Total

 Total other 
equity 

attributable to 
owners of the 
company 

 Non-Controlling 
Interest 

Other Comprehensive 
Income -Remeasurement 
of net defined benefit 

plans

(CIN No. L80301MH1984PLC033922)
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1 (A).� CORPORATE INFORMATION:

The consolidated financial statements comprises financial statements of VJTF Eduservices Limited (the Parent company), its subsidiary -VJTF

Buildcon Private Limited and its associate -VJTF Infrastructure Private limited (hereinafter to be referred as the Group) for the year ended March 31,

2021. 

The Parent company was incorporated on 03rd September, 1984 having registered office at Mumbai. The Group has established itself as an emerging

player in the Education Services Segment. The Group provides services to Operational Education Projects. The Group also provides required auxiliary /

support services to other companies in the Education Sector and future prospects of the Group looks promising.

1 (B).  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

1.��Basis of Preparation of consolidated financial statements :

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to as the 'Ind

AS') as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) read with the Companies (Indian

Accounting standards) Rules as amended from time to time  and other related provisions of the Act. 

The Group had prepared its consolidated financial statements in accordance with the accounting standards notified under companies (Accounting

Standard) Rule, 2006 (as amended) and other relevant provisions of the Act (hereinafter referred to as ‘Previous GAAP’) used for its statutory reporting

requirement in India.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting and Historical cost convention except for the

following material items that have been measured at fair value as required by the relevant Ind AS:

(i)   Certain financial assets and liabilities

(ii)  Defined benefit employee plan 

The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the consolidated financial statements . All assets and liabilities have

been classified as current or non current as per the Group’s normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Act.

The consolidated financial statements  are presented in INR, the functional currency of the Group. 

Basis of Consolidatation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Parent company and its subsidiary as at March 31, 2021.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has control. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee.

Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has

(a) Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee)

(b) Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee

(c) The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group losses control of the subsidiary.

Consolidatation Procedure

Subsidiaries

(a) Combine, on line by line basis like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the Parent with those of its subsidiaries.

For this purpose, income and expenses of the subsidiary are based on the amounts of the assets and liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial

statements at the acquisition date.

(b) Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the Parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the Parent’s portion of equity of each subsidiary. Business

combinations policy explains how to account for any related goodwill.

(c) Eliminate in full intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and Cash flows relating to transactions between entities of the group

(profits or losses resulting from intra-group transactions that are recognised in assets, such as inventory and property, plant and equipment (PPE), are

eliminated in full). Intra-group losses may indicate an impairment that requires recognition in the consolidated financial statements. Ind AS 12 Income

Taxes applies to temporary differences that arise from the elimination of profits and losses resulting from intra-group transactions.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the Parent Group and to the non-controlling interests.

Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Parent Group and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the 

non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED

    NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

(CIN No. L80301MH1984PLC033922)
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VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED

    NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

(CIN No. L80301MH1984PLC033922)

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances. If a

member of the Group uses accounting policies other than those adopted in the consolidated financial statements for like transactions and events in

similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to that Group member’s financial statements in preparing the consolidated financial

statements to ensure conformity with the Group’s accounting policies .

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in existing subsidiaries:

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as

equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative

interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the

consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the group.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is recognised in consolidated statement of profit and loss and is calculated as the difference

between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount

Associates

Associates are the entities over which the Group has significant influence. Investment in associates are accounted for using the equity method of

accounting, after initially being recognised at cost.

2.��Use of Estimates and judgments:

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires the Management to make, judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the

reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported

amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. The recognition, measurement, classification or disclosure of an item or information in

the consolidated financial statements is made relying on these estimates. The estimates and judgments used in the preparation of the consolidated

financial statements are continuously evaluated by the management and are based on historical experience and various other assumptions and factors

(including expectations of future events) that the management believes to be reasonable under the existing circumstances. Actual results may differ

from those estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in current and future periods.

Critical accounting judgments and key source of estimation uncertainty 

The Group is required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent

from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. The areas involving critical estimates or judgments are:

(a) Recognition and measurement of defined benefit obligations, key actuarial assumptions  

(b) Estimation of fair value of financial instruments

(c) Estimated credit loss of trade receivables

(d) Estimation of current tax expenses and payable

3.� Property, plant and equipment (PPE)

Property, plant and equipment is stated at acquisition cost net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. 

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after

deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use and estimated

costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major

components) of property, plant and equipment. Subsequent expenditure Subsequent costs are included in the assets carrying amount or recognized as a

separate asset, as appropriate only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and that the cost of

the item can be reliably measured.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Property, plant and equipment which are not ready for intended use as on the date of Balance Sheet are disclosed as “Capital work-in-progress”.

4.��Intangible assets

Intangible assets (other than goodwill on amalgamation) are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if

any.

5.��Investment Property

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group, is classified as investment

property. Investment property is measured at its cost, including related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs less depreciation and

impairment if any.
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6. Depreciation and Amortization

(a) Property plant and equipment (PPE) and Investment Property

Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis on a straight line method based on estimated useful life prescribed under Schedule II to the Act. The

residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation of property, plant and equipment is reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted

prospectively, if appropriate. 

(b) Intangible assets

Intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of their expected useful lives. The amortisation period and the amortisation

method is reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

7.��Financial Instruments: 

(a) Financial assets:

I. Initial recognition:

Financial assets are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. On initial recognition, a financial

asset is recognised at fair value, in case of Financial assets which are recognised at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL), its transaction cost are

recognised in the statement of profit and loss. In other cases, the transaction cost are attributed to the acquisition value of the financial asset.

II. Subsequent measurement:

Financial assets are subsequently classified as measured at:

 - amortised cost

 - fair value through profit & loss (FVTPL)

 - fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

The above classification is being determined considering the:

 - the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and 

 - the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset. 

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their recognition, except if and in the period the group changes its business model for managing

financial assets. 

(i) Measured at amortised cost: 

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost, if these financial assets are held within a business module whose objective is to hold

these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified date to cash flows that are

solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

(ii) Measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): 

Financial assets other than equity instrument are measured at FVTPL unless it is measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI on initial recognition. Such

financial assets are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value, including interest income and dividend income if any, recognised in the

Statement of Profit and Loss. 

(iii) Measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI): 

Financial assets are measured at FVTOCI, if these financial assets are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting

contractual cash flows that give rise on specified dates to solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding and by selling

financial assets. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). Interest income measured using the Effective Interest

Rate method and impairment losses, if any are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. On derecognition, cumulative gain or loss previously

recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to ‘other income’ in the Statement of Profit and  Loss

III.Equity instruments: 

On initial recognition, the Group can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to present the subsequent changes in fair

value in other comprehensive income pertaining to investments in equity instruments. This election is not permitted if the equity investment is held for

trading. These elected investments are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains

and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the ‘Reserve for equity instruments

through other comprehensive income’. The cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss on disposal of the investments. 

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss when the Group’s right to receive the dividends is

established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does not represent a recovery of

part of cost of the investment and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably. Dividends recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss are included

in the ‘Other income’ line item.

IV. Impairment :

The Group recognises a loss allowance for Expected Credit Losses (ECL) on financial assets that are measured at amortised cost and at FVOCI. The

credit loss is difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to an entity in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity

expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate. This is assessed on an individual or collective basis after

considering all reasonable and supportable including that which is forward looking.
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The Group’s trade receivables or contract revenue receivables do not contain significant financing component and loss allowance on trade receivables

is measured at an amount equal to life time expected losses i.e. expected cash shortfall, being simplified approach for recognition of impairment loss

allowance.

Under simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in credit risk. Rather it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on the lifetime ECL

at each reporting date right from its initial recognition. The Group uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on the portfolio of

trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivable and is adjusted

for forward looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates

are analysed.

For financial assets other than trade receivables, the Group recognises 12–months expected credit losses for all originated or acquired financial assets if

at the reporting date the credit risk of the financial asset has not increased significantly since its initial recognition. The expected credit losses are

measured as lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on financial asset increases significantly since its initial recognition. If, in a subsequent

period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer significant increase in credit risks since initial recognition, then the Group

reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12 months ECL. The impairment losses and reversals are recognised in Statement of Profit

and Loss. For equity instruments and financial assets measured at FVTPL, there is no requirement of impairment testing.

V. Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers rights to receive

cash flows from an asset, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor

retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset

to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. 

In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the

rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

(b) Financial Liabilities 

I. Initial Recognition and measurement 

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. Financial liabilities are initially

recognised at fair value net of transaction costs for all financial liabilities not carried at fair value through profit or loss. The Group’s financial liabilities

includes trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts.

II. Subsequent measurement
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost are subsequently measured at using EIR method. Financial liabilities carried at fair value
through profit or loss are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

III.Loans & Borrowings:
After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using EIR method. Gains and losses
are recognized in profit & loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through EIR amortization process.

IV. Financial Guarantee Contracts
Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts that requires a payment to be made or to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because the specified debtors fails to make payment when due in accordance with the term of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee
contracts are recognized initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the
guarantee. 

V. De-recognition 

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is

replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an

exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective

carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss. 

VI. Offsetting of financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to

offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 
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8.��Fair Value Measurement 

The Group measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives, investments at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value is the price that would

be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value

measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

(a) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

(b) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the

assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in

its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. The Group uses valuation

techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant

observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the

consolidated financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is

significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

(i) Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

(ii) Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly

observable.

(iii) Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have

occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement

as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of

the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

9.��Cash and Cash Equivalents: 

Cash and Cash equivalents include cash and Cheque in hand, bank balances, demand deposits with banks and other short-term highly liquid

investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash & which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value where original

maturity is three months or less. Outstanding bank overdrafts are adjusted in cash and cash equivalents as they are considered an integral part of the

Group’s cash management.

10.� Foreign Currency Transactions:

a) Initial Recognition

Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the transaction. Exchange differences arising on foreign

exchange transactions settled during the year are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss of the year. 

b) Measurement of Foreign Currency Items at the Balance Sheet Date

Foreign currency monetary items of the Group are restated at the closing exchange rates. Non monetary items are recorded at the exchange rate

prevailing on the date of the transaction.  Exchange differences arising out of these transactions are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

11.�Revenue Recognition:

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration which the

Company expects to receive in exchange for those products or services. Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration

received or receivable, adjusted for estimated customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances. Revenue also excludes taxes collected from

customers. The Company earns revenue primarily from providing educational services.

Income from Services (Educational Activities)

Revenues from services rendered are recognized pro-rata on accrual basis over the period of the contract as and when services are rendered or

performance obligation are satisfied. 

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Company performs by transferring

goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned

consideration that is conditional.

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration (or an amount of

consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services, a contract liability is

recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company

performs under the contract.
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A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is required before

payment of the consideration is due). 

Rent

Rental Income is recognised on a time proportion basis as per the contractual obligations agreed with the respective tenant.

Interest

Revenue is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the interest rate applicable and based on effective 
interest rate method.

Dividend

Dividend Income is recognized when right to receive the same is established.

12.�Borrowing Cost:

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets are capitalized as a

part of Cost of that assets, during the period till all the activities necessary to prepare the Qualifying assets for its intended use or sale are complete

during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the assets for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take

a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale. Other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which they

are incurred.

13.�Taxes on Income:

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the statement of profit and loss except to the extent it relates to

items directly recognized in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax:

Current tax is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit is different from accounting profit due to temporary differences between accounting

and tax treatments, and due to items that are never taxable or tax deductible. Tax provisions are included in current liabilities. Interest and penalties on

tax liabilities are provided for in the tax charge. The Group offsets, the current tax assets and liabilities (on a year on year basis) where it has a legally

enforceable right and where it intends to settle such assets and liabilities on a net basis or to realise the assets and liabilities on net basis.

Deferred tax:

Deferred income tax is recognized using the balance sheet approach. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for deductible and

taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in consolidated financial statements .

Deferred income tax asset are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary

differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are not recognised where it is more

likely than not that the assets will not be realised in the future.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that

sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities

are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) 

that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Minimum Alternative Tax (‘MAT’) credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the Group will pay

normal income-tax during the specified period. The Group reviews the same at each balance sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of MAT

credit entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that Group will pay normal income-tax during the specified period.

14.�Employee Benefits:

(a) Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in

which the employees render the related service are recognized in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured

at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance

sheet.

(b) Post-employment obligations

The Group has following post-employment plans:

(i) Defined benefit plans such a gratuity and

(ii) Defined contribution plans such as Provident fund

(i) Defined-benefit plan:
The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plan is the present value of defined benefit obligations
at the end of the reporting period less fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligations is calculated annually by actuaries through
actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method.

The Group recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and loss:

(a) Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailment and non-routine settlements; 

(b) Net interest expense or income
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The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets. This

cost is included in employee benefit expenses in the statement of the profit & loss.

Re-measurement comprising of actuarial gains and losses arising from 

(a) Re-measurement of Actuarial (gains)/losses

(b) Return on plan assets, excluding amount recognized in effect of asset ceiling

(c) Re-measurement arising because of change in effect of asset ceiling

are recognised in the period in which they occur directly in Other comprehensive income. Re-measurement are not reclassified to profit or loss in

subsequent periods.

Ind AS 19 requires the exercise of judgment in relation to various assumptions including future pay rises, inflation and discount rates and employee and

pensioner demographics. The Group determines the assumptions in conjunction with its actuaries, and believes these assumptions to be in line with

best practice, but the application of different assumptions could have a significant effect on the amounts reflected in the income statement, other

comprehensive income and balance sheet. There may be also interdependency between some of the assumptions.

(ii) Defined-contribution plan:

Under defined contribution plans, provident fund, the Group pays pre-defined amounts to separate funds and does not have any legal or informal

obligation to pay additional sums. Defined Contribution plan comprise of contributions to the employees’ provident fund with the government,

superannuation fund and certain state plans like Employees’ State Insurance and Employees’ Pension Scheme. The Group’s payments to the defined

contribution plans are recognised as expenses during the period in which the employees perform the services that the payment covers.

15. Leases:

Where the Group is Lessee

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right

to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether:

(i) The contract involves the use of an identified asset;

(ii) The Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease; and

(iii) The Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a corresponding lease liability for all lease

arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-

term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at

or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less

accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities

includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the

underlying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts

may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-

use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In

such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the

interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease

liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Company changes its assessment if whether it will

exercise an extension or a termination option.

Lease liability shown under Other Financial Liabilities and right of use asset is shown in Plant property and equipment as lease Asset (Right of use) and

lease payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

Where the Group is Lesser

Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lesser is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term unless the

receipts are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the expected inflationary cost increases. The respective

leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on their nature.
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16.�Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the group has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is

probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the Group from a contract are lower than the unavoidable

costs of meeting the future obligations under the contract.
A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may probably not require an outflow of

resources or an obligation for which the future outcome cannot be ascertained with reasonable certainty. When there is a possible or a present

obligation where the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in financial statements .

17.�Impairment of Non-Financial Assets:

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortization and are tested annually for impairment, or more

frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events or

changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss

for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less

costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest level for which there are separately

identifiable cash inflows which are largely dependent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial

assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period. After

impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.

18.�Investment in Subsidiaries, Joint-ventures and Associate:

Investment in equity shares of subsidiaries, joint-venture and associate are recorded at cost and reviewed for impairment at each reporting date.

19. Earnings Per Share:

Basic earnings per shares are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss after tax for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted

average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the

period attributable to the equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for the effects of all

dilutive potential equity shares.

20. Business combinations:

The Group accounts for its business combinations under acquisition method of accounting. The acquirer’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent

liabilities that meet the condition for recognition are recognised at their fair values at the acquisition date. The difference between the fair value of the

purchase consideration paid together with non-controlling interest on acquisition date and the fair value of net assets acquired is recognised as goodwill

or capital reserve on acquisition. The excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and

the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable

assets acquired and the liabilities assumed is recognized as goodwill. Any shortfall is recognised as capital reserve on consolidation.

In case of a bargain purchase, before recognising gain in respect thereof, the Group determines whether there exists clear evidence of underlying

reasons for classifying the business combination as a bargain purchase. Thereafter, the Group reassesses whether it has correctly identified all of the

assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and recognises any additional asset or liabilities that are identified in that reassessment. The Group

then reviews the procedures used to measure the amounts that Ind AS requires for the purposes of calculating the bargain purchase. If the gain remains

after this reassessment and review, the Group recognises it in other comprehensive income and accumulates the same in equity as capital reserve. This

gain is attributed to the acquirer. If there does not exist clear evidence of the underlying reasons for classifying the business combination as a bargain

purchase, the Group recognises the gain, after reassessing and reviewing (as described above), directly in equity as capital reserve.

The interest in non-controlling interest is initially measured at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The

choice of measurement basis is made on an acquisition by acquisition basis. Subsequent to initial acquisition, the carrying amount of non-controlling

interest is the amount of those interest in initial recognition plus the non-controlling interest’s share of subsequent changes in equity of subsidiaries.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting in a contingent consideration

arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition date fair value and included as a part of the consideration transferred in a

business combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments, are adjusted

retrospectively, with corresponding adjustments against goodwill or capital reserve as the case may be.

Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional information during the ‘measurement period’ (which cannot exceed one

year from the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.
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The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration that do not qualify as the measurement period adjustments

depends on how the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent

reporting dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability is

remeasured at fair value at subsequent reporting dates with the corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to its acquisition-date fair

value and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date

that have previously been recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss where such treatment would be appropriate if that

interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the combination occurs, the Group reports

provisional amount for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amount are adjusted during the measurement period, or

additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that,

if known, would have affected the amount recognised at that date.

Business combination under common control

Business Combination under common control are accounted as per Appendix C in IND AS 103 - Business combinations, at carrying amount of assets

and liabilities acquired and any excess of consideration issued over the net assets acquired is recognized as capital reserve on common control business

combination.

Acquisition of interest in associate and joint venture

Acquisition of interest in an associate or a joint venture, is initially recognised at cost. Any excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s share

of the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is regarded as goodwill, which is included in the carrying amount of the

investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment, after

reassessment, is recognised in equity as capital reserve in the period in which the investment is acquired.
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2 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Rs. in Lakh)

Freehold 

Land
Buildings

Plant and 

Machinery

Furniture 

and 

Fixtures

Vehicles  Buses 
Office 

Equipments

School 

Equipments

 Electrical 

Equipments 

 Air 

Conditioner 
 Computer  Total 

Balance as at 31st March, 2020 -            -            3.79            11.02        72.71        919.87      17.57              2.17               1.68              8.77                  0.58             1,038.13        

Additions -            -              -            -            -            -                  -                -                -                    -              -                 

Disposals -            -            -              -            -            (2.27)         -                  -                -                -                    -              (2.27)              

Balance as at 31st March, 2021 -            -            3.79            11.02        72.71        917.60      17.57              2.17               1.68              8.77                  0.58             1,035.86        

Accumulated Depreciation

Balance as at 31st March, 2019 -            -            0.82            9.82          11.61        209.16      11.51              0.85               1.46              3.61                  0.52             249.36           

Expense for the year -            -            0.28            0.47          9.11          127.55      3.11                0.43               0.03              1.21                  0.06             142.25           

Disposals -            -            -              -            -            (1.95)         -                  -                -                -                    -              (1.95)              

Balance as at 31st March, 2020 -            -            1.10            10.29        20.73        334.76      14.62              1.28               1.50              4.82                  0.58             389.66           

Depreciation adjusted in opening -            -            -              -            -            -            -                  -                -                -                    -              

Expense for the year -            -            0.28            0.32          9.09          126.93      2.29                0.39               0.03              1.21                  -              140.54           

Disposals -            -            -              -            -            -            -                  -                -                -                    -              -                 

Balance as at 31st March, 2021 -            -            1.37            10.61        29.82        461.69      16.91              1.67               1.53              6.03                  0.58             530.20           

Net Carrying Amount

Balance as at 31st March, 2020 -            -            2.69            0.73          51.98        585.11      2.95                0.89               0.18              3.95                  0.00             648.47           

Balance as at 31st March, 2021 -            -            2.41            0.41          42.89        455.91      0.66                0.50               0.14              2.74                  0.00             505.66           

VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED

    NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

Particulars

(CIN No. L80301MH1984PLC033922)
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As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020

(Rs. in lakh) (Rs. in lakh)

3 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD

Investment in Equity Instruments (Unquoted)

at cost, fully paid up As at 31st March, 

2021

As at 31st 

March, 2020

In an Associate

VJTF Infraschool Services (Mumbai) Private Limited  

Formerly known as VJTF Infrastructure Private 

Limited. (Face value of share Rs. 10) 1,638,217              1,638,217    104.25                            104.25                            

Add: Share of accumulated loss (104.25)                          (104.25)                          

-                                  -                                  

4     RIGHT OF USE ASSETS

a) Gross block

Opening Gross Block 2,876.22                             -                                     

Additions -                                     4,077.70                             

Disposals -                                     (1,201.48)                           

Closing Gross Carrying Value 2,876.22                             2,876.22                             

b) Accumulated Depreciation

Opening Accumulated Depreciation 199.10                                -                                     

Expense for the year 147.83                                250.05                                

Disposals -                                     (50.95)                                

Closing Depreciation/amortisation                                                       346.93                                199.10                                

 Net block (a-b) 2,529.29                             2,677.12                             

5 INVESTMENTS (NON-CURRENT)

Investment in Equity Instruments (Unquoted)

(At cost, fully paid up)
As at 31st March, 

2021

As at 31st 

March, 2020

Malad Sahakari Bank Ltd. (Face value of share Rs. 10) 100                        100               0.01                                0.01                                

Mangal Co-op. Bank Ltd. (Face value of share Rs. 50) 1,810                     1,810            0.91                                0.91                                

0.92                                0.92                                

6 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (NON-CURRENT)

(Unsecured, considered good)

Security deposits given to

      Related Parties 5,222.85                         1,830.11                         

      Others 51.29                              59.89                              

Advance given against share application money (Related Party) -                                  4,025.31                         

5,274.14                         5,915.31                         

7 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS / LIABILITY (NET)

Deferred Tax Liability(Refer note below for component and movement) (41.74)                            (75.47)                            

MAT Credit Entitlement 45.69                              45.69                              

3.95                                (29.78)                            

VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED

No. of Shares

(CIN No. L80301MH1984PLC033922)

No. of Shares

    NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021
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As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020

(Rs. in lakh) (Rs. in lakh)

VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED

(CIN No. L80301MH1984PLC033922)

    NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

Component and movement of deferred tax assets / (liabilities) : (Rs. in lakh)

 Property, 

Plant and 

Equipment 

 Financial Assets / 

Liabilities 

 Unabsorbed 

tax losses 

and 

depreciation 

 Others 

At 31st March, 2019 (188.48)          83.28                     26.19            6.46                                (72.55)                            

(Charged) / Credited:

- to profit or loss (755.58)          721.25                   30.71            2.31                                (1.31)                              

- to other comprehensive income -                  -                         -               (1.61)                              (1.61)                              

At 31st March, 2020 (944.06)          804.53                   56.90            7.16                                (75.47)                            

(Charged) / Credited:

- to profit or loss 33.67              (43.03)                   41.56            2.60                                34.80                              

- to other comprehensive income -                  -                         -               (1.07)                              (1.07)                              

At 31st March, 2021 (910.39)          761.50                   98.46            8.69                                (41.74)                            

8 INCOME TAX ASSETS (NET)

 Income Tax Receivable (Net of provision of Rs.13.79 Lakh, As at 31st March, 2020 - Rs. 45.99 Lakhs) 19.57                              17.22                              

19.57                              17.22                              

9 TRADE RECEIVABLES

(Unsecured, Considered Good)

0.10                                -                                  

37.52                              8.05                                

37.62                              8.05                                

10 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Balances with Banks:

 On Current Accounts 34.78                              23.30                              

Cash on Hand 12.80                              22.03                              

47.58                              45.33                              

11 LOANS

(Unsecured, Considered Good )

Loans to related party:

     Associate where significant influence exercised 512.92                            507.24                            

Loans and Advances to Employees 0.81                                2.12                                

Loans and Advances to Others -                                  1.00                                

513.73                            510.36                            

12 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (CURRENT)
(Unsecured, Considered Good Unless Otherwise Stated )

Receivable against sale of asset 306.95                            306.95                            

Other receivables* 9.39                                7.54                                

316.34                            314.49                            

*Net of Provision for doubtful advances of Rs. NIL (As at 31st March, 2020 - Rs. 51.25 Lakhs)

13 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

     Prepaid Expenses 1.92                                1.84                                

     Prepaid Insurance 3.70                                9.01                                

5.62                                10.85                              

Due for a period exceeding six months from the date they became due for payment

Deferred tax for temporary differences attributable to

Particulars

Others

 Total Deferred Tax 

Assets / (Liabilities) 
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As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020

(Rs. in lakh) (Rs. in lakh)

VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED

(CIN No. L80301MH1984PLC033922)

    NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

14 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

AUTHORISED

2,00,00,000 (31st March, 2020 - 2,00,00,000) Equity Shares of  Rs. 10 each 2,000.00                         2,000.00                         

2,000.00                         2,000.00                         

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP

1,76,00,000 (31st March, 2020 - 1,76,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up 1,760.00                         1,760.00                         

1,760.00                         1,760.00                         

(A) Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

Number Rs. in Lakh Number Rs. in Lakh

At the beginning of the year 17,600,000    1,760.00                17,600,000                    1,760.00                         

Changes during the year -                  -                         -                                  -                                  

Outstanding at the end of the year 17,600,000    1,760.00                17,600,000                    1,760.00                         

(B) Terms, Rights and Preferences attached to Equity shares: 

 (C) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company:

 Number of 

shares 

 Percentage of 

holding 
 Number of shares  Percentage of holding 

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid :

Vinay Dharamchand Jain 6,078,122       34.53                     6,078,122                       34.53                              

Raina Vinay Jain 5,177,051       29.42                     5,177,051                       29.42                              

Sam Financial Services Private Limited 1,604,649       9.12                       1,604,649                       9.12                                

Badri Baldawa 1,084,995       6.16                       1,084,995                       6.16                                

15 OTHER EQUITY

General reserve 200.00                            200.00                            

Capital reserves on consolidation 152.44                            152.44                            

Retained earnings 992.72                            1,491.30                         

Other comprehensive income 66.94                              63.89                              

1,412.10                         1,907.63                         

Nature & purpose of other equity and reserves :

Capital Reserve on Consolidation : Capital reserve is created out of capital profits and is usually not distributed as dividend to shareholders.

As at 31st March, 2020

Total issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital

The shareholders have all other rights as available to equity shareholders as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, read together with the

Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company, as applicable.

Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The shareholders have the right to receive interim dividends declared by the Board of Directors

and Final dividend  proposed by the Board of Directors and approved by the shareholders.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the shareholders will be entitled in proportion to the number of equity shares held by them receive remaining assets

of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. However, presently there are no such preferential amounts.

As at 31st March, 2021

General Reserve: General Reserves are created out of profits and kept aside for general purpose and financial strengthening of the company, they don’t have

any special purpose to fulfill and can be used for any purpose in future. 

As at 31st March, 2020

As at 31st March, 2021
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As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020

(Rs. in lakh) (Rs. in lakh)

VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED

(CIN No. L80301MH1984PLC033922)

    NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

 

16 BORROWINGS (NON-CURRENT)

SECURED

Term Loans

       Aditya birla finance limited (Non-banking financial institution-NBFC) 383.62                            384.13                            

ECLGS (Emergency Credit Line Guarantee Scheme) Loans from

Aditya birla finance limited (Non-banking financial institution-NBFC) 66.78                              -                                  

Kotak Bank 37.16                              -                                  

HDFC Bank 30.13                              -                                  

Vehicle Loans from Banks and NBFCS

     (Secured by way of hypothecation of motor vehicles purchased there against)

       Kotak Mahindra Bank 24.63                              72.89                              

       HDFC Bank 103.91                            132.51                            

       Daimler Financial Services India Pvt. Ltd. 12.13                              16.43                              

658.36                            605.96                            

Rate of Interest, Details of Security and Term of Repayment of Term Loans :

 Aditya birla finance limited (Non-banking financial institution-NBFC) 

Rate of Interest ,Details of Term of Repayment of ECLGS (Emergency Credit Line Guarantee Scheme) Loans

Kotak Bank

HDFC Bank

 Vehicle Loans 

Rate 

Repayable by of Interest Bank Name

September 20th, 2022 8.41%  Kotak Bank 13.53                              32.37                              

June 20th, 2022 and May 20th, 2022 8.76%  Kotak Bank 6.77                                26.10                              

June 20th, 2022 and April 20th, 2022 8.76%  Kotak Bank 4.33                                14.42                              

September 5th, 2023 9.67%  HDFC Bank 103.91                            132.51                            

128.54                            205.40                            

Vehicle Loans-Daimler Financial Services India Pvt. Ltd.

Carries interest at 7.50% p.a.. The loan is repayable in 60 monthly installments ending on January, 2023. 

17 OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

 Lease Liabilities* 2,594.43                         2,590.75                         

2,594.43                         2,590.75                         
*(For details - Refer Note 36)

Carries interest at 12.50% p.a. The Term loan is secured by Equitable Mortgage of Immovable properties of Associates Company and personally  guaranteed by the Directors. The 

loan is repayable in 120 monthly installments commencing from January, 2020 and ending on September, 2030.

Carries interest at 13% p.a. The ECLGS loan is secured by Equitable Mortgage of Immovable properties of Associates Company. The loan is repayable in 48 monthly installments 

(including 12 months principal moratorium period) commencing from October, 2020 and ending on September, 2024.

Carries interest at 8% p.a. The loan is repayable in 48 monthly installments (including 12 months principal moratorium period) commencing from August, 2020 and ending on 

July, 2024. Existing Securities of vehicle loans extended to this loan.

Carries interest at 8.25% p.a. The loan is repayable in 48 monthly installments (including 12 months principal moratorium period) commencing from July, 2020 and ending on 

June, 2024. Existing Securities of vehicle loans extended to this loan.

Aditya birla finance limited (Non-banking financial institution-NBFC)
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As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020

(Rs. in lakh) (Rs. in lakh)

VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED
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18 OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Security Deposits from Employees 62.09                              67.20                              

62.09                              67.20                              

19 PROVISIONS (NON-CURRENT)

Provision for employee benefits

                   Gratuity 32.47                              26.97                              

                              32.47                               26.97 

20 BORROWINGS (CURRENT)

(Unsecured, Repayable on demand)

Loan from bodies corporate* 35.58                              105.58                            

 Overdraft from Bank** 252.92                            249.41                            

288.50                            354.99                            

    *(Navnidhi Commerce Private Limited Rate of interest - 12% p.a., Previous year - 12% p.a. and

        Samriddhi Finserve India Private Limited Rate of interest - 18% p.a., Previous year - nil)

    **(Rate of interest 11.25% p.a, Previous year 11.25% p.a.)

21 TRADE PAYABLES

      Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 224.78                            143.99                            

224.78                            143.99                            

22   Lease Liabilities (Current)

 Lease Liabilities* 55.97                              49.67                                 

55.97                                 49.67                                 

*(For details - Refer Note 36)

23 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (CURRENT)

 Current Maturities of Non-Current Borrowings* 239.75                            252.79                            

 Interest Accrued but not Due 4.69                                4.68                                

 Payables to a Related Party  214.44                            732.44                            

 Due to Employees 183.59                            49.28                              

642.47                            1,039.19                         

24 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Statutory dues 193.54                            258.85                            

 Payables to a Related Party  566.55                            564.87                            

 Advance given to party 15.00                              15.00                              

Contract Liability* (Fees Received in advance) 1,112.98                         1,098.07                         

*(For details - Refer Note 44 ) 1,888.06                         1,936.80                         

25 PROVISIONS (CURRENT)

           Provision for employee benefits

                       Gratuity 0.95                                0.58                                

0.95                                0.58                                

26 CURRENT TAX LIABILITY (NET)

Provision For Tax 6.88                                27.00                              

Less: Tax payments -                                  (20.12)                            

6.88                                6.88                                

* (For details of Securities- Refer Note 16 herein above)
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(Rs. in lakh) (Rs. in lakh)

27 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Sale of Services (Educational Activities):

    Course and other fees 500.90                                          1,452.95                                            

500.90                                          1,452.95                                            

28 OTHER INCOME

 Interest Income on:

        Loans Given -                                               65.38                                                

        Bank Fixed Deposit 0.61                                              201.47                                               

        Unwinding of Interest (Income) 177.13                                          159.42                                               

        Income Tax Refund -                                               0.03                                                  

Lease liability written back on rent concession 208.86                                          -                                                    

Profit on Lease Termination -                                               66.74                                                

Sundry Balances and Provisions no longer required written back 12.19                                            2.42                                                  

Miscellaneous Income 8.99                                              16.30                                                

407.78                                          511.76                                               

29 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

Salaries, Wages and Bonus 395.34                                          523.01                                               

Contribution to Provident and Other funds 1.18                                              2.17                                                  

Gratuity Expense 10.00                                            8.90                                                  

Staff Welfare 0.01                                              1.37                                                  

406.53                                          535.45                                               

30 FINANCE COSTS 

Interest Expense on:

      Borrowings 160.38                                          185.89                                               

      Leased Liability 316.72                                          455.51                                               

      Delayed Payment of Statutory dues 10.51                                            13.39                                                

Other Borrowing Cost:

      Loan Processing Fees 3.50                                              6.45                                                  

     Unwinding of interest (Expenses) -                                               35.18                                                

491.11                                          696.42                                               

VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED

    NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

(CIN No. L80301MH1984PLC033922)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

31ST MARCH, 2020

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

31ST MARCH, 2021
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

31ST MARCH, 2021

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

31ST MARCH, 2020

(Rs. in lakh) (Rs. in lakh)

31 OTHER EXPENSES

Advertisement and Publicity 4.23                                              33.36                                                

Auditors' Remuneration:

   Audit Fees 4.33                                              4.33                                                  

   Reimbursement of goods and service tax 0.04                                              0.04                                                  

Electricity 21.06                                            30.37                                                

Events and Programmes 0.01                                              3.70                                                  

Filing Fees 0.22                                              0.04                                                  

Housekeeping Charges 4.95                                              21.41                                                

Insurance 9.19                                              26.36                                                

Kids Welfare Activities 38.86                                            76.79                                                

Legal and Professional 36.44                                            40.83                                                

Office Expenses 74.90                                            99.54                                                

Postage, Telegram, Telephone and Internet 1.06                                              1.98                                                  

Printing and Stationery 7.93                                              18.09                                                

Rates and Taxes 3.04                                              23.71                                                
Rent -                                               2.40                                                  

Repairs and Maintenance 0.65                                              7.84                                                  

Security Charges 20.15                                            24.67                                                

Teaching Honorarium -                                               0.28                                                  

Travelling Expenses 0.03                                              15.23                                                

Vehicle Expenses 19.66                                            163.53                                               

Water Charges 0.37                                              2.58                                                  

Bank Charges 1.43                                              1.62                                                  

Cafeteria Expenses 6.42                                              48.91                                                

Sundry irrecoverable balances written off 1.39                                              1.97                                                  

Miscellaneous Expenses 0.06                                              2.16                                                  

Irrecoverable advance written off 51.25    

Less: Related provision written back (51.25)   -                                               -                                                    

256.42                                          651.75                                               

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

(CIN No. L80301MH1984PLC033922)

VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED
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32

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

31ST MARCH, 2021

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

31ST MARCH, 2020

(Rs. In Lakh) (Rs. In Lakh)

(a) Tax expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

     Current  Tax -                                            27.00                                               

     Short provision for taxation of earlier years -                                            56.03                                               

     MAT Credit Entitlement -                                            38.89                                               

     Deferred Tax (34.81)                                      1.31                                                 

Total tax expense (34.81)                                      123.23                                             

(b) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's tax rate:

Profit/ (Loss) before income tax expense (533.75)                                    (311.21)                                           

Enacted income tax rate in 26.00% 26.00%

Tax expenses/ (benefits) on profit/ (Loss) before tax at the enacted income tax rate (A) (138.77)                                    (80.91)                                             

Tax effects of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating taxable income (B)

                                              -                                                    1.57 

                                           2.33                                                  3.69 

                                              -                                                  56.03 

                                              -                                                  38.89 

                                      101.37                                                40.60 

                                           0.27                                                63.36 

Current tax expense recognised in profit or loss (A+B) (34.81)                                      123.23                                             

Effective tax rate 6.52% -39.60%

33

(Rs. in Lakh)

Current Non-current Current Non-current

Gratuity 0.95 32.47 0.58 26.97

Total

Gratuity (Post-employment obligations)

(Rs. in Lakh)

 Present value 

of obligation 

Fair value of plan 

assets

 Net amount

(UNFUNDED) 

Present value of 

obligation
 Fair value of plan assets 

 Net amount

(UNFUNDED) 

As at the beginning of the 

year
27.55                -                            27.55                                     24.86                           -                                            24.86                                               

Current service cost 8.13                   -                            8.13                                        7.04                             -                                            7.04                                                 

Past service cost -                    -                            -                                         -                              -                                            -                                                  

Interest expense 1.87                   -                            1.87                                        1.86                             -                                            1.86                                                 

Excess provision written back -                    -                            -                                         -                              -                                            -                                                  

Total amount recognized in 

profit or loss
10.00                -                            10.00                                     8.90                             -                                            8.90                                                 

Remeasurements:

(Gain)/loss from change in 

assumptions
0.21                   -                            0.21                                        2.82                             -                                            2.82                                                 

Experience gains (4.33)                 -                            (4.33)                                      (9.03)                           -                                            (9.03)                                               

Total amount recognised in 

other comprehensive income

(4.12)                 -                            (4.12)                                      (6.21)                           -                                            (6.21)                                               

Benefit payments -                    -                            -                                         -                              -                                            -                                                  

As at end of the year 33.43                -                            33.43                                     27.55                           -                                            27.55                                               

Particulars

Discount rate

Salary growth rate

 Increase in assumption 
 Decrease in 

assumption 
 Increase in assumption  Decrease in assumption 

Discount rate 31.44                                      35.62                           25.91                                        29.35                                               

Salary growth rate 35.54                                      31.51                           29.28                                        25.97                                               

27.55                                                                                                   

MAT Credit Entitlement

The Company provides for gratuity as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employeeswho are in continuous service for a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The Company does not fund

the liability and maintains a target level of funding to be maintained over a period of time based on estimations of expected gratuity payments. Liabilities with regard to the Gratuity Plan are

determined by actuarial valuation on the reporting date using Projected Unit Credit method.

Income tax expense

This note provides an analysis of the Company's income tax expense and how the tax expense is affected by non-assessable and non-deductible items. It also explains significant estimates made in

relation to the Company's tax positions.

Particulars

Particulars

6.85%

Others

VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

5.00%

33.43                                                                             

Interest on income tax

Permanent Disallowances

Short provision for taxation of earlier years 

    FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021
Particulars

Change in assumption by

    FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020

(CIN No. L80301MH1984PLC033922)

0.50%

0.50%

The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:

6.80%

5.00%

    FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021     FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020

Deferred tax asset not recognised on unabsorbed losses

    FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021     FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit obligation over the year are as follows:

    FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020

The sensitivity of the overall plan liabilities with respect to key assumptions                                                                                                                                       (Rs. In Lakh)

Employee benefit obligations

    FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021
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The defined benefit obligations shall mature after year end 31st March, 2021 as follows (Rs. in lakh)

Particulars

Year 1 0.95                             

Year 2 4.20                             

Year 3 1.25                             

Year 4 1.34                             

Year 5 1.38                             

Thereafter 10.80                           

34 Global Health Pandemic from COVID – 19 (“Covid – 19”)

35 Contingent liabilities not provided for in respect of:  FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

31ST MARCH, 2021 

 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

31ST MARCH, 2020 

(Rs. in Lakh) (Rs. in Lakh)

Disputed Income Tax matters* 81.02                                        39.33                                               

Corporate Guarantees/Securities given 25,017.35                                 25,017.35                                        

* Note: Include demand of Rs.42.42 Lakh (previous year Rs.Nil) for the assessment year 2018-19 vide order dated 24
th
 May, 2021.

36 Leases

 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

31ST MARCH, 2021 

 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

31ST MARCH, 2020 

(Rs. in Lakh) (Rs. in Lakh)

Opening balance 2,640.42                                   3,776.37                                          

Additions during the year -                                            -                                                   

Interest accrued during the year 316.72                                      455.51                                             

Deletions -                                            (1,173.81)                                         

Lease liability written back on rent concession (208.86)                                     -                                                   

Lease payments (97.88)                                       (417.65)                                            

Closing Balance 2,650.40                                   2,640.42                                          

Out of above:

      Current Lease Liabilities 55.97                                        49.67                                               

      Non Current Lease Liabilities 2,594.43                                   2,590.75                                          

 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

31ST MARCH, 2021 

 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

31ST MARCH, 2020 

(Rs. in Lakh) (Rs. in Lakh)

Not later than one year 191.40                                      124.20                                             

Later than one year and not later than five years 881.70                                      1,193.10                                          

Later than five years 7,604.30                                   7,596.43                                          

Total 8,677.40                                   8,913.73                                          

 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

31ST MARCH, 2021 

 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

31ST MARCH, 2020 

(Rs. in Lakh) (Rs. in Lakh)

-                                                 2.40                                                       

37 Earnings per share  FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

31ST MARCH, 2021 

 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

31ST MARCH, 2020 

(A)                                      (498.58)                                             (434.44)

(B)                                17,600,000                                       17,600,000 

(A/B)                                          (2.83)                                                 (2.47)

                                              10                                                      10 

(ii) Break-up of the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at 31st March, 2021 on an undiscounted basis:

There are no pending litigations against the company, except as stated above. The Company reviews all its litigations and proceedings and makes adequate provisions, wherever required and

discloses the contingent liabilities, wherever applicable, in its financial statements. 

The spread of COVID-19 has severely impacted businesses around the globe. In many countries, including India, there has been severe disruption to regular business operations due to lock-downs, travel

bans, quarantines, social distancing and other emergencymeasures. Worldwide School operations are also affectedduring this COVID 19 pandemic and now school education is shifted to online platforms.

However, two entry level grades i.e. Play Group and Nursery are not possible to function smoothly on online platforms. The transport/utility facility income is affected badly during this pandemic time.

Management has not recognized income from both entry level grades and transport/utility facility, resulting in revenue being significantly reduced.

The Group has made detailed assessment of its liquidity position for a period of at least one year from ended 31st March, 2021. Management believes that it has taken into account all the possible impact of

known events till the date of approval of its financial statements arising from COVID-19 pandemic in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements.The Group will continue to monitor any

material changes to future economic conditions.

The average outstanding term of the obligations (Years) as at valuation date is 13.67 years.

(iii) Rental expenses for short-term leases recognised in statement of profit and loss

Face value of equity shares

Profit/ (Loss) for the year (Rs. in Lakh) 

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year

AS AT 31st MARCH, 2021

Basic & Diluted EPS (Rs. ) 

(i) Carrying value of lease liabilities and the movement during the period:
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38 Related Party Disclosures as per Ind AS 24

a.  Enterprise where Control Exists

         Associate

VJTF Infraschool Services (Mumbai) Private Limited (Formerly VJTF Infrastructure Private Limited)

    b.  Others (Enterprises where significant influence exercised by Key Managerial Personnel)

VJTF Infraschool Services (Udaipur) Private Limited (Formerly Rishi Reality Leasing Services Private Limited)

VJTF Constructions Private Limited

Witty Education Private Limited

Witty Enterprises Private Limited

Witty Infratech Private Limited

Pratiksha Foundation Charitable Trust

Witty Global Education Trust

c.   Key Managerial personnel and relatives 

Dr. Vinay Jain, Director

Dr. Raina Jain, Director

B. Transactions during the year (at arm’s length) and balances outstanding as at the year end with related parties are as follows:

    I.    Transactions during the year (Rs. in Lakh)

Key Management Personnel Key Management Personnel

Interest Income -                                         -                                                  

VJTF Infraschool Services 

(Mumbai) Private Limited    
-                            -                                         56.84                                        -                                                  

Operational and 

Management Fees income

Pratiksha Foundation 

Charitable Trust
2.00                          -                                         2.00                                          -                                                  

Income Collected on our 

behalf by

Pratiksha Foundation 

Charitable Trust
0.80                           -                                         187.10                                      -                                                  

Witty Education Private 

limited
-                            -                                         133.45                                      -                                                  

Lease Rent Expenses

Witty Global Education Trust -                            -                                         60.00                                        -                                                  

Dr.Raina Jain -                            2.40                                        -                                            2.40                                                 

Directors' Remuneration 

Expenses

Dr.Vinay Jain -                            60.00                                     -                                            60.00                                               

Dr.Raina Jain -                            60.00                                     -                                            60.00                                               

Reimbursement of Expenses 

given

Pratiksha Foundation 

Charitable Trust
15.34                        -                                         124.91                                      -                                                  

Witty Global Education Trust 8.94                          -                                         -                                            -                                                  

Witty Education Private 

limited
7.03                          -                                         17.04                                        -                                                  

Loans Given

VJTF Infraschool Services 

(Mumbai) Private Limited     
5.68                          -                                         58.76                                        -                                                  

Lease Deposit Given

Witty Global Education Trust -                            -                                         146.65                                      -                                                  

Advance given against Share 

application money 

Witty Enterprises Private 

Limited
-                            -                                         4,025.31                                   -                                                  

Advance given against Share 

application money - received 

back

Witty Enterprises Private 

Limited
809.70                      -                                         -                                            -                                                  

Advance given against Share 

application money converted 

to Operation & 

Management Deposit given

Witty Enterprises Private 

Limited
3,215.61                   -                                         -                                            -                                                  

Loans Taken repaid

VJTF Infraschool Services 

(Udaipur) Private Limited      
-                            -                                         679.98                                      -                                                  

 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

31ST MARCH, 2020 

 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

31ST MARCH, 2021 

Associate / Others Associate / Others

Particulars
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Payments made on behalf of:

Pratiksha Foundation 

Charitable Trust
541.85                      -                                         2,896.36                                   -                                                  

Witty Global Education Trust 159.28                      -                                         269.44                                      -                                                  

Witty Education Private Limited 50.09                        -                                         -                                            -                                                  

Payments made on behalf of - 

received back:

Pratiksha Foundation 

Charitable Trust
541.85                      -                                         2,896.36                                   -                                                  

Witty Global Education Trust 159.28                      -                                         122.79                                      -                                                  

Witty Education Private Limited 50.09                        -                                         -                                            -                                                  

Payments received on behalf 

of:

Pratiksha Foundation 

Charitable Trust
1,613.16                   -                                         418.14                                      -                                                  

Witty Education Private 

Limited
352.97                      -                                         1,154.17                                   -                                                  

Witty Global Education Trust 33.04                        -                                         106.67                                      -                                                  

VJTF Infraschool Services 

(Udaipur) Private Limited      
10.00                        -                                         697.98                                      -                                                  

Payments received on behalf 

of - repaid:

Pratiksha Foundation 

Charitable Trust
1,517.84                   -                                         321.66                                      -                                                  

Witty Education Private 

Limited
970.70                      -                                         544.86                                      -                                                  

Witty Global Education Trust 28.63                        -                                         106.67                                      -                                                  

VJTF Infraschool Services 

(Udaipur) Private Limited      
8.32                          -                                         133.11                                      -                                                  

Security cum Guarantee 

Taken (Amount reduced)

VJTF Constructions Private 

Limited
-                            -                                         25.00                                        -                                                  

Dr Raina Jain

Dr Vinay Jain
-                            -                                         -                                            25.00                                               

    II.    Outstanding balances as at the year end (Rs. in Lakh)

Loan Given

VJTF Infraschool Services 

(Mumbai) Private Limited 
512.92                      -                                         507.24                                      -                                                  

Lease Deposit Given

Witty Global Education Trust 479.19                      -                                         479.19                                      -                                                  

Dr.Raina Jain -                            411.17                                   -                                            411.17                                             

Operation & Management 

Deposits given

Pratiksha Foundation 

Charitable Trust
1,400.14                   -                                         1,400.14                                   -                                                  

Witty Enterprises Private 

Limited
3,215.61                   -                                         -                                            -                                                  

Investment in Shares of an 

associate

VJTF Infraschool Services 

(Mumbai) Private Limited 
482.25                      -                                         482.25                                      -                                                  

Advance given against Share 

application money 

Witty Enterprises Private 

Limited
-                            -                                         4,025.31                                   -                                                  

Rent Payables

Witty Global Education Trust 15.90                        -                                         15.90                                        -                                                  

Dr.Raina Jain -                            5.66                                        -                                            2.40                                                 

Other Current Liability

VJTF Infraschool Services 

(Udaipur) Private Limited      
566.55                      -                                         564.87                                      -                                                  

Key Management PersonnelAssociate / Others

Particulars

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

31ST MARCH, 2021

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

31ST MARCH, 2020

Key Management Personnel Associate / Others
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Payable to associates

Pratiksha Foundation 

Charitable Trust
210.03                      -                                         114.70                                      -                                                  

Witty Education Private 

Limited
-                            -                                         617.73                                      -                                                  

Witty Global Education Trust 4.41                          -                                         -                                            -                                                  

Directors' Remuneration 

Payable 

Dr.Vinay Jain -                            29.42                                     -                                            7.56                                                 

Dr.Raina Jain -                            38.96                                      -                                            6.51                                                 

Security cum Guarantee 

Taken

VJTF Constructions Private 

Limited
400.00                      -                                         400.00                                      -                                                  

Dr Raina Jain

Dr Vinay Jain
-                            400.00                                   -                                            400.00                                             

Security cum Guarantee 

Given

VJTF Infraschool Services 

(Mumbai) Private Limited    
10,357.35                 -                                         10,357.35                                -                                                  

VJTF Infraschool Services 

(Udaipur) Private Limited      
3,060.00                   -                                         3,060.00                                   -                                                  

Witty Enterprises Private 

Limited
10,000.00                 -                                         10,000.00                                -                                                  

Witty Infratech Private 

Limited
1,100.00                   -                                         1,100.00                                   -                                                  

Dr Raina Jain

-                            500.00                                   -                                            500.00                                             

1. Above disclosed amounts represent transaction values only, without considering the impact of  GST and IND AS .

2. No amounts pertaining to related parties have been written off / back or provided for.

3. Related party relationship have been identified by the management and relied upon by the Auditors.

39

A Loans and advances (Rs. in Lakh)

Outstanding Balances as at 

the year end

Maximum Amount 

Outstanding During 

the year 

Outstanding Balances as at 

the year end

Maximum Amount Outstanding 

During the year 

512.92                                   512.92                         507.24                                      507.24                                             

Total 512.92                                   512.92                         507.24                                      507.24                                             

B Premises Lease Deposit and Operation and Management Deposits (Rs. in Lakh)

Outstanding Balances as at 

the year end

Maximum Amount 

Outstanding During 

the year 

Outstanding Balances as at 

the year end

Maximum Amount Outstanding 

During the year 

Witty Enterprises Private Limited                                  3,215.61 3,215.61                                                                   -                                                        -   

Pratiksha Foundation Charitable trust 1,400.14                                1,400.14                     1,400.14                                   1,400.14                                         

Witty Global Education Trust 479.19                                   479.19                         479.19                                      479.19                                             

Dr. Raina Jain 411.17                                   411.17                         411.17                                      411.17                                             

Total 5,506.11                                5,506.11                     2,290.50                                   2,290.50                                         

40 Disclosure as required under Section 186 (4) of the Companies Act, 2013:

41 Fair value measurements and accounting classification

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

31ST MARCH, 2020

Name of the Party

Disclosure as per requirement of regulation 34(3) and 53(f) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015:

Name of the Party

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

31ST MARCH, 2021

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

31ST MARCH, 2020

Refer note 4 and 37 above with respect to Loans, Guarantees and Securities given as well as investments made – for business purpose.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

31ST MARCH, 2021

The following tables shows the carrying amount of all financial assets and liabilities. In all cases of financial assets and liabilities, carrying amount (amortised cost) is a reasonable estimate of fair

value, therefore, defining levels of fair value hierarchy is not applicable.

notes : 

VJTF Infraschool Services (Mumbai) Private Limited    



134 of 142

VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

(CIN No. L80301MH1984PLC033922)

 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

31ST MARCH, 2021 

 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

31ST MARCH, 2020 

(Rs. in Lakh) (Rs. in Lakh)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Carrying amount)

Non-Current

Other Financial Assets 5,274.14                                   5,915.31                                         

Other Investments 0.92                                          0.92                                                 

Current

Trade Receivables 37.62                                        8.05                                                 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 47.58                                        45.33                                               

Loans 513.73                                      510.36                                             

Other Financial Assets 316.34                                      314.49                                             

6,190.33                                   6,794.46                                         

Financial liabilities carried at amortised cost (Carrying amount)

Non-Current

Borrowings 658.36                                      605.96                                             

Lease Liability 2,594.43                                   2,590.75                                         

Other Financial Liabilities 62.09                                        67.21                                               

Current

Borrowings 288.50                                      354.99                                             

Trade Payables 224.78                                      143.99                                             

Lease Liability 55.97                                        49.67                                               

Other Financial Liabilities 642.47                                      1,039.19                                         

4,526.60                                   4,851.76                                         

42

(A) Credit Risk

Ageing of Account receivables : (Rs. in Lakh)

Particulars  FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

31ST MARCH, 2021 

 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

31ST MARCH, 2020 

0-3 months                                         37.62                                                      -   

3-6 months                                               -                                                        -   

6 months to 12 months                                               -                                                    7.16 

beyond 12 months                                               -                                                    0.89 

Total                                         37.62                                                  8.05 

(B) Liquidity risk

i) Actual or expected significant adverse changes in business,

iii) Financial or economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant change to the counterparty’s ability to meet its obligations,

iv) Significant changes in the value of the collateral supporting the obligation or in the quality of the third-party guarantees or credit enhancements.

The Company’s activities expose it to business risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. In order to minimise any adverse effects on the financial performance, the Company’s risk

management is carried out by a corporate finance team under policies approved by the board of directors and top management. Company's treasury identifies, evaluates and mitigates financial risks

in close cooperation with the Company’s operating units. The board provides guidance for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas. 

Credit risk arises from the possibility that the counter party may not be able to settle their obligations as agreed. To manage this, the Company periodically assess financial reliability of customers,

taking into account the financial condition, current economic trends, and analysis of historical bad debts and ageing of accounts receivable. Individual risk limits are set accordingly.

The Company considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis through out each reporting

period. To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk the Company compares the risk of default occurring on asset as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of

initial recognition. It considers reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking information such as:

Financial risk management

ii) Actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of the counterparty,

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding to meet obligations when due. Due to the dynamic nature of the

underlying businesses, Company's treasury maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining sufficient cash and bank balances available to meet the working capital requirements. Management

monitors rolling forecasts of the group’s liquidity position (comprising the unused cash and bank balances along with liquid investments) on the basis of expected cash flows. This is generally

carried out at Company level in accordance with practice and limits set by the group. These limits vary to take into account the liquidity of the market in which the Company operates.

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectations of recovery, such as a debtor failing to engage in a repayment plan with the Company.Where loans or receivables have been

written off, the Company continues engage in enforcement activity to attempt to recover the receivable due. Where recoveries are made, these are recognized in profit or loss.

Credit risk is managed at segment as well as Company level. For banks and financial institutions, only high rated banks/institutions are accepted.

For other financial assets, the Company assesses and manages credit risk based on internal control and credit management system. Internal credit control and management is performed on a

Company basis for each class of financial instruments with different characteristics.

The company considers whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period. It considers available reasonable and supportive forward-

looking information. Macroeconomic information (such as regulatory changes, market interest rate or growth rates) are also considered as part of the internal credit management system. A default

on a financial asset is when the counterparty fails to make payments as per contract. This definition of default is determined by considering the business environment in which entity operates and

other macro-economic factors.

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectations of recovery, such as a debtor failing to engage in a repayment plan with the Company.Where loans or receivables have been

written off, the Company continues to engage in enforcement activity to attempt to recover the receivable due. Where recoveries are made, these are recognized as income in the statement of profit

and loss.

The Company measures the expected credit loss of trade receivables and loan from individual customers based on historical trend, industry practices and the business environment in which the

entity operates. Loss rates are based on actual credit loss experience and past trends. Based on the historical data, loss on collection of receivable is not material hence no additional provision

considered.
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(i) Maturities of financial liabilities

(Rs. in Lakh)

Contractual maturities of 

financial liabilities

As at 31st March, 2021

Less than 

3 months

3 months 

to 6 months

6 months 

to 1 year

Between 

1 and 2 years

More than 2 years Total

Non-derivatives

Borrowings

Term Loans 4.84                   4.99                           10.47                                      23.89                           359.73                                      403.93                                             

ECLGS 5.82                   12.27                         31.72                                      52.45                           81.62                                        183.88                                             

Vehicle Loans 47.35                 47.13                         75.14                                      102.80                         37.87                                        310.29                                             

Loan from bodies corporate -                     -                             35.58                                      -                              -                                            35.58                                               

Overdraft from bank -                     -                             252.92                                    -                              -                                            252.92                                             

Trade payables 42.72                 154.43                       27.64                                      -                              -                                            224.79                                             

Security deposits -                     -                             -                                          -                              62.09                                        62.09                                               

Interest accrued but not due on 

borrowings
4.69                   -                             -                                          -                              -                                            

4.69                                                 

Lease Liabilities -                     -                             55.97                                      -                              2,594.43                                   2,650.41                                          

Payable to related party -                     -                             214.44                                    -                              -                                            214.44                                             

Other payables 115.21               68.38                         -                                          -                               -                                            183.59                                             

Total non-derivative liabilities 220.63               287.20                       703.88                                    179.14                         3,135.74                                   4,526.61                                          

(Rs. in Lakh)

Contractual maturities of 

financial liabilities

As at 31st March, 2020

Less than 

3 months

3 months 

to 6 months

6 months 

to 1 year

Between 

1 and 2 years

More than 2 years Total

Non-derivatives

Borrowings

Term Loans -                     -                             70.28                                      22.83                           361.30                                      454.41                                             

Vehicle Loans -                     -                             182.52                                    -                              221.82                                      404.34                                             

Loan from bodies corporate -                     -                             105.58                                    105.58                                             

Overdraft from bank 249.41                                    249.41                                             

Trade payables 22.48                 90.41                         31.10                                      -                              -                                            143.99                                             

Security deposits -                     -                             -                                          -                              67.20                                        67.20                                               

Interest accrued but not due on 

borrowings
4.68                   -                             -                                          -                              -                                            

4.68                                                 

Lease Liabilities -                     -                             49.67                                      -                              2,590.75                                   2,640.42                                          

Payable to related party -                     -                             732.44                                    -                              -                                            732.44                                             

Other payables 49.27                 -                             -                                          -                               -                                            49.27                                               

Total non-derivative liabilities 76.43                 90.41                         1,421.00                                 22.83                           3,241.07                                   4,851.74                                          

(C) Market risk

(i) Foreign currency risk

(ii) Interest rate risk

43 Capital management

The gearing ratios were as follows:  (Rs. in Lakh) 

Particulars  FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

31ST MARCH, 2021 

 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

31ST MARCH, 2020 

                                   1,139.04                                           1,168.41 

3,735.99                                   4,231.89                                          

30.49% 27.61%

The tables below analyse the group’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities for:

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to :

1. safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and 

2. Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares, reduce debt or sell assets.

Net debt (Total  borrowings, including current maturities less cash & cash equivalent excluding Lease Liability under Ind AS 

116)

Total equity

Net debt to equity ratio

Loan covenants : The company intends to manage optimal gearing ratios.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of the financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. According to the Company, interest rate risk

exposure is only for floating rate borrowings. The Company is not significantly exposed to the interest rate risk, since the borrowings of the Company are on Fixed interest rate basis.

Amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk,

currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk includes investment, deposits, foreign currency receivables and

payables. The Company's treasury team manages the Market risk, which evaluates and exercises independent control over the entire process of market risk management.

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. As on the balance-sheet date, the Company does

not have foreign currency receivables or payables and is therefore not exposed to foreign exchange risk. 
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44

A

 (Rs. in Lakh) 

 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

31ST MARCH, 2021 

 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

31ST MARCH, 2020 

Contracted price 557.64                                      1,465.55                                         

(56.74)                                      (12.60)                                             

500.90                                      1,452.95                                         

B

C  (Rs. in Lakh) 

 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

31ST MARCH, 2021 

 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

31ST MARCH, 2020 

1,098.08                                   1,049.75                                         

(1,098.08)                                 (1,049.75)                                        

1,112.98                                   1,098.09                                         

1,112.98                                   1,098.09                                         

45

46

47 Recent Accounting Pronouncements  - Standards issued but not yet effective

48

49

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker.

The Company’s Directors are identified as the Chief Operating DecisionMaker (CODM) as defined by Ind AS 108, Operating Segments. The CODM evaluates the Company’s performance and

allocates resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators, however the Company is primarily engaged in only one segment viz., ‘Educational Services’ and that all operations are in

India. Hence the Company does not have any reportable Segments as per Indian Accounting Standard 108 “Operating Segments”.

Revenue recognised

While disclosing the aggregate amount of transaction price yet to be recognised as revenue towards unsatisfied or partially satisfied performance obligations, along with the broad time band for the

expected time to recognise those revenues, the Company has applied the practical expedient in Ind AS 115. Accordingly, the Company has not disclosed the aggregate transaction price allocated to

unsatisfied or partially satisfied performance obligations which pertain to contracts where revenue recognised corresponds to the value transferred to customer typically involving time based and

event based contracts.

The aggregate value of transaction price allocated to unsatisfied or partially satisfied performance obligations is Rs. 1,098.08 Lakh, which is expected to be recognised as revenue in the next year.

Legal Disputes with Cerestra Infrastructure Trust (Registered AIF with SEBI) related to Mumbai and Udaipur School properties (not owned by the Company) are sub judice with Hon’ble Bombay

High Court. The Company has made a detailed assessment of its impact on loans given of Rs. 513 Lakhs, guarantee given of Rs. 13,417 Lakhs and investment made of Rs. 482 Lakhs and based on

the advice given by external legal counsel, no provision/adjustment has been considered necessary by the management with respect to the above matters in these consolidated financial statements,

considering the uncertainty relating to the outcome of the matters.

In view of the above, financial statements for the year endedMarch 31, 2021 of VJTF Infrastructure Private Limited, an associate, are not available. This has no impact on the consolidated financial

statements of the group, as the carrying value of the investments in the associate is Nil (due to accounting of share of loss of an associate to the extent of investment value).

Increase due to invoicing during the year, excluding amounts recognised as revenue during the year

Balance at the end of the year

Less: Returns, rebates, incentive and other similar allowances

There is no interest paid during the year and no principle and interest is outstanding to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as on Balance sheet date.

Reconciliation of revenue recognised with the contracted price:

Revenue from contracts with customers

Ministry of Corporate affairs (MCA) notifies new standards or amendment to the existing standards. There is no such notification which would have been applicable from April 01, 2020.

Balance at the beginning of the year

Revenue recognised that was included in the balance at the beginning of the year

Changes in contract liabilities (fees received in advance) are as follows:

The accounts of certain trade receivables, trade payables, loans and advances given and banks are, however, subject to formal confirmations or reconciliations and consequent adjustments, if any.

However, there is no indication of dispute on these accounts, other than those mentioned in the financial statements. The management does not expect any material difference affecting the current

year’s financial statements on such reconciliation/adjustments.
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50 Interest in other entities

(a) Subsidiaries

As at 

31st March, 2021

As at 

31st March, 2020

82.42% 82.42%

(b) Associate

As at 

31st March, 2021

As at 

31st March, 2020

46.03.% 46.03.%

51

As % of 

Consolidated net 

assets

Amount

(Rs. In Lakh)

As % of Consolidated 

profit/(loss) after tax

Amount

(Rs. In Lakh)

35.45%                                  1,324.35 99.58%                                      (496.86)

74.16%                                  2,770.58 0.41%                                          (2.07)

0.00%                                             -   0.00%                                               -   

(d) Non-controlling interest 15.09%                                     563.89 0.07%                                          (0.36)

(e) Consolidation elimination -24.70%                                   (922.83) -0.07%                                            0.35 

100.00%                                  3,735.99 100.00%                                      (498.94)

42.96%                                  1,818.16 105.40%                                      (457.92)

75.85%                                  3,209.69 -5.40%                                         23.48 

0.00%                                             -   0.00%                                               -   

(d) Non-controlling interest 13.33%                                     564.26 -0.95%                                            4.13 

(e) Consolidation elimination -32.14%                                (1,360.22) 0.95%                                          (4.13)

118.81%                                  4,231.89 100.00%                                      (434.44)

52

AS PER OUR ATTACHED REPORT OF EVEN DATE FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

FOR  J. KALA & ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Firm Registration No.: 118769W Sd/- Sd/-

DR. VINAY JAIN DR. RAINA JAIN

DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

Sd/- DIN No. 00235276     DIN No. 01142103

VAIBHAV PATODI

PARTNER

Membership No. 420935 Sd/- Sd/-

SHRUTI SHARMA CA MANOJ JAIN

PLACE : MUMBAI COMPANY SECRETARY CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

DATE  : 30th June 2021

India

Ownership interest held by the group (%)

Name of entity

Previous years’ figures have been re-grouped / re-arranged wherever necessary so as to make them comparable with those of the current year.

Name of entity

Share in Profit/(loss)

after Taxation and before other comprehensive 

income                                                 
Name of the Enterprises

Additional Information, as required under Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013, of enterprises consolidated as Subsidiary / Associates.

As at 31st March, 2021

Net Assets i.e. Total assets minus Total liabilities 

VJTF Infraschool Services (Mumbai) Private 

Limited (formerly VJTF Infrastructure Private

Limited)

VJTF Buildcon Private Limited

Ownership interest held by the group (%)

Place of business/ country of incorporation

India

Place of business/ country of incorporation

(c) Associate                                VJTF 

INFRASCHOOL SERVICES (Mumbai) 

PRIVATE LIMITED                          

(formerly VJTF Infrastructure Private

Limited)

(b) Subsidiary - Indian                   VJTF 

BUILDCON PRIVATE LIMITED

(a) Parent                                               

VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED

Total

(c) Associate                                VJTF 

INFRASCHOOL SERVICES (Mumbai) 

PRIVATE LIMITED                          

(formerly VJTF Infrastructure Private

Limited)

(b) Subsidiary - Indian                   VJTF 

BUILDCON PRIVATE LIMITED

(a) Parent                                               

VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED

As at 31st March, 2020

Total
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Name of Subsidiary company

Reporting period for the 
subsidiary concerned, if 

different from the 
holding company's 

reporting period

Reporting Currency
Issued and subscribed 

share capital Reserves Total Assets Total Liabilities
Investment including 

in Total Assets Turnover
Profit/(Loss) before 

taxation Provision for taxation
Profit/(Loss) 
after taxation

Proposed 
dividend % of shareholding

[Excl (2) and (3)]
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14

VJTF Buildcon Private Limited -                                      INR 104.95                                  3,102.61 3,216.88 9.32 - - (2.07) - (2.07) - 82.42%

Considered in 
consolidation 

Not considered in 
consolidation

                                                                                                    (1) (2)                                        (3)                               (4)                                           (5)                                                                                               (6)                                   (7)                                                    (8)                                   (9)                           (10)                                      (11)                                        

FOR J. KALA & ASSOCIATES FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm Registration  No. 118769W

Sd/- Sd/-
Sd/- DR. VINAY JAIN DR. RAINA JAIN
VAIBHAV PATODI DIRECTOR  DIRECTOR  
PARTNER DIN No.: 00235276 DIN No.: 01142103
Membership No. 420935

PLACE  :  MUMBAI
DATE : 4th September, 2021

Part 'B' - Joint Ventures and Associates

Name of the Companies
Names of Subsidiaries which have been sold during the year 

Form - AOC-1

(Figures in lakh)

(Pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)
Statement containing salient features of the financial statements of the subsidiaries/joint ventures/associate companies

Part 'A' - Summary of Financial Information of Subsidiary Companies

Latest audited balance 
sheet date

Name of the Entity

share of Profit/(loss) for the year
(Figures in Rupees)

Net worth 
attributable to 

shareholding as 
per latest 

balance sheet

Reason why the 
associate/joint 
venture is not 
consolidated

InfluenceExtent of holding (%)Amount of Investment in associate/joint venture

No. of shares held by the 
company in 

associate/joint venture 
on the year end

Reporting Currency

Sr.No.
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VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED 
 

CIN: L80301MH1984PLC033922  
Reg. Off.: Witty International School, Pawan Baug Road, Malad West, Mumbai-400064. 

Ph- 022-61056800/01/02, Email: vjtfho@vjtf.com, Website: www. vjtf.com 

 

 
ATTENDANCE SLIP 

 
(Please complete this Attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the Meeting Hall) 

 
 
DPID           ________________________  
CLIENT ID   ________________________ 
 
Regd. Folio No.________________ 
 
I hereby record my presence at the 36th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company to be held on 
Thursday, 30th September, 2021 at 3.00.P.M. at Witty World, Romell Aether Layout, Off, Vishveshwar 
Nagar Rd, near Umiyamata Temple, Goregaon East, Mumbai – 400 063. 
 
 
Name of Shareholder/Proxy____________________  
 
 
 
 
 
Signature of Shareholder/Proxy_____________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
----------------------------------------------------------------Cut here--------------------------------------------------------- 
 
 
NOTE: You are requested to sign and handover this slip at the entrance of the meeting venue. 
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VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED 
 

CIN: L80301MH1984PLC033922  
Reg. Off.: Witty International School, PawanBaug Road, Malad West, Mumbai-400064. 

Ph- 022-61056800/01/02, Email: vjtfho@vjtf.com, Website: www. vjtf.com 

PROXY FORM 
 

 
 Name of the member(s):  
 Registered Address:  
 E-mail Id:  
 Folio No/ Client Id: 
  DP ID: 

 
 I/We, being the member(s) of ---------------- shares of the above named Company, hereby appoint 
 
 
1.    Name:-------------------------------------------------------------- 

 
           Address: ------------------------------------------------------------ 
 
           E-mail Id: ------------------------------------- Signature: ------------------------------------------ or failing him/her 

 
2. Name:--------------------------------------------------------------  

  
Address: -----------------------------------------------------------  
  
E-mail Id: ------------------------------------- Signature: ------------------------------------ or failing him/her  
 

3. Name:---------------------------------------------------------------  
  
Address: -----------------------------------------------------------  
  
E-mail Id: ------------------------------------- Signature: ------------------------------------ or failing him/her 

 
as my/our proxy to attend and vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 36th Annual General Meeting of the 

Company to be held on Thursday, 30th September, 2021 at 3.00.P.M. at Witty World, Romell Aether Layout, 

Off, Vishveshwar Nagar Road, near Umiyamata Temple, Goregaon East, Mumbai – 400 063 and at any 

adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below: 

 
Resolution 
No. 

Resolution Vote 

For Against 
Ordinary 
Business 

   

1. 
 
 

2. 
 
 

3. 

Adoption of Financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021, 
the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditor’s thereon; and 
 
Adoption of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for 
the financial year ended 31st March, 2021 
 
Ratification of Statutory Auditor 

  

Special 
Business 
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4. Re-Appointment of Dr. Vishal Punjabi (DIN-07417917) as an Independent 
Director 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
As witness my / our hand(s) this_______ day of ______________ 2021 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Signature of Shareholder:     Signature of Proxy: 
   ______________   ________________ 
 
 
 

 
 
Note:   
 
The proxy form duly stamped, completed and signed must be deposited at the Registered Office of the 
Company not less than 48 hours before the time for holding of the aforesaid meeting. The Proxy need not be a 
member of the Company. 
  

Affix 
 
1Rupee 
Revenue Stamp 
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Route Map 
Goregaon Station East to Witty World 
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